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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 

TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Amounts in thousands, except share amounts)
(unaudited)

 
  March 31,  December 31,  
     2017     2016  
ASSETS        

Current assets        
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 66,475  $ 55,264  
Accounts receivable, net   272,827   300,808  
Prepaids and other current assets   64,002   59,905  
Income tax receivable   7,670   7,035  
Assets held for sale   12,967   10,715  

Total current assets   423,941   433,727      
Long-term assets        

Property, plant and equipment, net   151,841   151,037  
Goodwill   129,765   129,648  
Deferred tax assets, net   47,065   53,585  
Other intangible assets, net   29,656   30,787  
Other long-term assets   57,883   47,520  

Total long-term assets   416,210   412,577  
Total assets  $ 840,151  $ 846,304      

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY        
Current liabilities        

Accounts payable  $ 34,232  $ 38,197  
Accrued employee compensation and benefits   78,689   66,133  
Other accrued expenses   25,078   14,830  
Income tax payable   10,047   7,040  
Deferred revenue   27,215   23,318  
Other current liabilities   25,006   29,154  
Liabilities held for sale   2,446   1,357  

Total current liabilities   202,713   180,029      
Long-term liabilities        

Line of credit   182,000   217,300  
Deferred tax liabilities, net   301   160  
Deferred rent   15,625   15,256  
Other long-term liabilities   64,240   71,664  

Total long-term liabilities   262,166   304,380  
Total liabilities   464,879   484,409      

Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)            
Mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interest    —    —      

Stockholders’ equity        
Preferred stock; $0.01 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; zero shares outstanding as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016    —    —  
Common stock; $0.01 par value; 150,000,000 shares authorized; 45,768,986 and 46,113,693 shares outstanding as of March 31, 2017 and
December 31, 2016, respectively   458   462  
Additional paid-in capital   349,688   348,739  
Treasury stock at cost: 36,283,267 and 35,938,560 shares as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively   (614,233)  (603,262) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)   (112,515)  (126,964) 
Retained earnings   745,115   735,939  
Noncontrolling interest   6,759   6,981  

Total stockholders’ equity   375,272   361,895  
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity  $ 840,151  $ 846,304  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

 
  Three months ended March 31,   
     2017     2016      
Revenue  $ 338,277  $ 312,410   
         
Operating expenses         

Cost of services (exclusive of depreciation and amortization presented separately below)   253,898   231,340   
Selling, general and administrative   43,220   45,500   
Depreciation and amortization   14,500   17,729   
Restructuring charges, net   169   88   

Total operating expenses   311,787   294,657   
         
Income from operations   26,490   17,753   
         
Other income (expense)         

Interest income   426   166   
Interest expense   (2,318)  (1,964)  
Other income (expense), net   960   478   

Total other income (expense)   (932)  (1,320)  
         
Income before income taxes   25,558   16,433   
         
Provision for income taxes   (5,391)  (4,528)  
         
Net income   20,167   11,905   
         
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest   (922)  (680)  
         
Net income attributable to TeleTech stockholders  $ 19,245  $ 11,225   
         
Other comprehensive income (loss)         
Net income  $ 20,167  $ 11,905   

Foreign currency translation adjustments   6,228   9,956   
Derivative valuation, gross   13,975   9,579   
Derivative valuation, tax effect   (5,791)  (4,100)  
Other, net of tax   129   175   

Total other comprehensive income (loss)   14,541   15,610   
Total comprehensive income (loss)   34,708   27,515   

         
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interest   (1,014)  (740)  

         
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to TeleTech stockholders  $ 33,694  $ 26,775   

         
Weighted average shares outstanding         

Basic   45,950   48,368   
Diluted   46,315   48,746   

         
Net income per share attributable to TeleTech stockholders         

Basic  $ 0.42  $ 0.23   
Diluted  $ 0.42  $ 0.23   

         
Dividends declared per share outstanding  $ 0.22  $ 0.185   

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity

(Amounts in thousands)
(Unaudited)

 
  Stockholders’ Equity of the Company        
                                                         Accumulated                             
                  Other           
  Preferred Stock  Common Stock  Treasury  Additional  Comprehensive  Retained  Noncontrolling     
  Shares  Amount  Shares  Amount  Stock  Paid-in Capital  Income (Loss)  Earnings  interest  Total Equity  
Balance as of December 31, 2016  —  $ —  46,114  $ 462  $ (603,262) $ 348,739  $ (126,964) $ 735,939  $ 6,981  $ 361,895  

Net income   —    —   —    —    —    —    —   19,245   922   20,167  
Dividends to shareholders ($0.22 per common share)   —    —   —    —    —    —    —   (10,069)    —   (10,069) 
Dividends distributed to noncontrolling interest   —    —   —    —    —    —    —    —   (945)  (945) 
Foreign currency translation adjustments   —    —   —    —    —    —   6,136    —   92   6,228  
Derivatives valuation, net of tax   —    —   —    —    —    —   8,184    —    —   8,184  
Vesting of restricted stock units   —    —  42    —   683   (1,370)   —    —    —   (687) 
Exercise of stock options   —    —   —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —  
Excess tax benefit from equity-based awards, net   —    —   —    —    —    —    —    —    —    —  
Equity-based compensation expense   —    —   —    —    —   2,319    —    —   (291)  2,028  
Purchases of common stock   —    —  (387)  (4)  (11,654)   —    —    —    —   (11,658) 
Other, net of tax   —    —   —    —    —    —   129    —    —   129  

Balance as of March 31, 2017   —  $  —  45,769  $ 458  $ (614,233) $ 349,688  $ (112,515) $ 745,115  $ 6,759  $ 375,272  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Amounts in thousands)
(Unaudited)

 
        

  Three Months Ended March 31,  
     2017     2016     
Cash flows from operating activities        

Net income  $ 20,167  $ 11,905  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:        

Depreciation and amortization   14,500   17,729  
Amortization of contract acquisition costs   406   169  
Amortization of debt issuance costs   171   235  
Imputed interest expense and fair value adjustments to contingent consideration   20   145  
Provision for doubtful accounts   61   218  
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets   23   (10) 
Deferred income taxes   (918)  5,083  
Excess tax benefit from equity-based awards   (284)  (196) 
Equity-based compensation expense   2,041   2,759  
(Gain) loss on foreign currency derivatives   (1,205)  (4,052) 
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:        

Accounts receivable   28,610   329  
Prepaids and other assets   (7,187)  (9,525) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses   10,456   (10,258) 
Deferred revenue and other liabilities   8,071   (1,745) 

Net cash provided by operating activities   74,932   12,786  
        

Cash flows from investing activities        
Proceeds from sale of long-lived assets   13    1  
Purchases of property, plant and equipment, net of acquisitions   (12,035)  (14,949) 
Payments for contract acquisition costs   (1,021)   —  
Investments in non-marketable equity investments   (1,153)   —  
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired of zero and zero, respectively    —   (200) 

Net cash used in investing activities   (14,196)  (15,148) 
        

Cash flows from financing activities        
Proceeds from line of credit   536,900   581,500  
Payments on line of credit   (572,200)  (548,500) 
Payments on other debt   (1,215)  (550) 
Payments of contingent consideration and hold-back payments to acquisitions    —   (7,628) 
Dividends paid to shareholders    —    —  
Payments to noncontrolling interest   (945)  (900) 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options    —    6  
Tax payments related to issuance of restricted stock units   (687)  (1,248) 
Excess tax benefit from equity-based awards    —   196  
Payments of debt issuance costs    —   (1,883) 
Purchase of treasury stock   (11,658)  (8,730) 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities   (49,805)  12,263  
        

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents   280   5,217  
        
Increase in cash and cash equivalents   11,211   15,118  
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period   55,264   60,304  
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period  $ 66,475  $ 75,422  
        
Supplemental disclosures        

Cash paid for interest  $ 2,127  $ 1,627  
Cash paid for income taxes  $ 450  $ 7,659  

Non-cash investing and financing activities        
Acquisition of long-lived assets through capital leases  $ 534  $ 1,002  
Acquisition of equipment through increase in accounts payable, net  $ 1,361  $ (1,257) 
Contract acquisition costs credited to accounts receivable  $  —  $ 200  
Dividend declared but not paid  $ 10,069  $ 8,923  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

(1) OVERVIEW AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Summary of Business
TeleTech Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“TeleTech” or the “Company”) is a leading global provider of technology enabled customer experience services. The Company
helps leading brands improve customer experiences and operational effectiveness through a unique combination of technological innovation and operational expertise.
The Company’s portfolio of solutions includes consulting, technology, operations and analytics to enable a seamless customer experience across every interaction channel
and phase of the customer lifecycle. TeleTech’s 48,000 employees serve clients in the automotive, communication, financial services, government, healthcare, logistics,
media and entertainment, retail, technology, transportation and travel industries across all the segments and via operations in the U.S., Australia, Belgium, Brazil, Bulgaria,
Canada, China, Costa Rica, Germany, Hong Kong, Ireland, Lebanon, Macedonia, Mexico, New Zealand, the Philippines, Poland, Singapore, South Africa, Thailand,
Turkey, the United Arab Emirates, and the United Kingdom.

Basis of Presentation
The Consolidated Financial Statements are comprised of the accounts of TeleTech, its wholly owned subsidiaries, and its 55% equity owned subsidiary Percepta, LLC. All
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements do not include all of the disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. (“GAAP”), pursuant
to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements reflect all adjustments which, in the
opinion of management, are necessary to state fairly the consolidated financial position of the Company and the consolidated results of operations and comprehensive
income (loss) and the consolidated cash flows of the Company. Operating results for the periods presented are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be
expected for the year ending December 31, 2017.

During the three months ended March 31, 2016, the Company recorded an additional tax expense of $1.1 million that should have been recorded in prior periods related to
operations by an entity outside its country of incorporation. The total amount of $1.1 million should have been recorded as additional expense in the amount of $180
thousand in 2011, $123 thousand in 2012, $137 thousand in 2013, $358 thousand in 2014 and $301 thousand in 2015.

The Company has evaluated the impact of this adjustment and concluded that the adjustment was not material to the previously issued consolidated financial statements.

These unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited Consolidated Financial Statements and footnotes thereto
included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions in determining the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. On an on-going basis, the Company evaluates its estimates including those related to derivatives and hedging activities, income
taxes including the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets, self-insurance reserves, litigation reserves, restructuring reserves, allowance for doubtful accounts,
contingent consideration, and valuation of goodwill, long-lived and intangible assets. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities. Actual results
may differ materially from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
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TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. ASU 2014-09 provides new guidance related to how an entity should recognize
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. In addition, ASU 2014-09 specifies new accounting for costs associated with obtaining or fulfilling contracts with customers and
expands the required disclosures related to revenue and cash flows from contracts with customers. While ASU-2014-09 was originally effective for fiscal years and interim
periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2016, in August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14, “Deferral of Effective Date”, deferring the effective date by
one year, to be effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2017. Earlier adoption is permitted only as of annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim reporting periods within that reporting period. ASU 2014-09 can be adopted either retrospectively to
each prior reporting period presented or as a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the date of adoption, with early application not permitted. The Company has assigned a
project manager and team, has selected an external consulting company to assist through the project, has begun the project assessment phase, and is determining its
implementation approach. As the Company has not yet completed the assessment, the Company has not made any conclusions regarding the potential impact to the
financials.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, “Leases”, which amends the existing accounting standards for lease accounting, including requiring lessees to
recognize most leases on their balance sheets related to the rights and obligations created by those leases and making targeted changes to lessor accounting. The ASU
also requires new disclosures regarding the amounts, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. The ASU is effective for interim and annual periods
beginning on or after December 15, 2018 and early adoption is permitted. The new leases standard requires a modified retrospective transition approach for all leases
existing at, or entered into after, the date of initial application, with an option to use certain transition relief. The Company is currently assessing the impact on the
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures, evaluating software solutions and other tracking methods, and determining the implementation timeline.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, “Compensation – Stock Compensation: Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting”, which amends
the existing accounting standards related to stock-based compensation. The ASU simplifies several aspects of accounting for share-based payment transactions, including
the accounting for income taxes, forfeitures, statutory tax withholding requirements, as well as classification in the statement of cash flows. The ASU is effective for interim
and annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2016 and early adoption is permitted. Beginning with the first quarter of 2017, the Company has adopted the new
guidance as applicable and this adoption did not have a material impact on its financial position, results of operation or related disclosures.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, “Statement of Cash Flows”. ASU 2016-15 is intended to reduce diversity in practice regarding how certain cash
transactions are presented and classified in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows by providing guidance on eight specific cash flow issues. The ASU is effective for
interim and annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2017 and early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact on the consolidated
statements and related disclosures.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-04, “Intangibles – Goodwill and Other:  Simplifying the Accounting for Goodwill Impairment”. ASU 2017-04 removes the
need to complete Step 2 of any goodwill impairment test that has failed Step 1. The goodwill impairment will now be calculated as the amount by which a reporting unit’s
carrying value exceeds its fair value. The ASU is effective for interim and annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2019 and early adoption is permitted. The
Company early adopted this standard as of January 1, 2017.
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TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

(2) ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES
Atelka
On November 9, 2016, the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of Atelka Enterprise Inc. (“Atelka”), a Canadian customer contact center management and
business process outsourcing services company that serves Canadian telecommunications, logistics, and entertainment clients. This acquisition is an addition to the
Customer Management Services (“CMS”) segment. Atelka employs approximately 2,800 in Quebec, Ontario, New Brunswick and Prince Edward Island.

The total purchase price was $48.4 million ($65.0 CAD), including certain working capital adjustments, and consisted of $47.5 million in cash at closing and a $1.4 million
hold-back payment for contingencies as defined in the sale and purchase agreement, which will be paid out in month 12 and month 24, if required.

The following summarizes the preliminary estimated fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date (in thousands):
     

     Preliminary  
  Estimate of  
  Acquisition Date  
  Fair Value  
Cash  $ 2,655  
Accounts receivable, net   18,320  
Other assets   615  
Property, plant and equipment   3,161  
Deferred tax assets, net   583  
Customer relationships   10,500  
Goodwill   20,443  
   56,277  
     
Accounts payable   1,199  
Accrued employee compensation and benefits   2,418  
Accrued expenses   2,597  
Other   1,678  
   7,892  
     

Total purchase price  $ 48,385  
 

The estimates of fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are preliminary, pending finalization of a valuation, thus are subject to revisions that may
result in adjustments to the values presented above.

The Atelka customer relationships have been estimated based on the initial valuation and are amortized over an estimated useful life of 12 years. The goodwill recognized
from the Atelka acquisition is estimated to be attributable, but not limited to, the acquired work force and expected synergies with CMS. None of the tax basis of the
acquired intangibles and goodwill will be deductible for income tax purposes. The acquired goodwill and the operating results of Atelka are reported within the CMS
segment from the date of acquisition.

rogenSi
In the third quarter of 2014, as an addition to the Customer Strategy Services (“CSS”) segment, the Company acquired substantially all operating assets of rogenSi
Worldwide PTY, Ltd., a global leadership, change management, sales, performance training and consulting company.
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TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

The total potential purchase price was $34.4 million, subject to certain working capital adjustments, and consisted of $18.1 million in cash at closing and an estimated
$14.5 million in three earn-out payments, contingent on the acquired companies and TeleTech’s CSS segment achieving certain agreed earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) targets, as defined in the sale and purchase agreement. Additionally, the estimated purchase price included a $1.8 million hold-
back payment for contingencies as defined in the sale and purchase agreement which was paid in the first quarter of 2016. The total contingent consideration possible per
the sale and purchase agreement ranges from zero to $17.6 million and the earn-out payments were payable in early 2015, 2016 and 2017, based on July 1, 2014 through
December 31, 2014, and full year 2015 and 2016 performance, respectively. As of December 31, 2016, the contingent consideration has been finalized and a total of
$12.0 million was earned and paid.

The fair value of the contingent consideration was measured by applying a probability weighted discounted cash flow model based on significant inputs not observable in
the market (Level 3 inputs). Key assumptions include a discount rate of 4.6% and expected future value of payments of $15.3 million. The $15.3 million of expected future
payments was calculated using a probability weighted EBITDA assessment with the highest probability associated with rogenSi achieving the targeted EBITDA for each
earn-out year. As of the acquisition date, the fair value of the contingent consideration was approximately $14.5 million. During the fourth quarter of 2014, the third quarter
of 2015, the fourth quarter of 2015, and the third quarter of 2016, the Company recorded fair value adjustments of the contingent consideration of $0.5 million, $0.8 million,
$(0.3) million, and $(4.3) million, respectively, based on revised estimates noting higher or lower probability of exceeding the EBITDA targets (see Note 7). As of
September 30, 2016, the fair value of the remaining contingent consideration was reduced from $4.3 million to zero given the remote possibility of achieving targeted
EBITDA for 2016. As of December 31, 2016, the payment was finalized at a value of zero and thus no additional expense was required.

Assets and Liabilities Held for Sale
During the third quarter of 2016, the Company determined that one business unit from the Customer Growth Services segment and one business unit from the Customer
Strategy Services segment would be divested from the Company’s operations. These business units met the criteria to be classified as held for sale. The Company has
engaged a broker for one of the business units and is assessing potential buyers for both business units. The Company anticipates the transactions will be finalized during
the next six to nine months. The Company has taken into consideration the discounted cash flow models, management input based on early discussions with brokers and
potential buyers, and third party evidence from similar transactions to complete the fair value analysis as there has not been a selling price determined at this point for
either unit. For the two business units in CGS and CSS losses of $2.6 million and $2.7 million, respectively, were recorded as of September 30, 2016 in Loss on assets
held for sale in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss). As of March 31, 2017, these losses continue to be the best estimates and no changes
have been recorded.
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TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

The following table presents information related to the major components of assets and liabilities that were classified as held for sale in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as
of March 31, 2017.

  As of  
  March 31, 2017  
Cash  $  —  
Accounts receivable, net   9,156  
Allowance for doubtful accounts   (51) 
Other assets   427  
Property, plant and equipment   1,004  
Deferred tax assets, net    —  
Customer relationships   2,077  
Goodwill   3,033  
Other intangible assets   2,621  
Allowance for reduction of assets held for sale   (5,300) 

Total assets  $ 12,967  
     
Accounts payable  $ 801  
Accrued employee compensation and benefits   709  
Accrued expenses   794  
Other   142  

Total liabilities  $ 2,446  
 
Investments
CaféX
In the first quarter of 2015, the Company invested $9.0 million in CafeX Communications, Inc. (“CaféX”) through the purchase of a portion of the Series B Preferred Stock
of CaféX. CaféX is a provider of omni-channel web-based real time communication (WebRTC) solutions that enhance mobile applications and websites with in-app video
communication and screen share technology to increase customer satisfaction and enterprise efficiency. TeleTech has deployed the CaféX technology as part of the
TeleTech customer experience offerings within the CMS business segment and as part of its Humanify platform. At December 31, 2015, the Company owned 17.2% of the
total equity of CaféX. During the fourth quarter of 2016, the Company invested an additional $4.3 million to purchase a portion of the Series C Preferred Stock; $3.2 million
was paid in the fourth quarter of 2016 and $1.1 million was paid in the first quarter of 2017. At March 31, 2017, the Company owns 16.8% of the total equity of CaféX. The
investment is accounted for under the cost method of accounting. The Company evaluates its investments for possible other-than-temporary impairment at least annually
or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. The Company tested the investment in CaféX
for impairment and concluded that the investment was not impaired at March 31, 2017 or December 31, 2016.

Subsequent Events
Connextions
On April 3, 2017, the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of Connextions, Inc., a health care technology and customer service provider company, from
OptumHealth Holdings, LLC. Connextions is being integrated into the health care vertical of the Customer Management Services segment of the Company. The Company
paid an aggregate purchase price of $80.0 million in cash, subject to customary representations and warranties, indemnities, and net working capital adjustment. In
connection with the acquisition, the Company and OptumHealth (directly and through affiliates) also entered into long-term technology and customer services agreements;
and into transition services agreements to facilitate the transfer of the business.
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TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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(3) SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Company reports the following four segments:

· the CMS segment includes the customer experience delivery solutions which integrate innovative technology with highly-trained customer experience professionals to
optimize the customer experience across all channels and all stages of the customer lifecycle from an onshore, offshore or work-from-home environment;

· the CGS segment provides technology-enabled sales and marketing solutions that support revenue generation across the customer lifecycle, including sales
advisory, search engine optimization, digital demand generation, lead qualification, and acquisition sales, growth and retention services;

· the CTS segment includes system design consulting, customer experience technology product, implementation and integration consulting services, and management
of clients’ cloud and on-premise solutions; and

· the CSS segment provides professional services in customer experience strategy and operations, insights, system and operational process optimization, and culture
development and knowledge management.

The Company allocates to each segment its portion of corporate operating expenses. All intercompany transactions between the reported segments for the periods
presented have been eliminated.

The following tables present certain financial data by segment (in thousands):
Three Months Ended March 31, 2017
 
                       Depreciation     Income  
  Gross  Intersegment  Net  &  (Loss) from  
  Revenue  Sales  Revenue  Amortization  Operations  
Customer Management Services  $ 252,098  $ (19) $ 252,079  $ 11,242  $ 20,596  
Customer Growth Services   33,658   —   33,658   778   2,410  
Customer Technology Services   35,850   (157)  35,693   1,812   3,057  
Customer Strategy Services   16,847   —   16,847   668   427  

Total  $ 338,453  $ (176) $ 338,277  $ 14,500  $ 26,490  
 
 
Three Months Ended March 31, 2016
 
                       Depreciation     Income  
  Gross  Intersegment  Net  &  (Loss) from  
  Revenue  Sales  Revenue  Amortization  Operations  
Customer Management Services  $ 228,019   (98) $ 227,921  $ 12,254  $ 15,595  
Customer Growth Services   33,519    —   33,519   1,743   495  
Customer Technology Services   35,370   (102)  35,268   2,875   2,780  
Customer Strategy Services   15,702    —   15,702   857   (1,117) 

Total  $ 312,610  $ (200) $ 312,410  $ 17,729  $ 17,753  
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  Three Months Ended  
  March 31,  
  2017     2016     
Capital Expenditures        

Customer Management Services  $ 8,579  $ 11,978  
Customer Growth Services   120   1,187  
Customer Technology Services   3,200   1,733  
Customer Strategy Services   136   51  

Total  $ 12,035  $ 14,949  
 
   March 31, 2017     December 31, 2016  
Total Assets         

Customer Management Services   $ 572,787  $ 585,679  
Customer Growth Services    69,422   71,540  
Customer Technology Services    125,581   115,537  
Customer Strategy Services    72,361   73,548  

Total   $ 840,151  $ 846,304  
         
   March 31, 2017     December 31, 2016  
Goodwill         

Customer Management Services   $ 42,395  $ 42,589  
Customer Growth Services    24,439   24,439  
Customer Technology Services    41,500   41,500  
Customer Strategy Services    21,431   21,120  

Total   $ 129,765  $ 129,648  
         
 
The following table presents revenue based upon the geographic location where the services are provided (in thousands):
         
  Three Months Ended March 31,   
     2017     2016      
Revenue         
United States  $ 178,432  $ 174,577   
Philippines   85,575   84,296   
Latin America   33,117   30,158   
Europe / Middle East / Africa   15,410   16,492   
Asia Pacific   7,111   5,650   
Canada   18,632   1,237   

Total  $ 338,277  $ 312,410   
         
 

 
 
 

(4) SIGNIFICANT CLIENTS AND OTHER CONCENTRATIONS
The Company had no clients that contributed in excess of 10% of total revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2017 or 2016. The Company does have several
clients with revenue exceeding $100 million annually and the loss of one or more of these clients could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
operating results, or financial condition.

To limit the Company’s credit risk with its clients, management performs periodic credit evaluations, maintains allowances for uncollectible accounts and may require pre-
payment for services from certain clients. Based on currently available information, management does not believe significant credit risk existed as of March 31, 2017.
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(5) GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
 
Goodwill consisted of the following (in thousands):
                  
                       Effect of        
  December 31,  Acquisitions /     Foreign  March 31,  
  2016  Adjustments  Impairments  Currency  2017  
                 
Customer Management Services  $ 42,589  $ (435) $  —  $ 241  $ 42,395  
Customer Growth Services   24,439    —    —   —   24,439  
Customer Technology Services   41,500    —   —   —   41,500  
Customer Strategy Services   21,120    —    —   311   21,431  

Total  $ 129,648  $ (435) $  —  $ 552  $ 129,765  
 
The Company performs a goodwill impairment assessment on at least an annual basis. The Company conducts its annual goodwill impairment assessment during the
fourth quarter, or more frequently, if indicators of impairment exist. During the quarter ended March 31, 2017, the Company assessed whether any such indicators of
impairment existed and concluded there were none.

 
 

(6) DERIVATIVES
Cash Flow Hedges
The Company enters into foreign exchange and interest rate related derivatives. Foreign exchange derivatives entered into consist of forward and option contracts to
reduce the Company’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations that are associated with forecasted revenue earned in foreign locations. Interest rate
derivatives consist of interest rate swaps to reduce the Company’s exposure to interest rate fluctuations associated with its variable rate debt. Upon proper qualification,
these contracts are designated as cash flow hedges. It is the Company’s policy to only enter into derivative contracts with investment grade counterparty financial
institutions, and correspondingly, the fair value of derivative assets consider, among other factors, the creditworthiness of these counterparties. Conversely, the fair value
of derivative liabilities reflects the Company’s creditworthiness. As of March 31, 2017, the Company has not experienced, nor does it anticipate, any issues related to
derivative counterparty defaults. The following table summarizes the aggregate unrealized net gain or loss in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the three
months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands and net of tax):
 
         

  Three Months Ended  March 31,   
  2017     2016      
         
Aggregate unrealized net gain/(loss) at beginning of period  $ (32,393) $ (26,885)  
Add: Net gain/(loss) from change in fair value of cash flow hedges   12,320   9,032   
Less: Net (gain)/loss reclassified to earnings from effective hedges   (4,136)  (3,553)  
Aggregate unrealized net gain/(loss) at end of period  $ (24,209) $ (21,406)  
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The Company’s foreign exchange cash flow hedging instruments as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 are summarized as follows (amounts in thousands). All
hedging instruments are forward contracts.
 
             

     Local                    
  Currency  U.S. Dollar   % Maturing   Contracts  
  Notional  Notional   in the next   Maturing  

As of March 31, 2017  Amount  Amount   12 months   Through  
Philippine Peso  11,795,000   249,872  30.0 %   August 2021  
Mexican Peso  1,924,000   117,978   17.2 %   May 2021  
    $ 367,850        
 
             

     Local                    
  Currency  U.S. Dollar            
  Notional  Notional             

As of December 31, 2016  Amount  Amount        
Philippine Peso  14,315,000   301,134       
Mexican Peso  2,089,000   129,375        
    $ 430,509        
             

(1) Includes contracts to purchase Philippine pesos in exchange for New Zealand dollars and Australian dollars, which are translated into equivalent U.S. dollars on March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016.

 
The Company’s interest rate swap arrangements as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 were as follows:
 
                     Contract     Contract  
  Notional  Variable Rate  Fixed Rate  Commencement  Maturity  
  Amount  Received  Paid  Date  Date  

Swap 2  $ 15 million  1 - month LIBOR  3.14 %  May 2012  May 2017  
  $ 15 million   

       
 
Fair Value Hedges
The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to economically hedge against foreign currency exchange gains and losses on certain receivables and
payables of the Company’s foreign operations. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments designated as fair value hedges are recognized in earnings in Other
income (expense), net. As of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 the total notional amounts of the Company’s forward contracts used as fair value hedges were
$226.1 million and $227.8 million, respectively.
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Derivative Valuation and Settlements
 
The Company’s derivatives as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 were as follows (in thousands):
 
  March 31, 2017  

  Designated  Not Designated  
  as Hedging  as Hedging  

Designation:  Instruments  Instruments  
     Foreign     Interest     Foreign  

Derivative contract type:  Exchange  Rate  Exchange  
Derivative classification:  Cash Flow  Cash Flow  Fair Value  
           
Fair value and location of derivative in the Consolidated Balance Sheet:           
Prepaids and other current assets  $  —  $  —  $ 2,005  
Other long-term assets   13    —    —  
Other current liabilities   (19,240)  (57)  (61) 
Other long-term liabilities   (20,926)   —    —  

Total fair value of derivatives, net  $ (40,153) $ (57) $ 1,944  
 
  December 31, 2016  

  Designated  Not Designated  
  as Hedging  as Hedging  

Designation:  Instruments  Instruments  
     Foreign     Interest     Foreign  

Derivative contract type:  Exchange  Rate  Exchange  
Derivative classification:  Cash Flow  Cash Flow  Fair Value  
           
Fair value and location of derivative in the Consolidated Balance Sheet:           
Prepaids and other current assets  $ 1,178  $  —  $ 1,606  
Other long-term assets    —    —    —  
Other current liabilities   (23,503)  (147)  (866) 
Other long-term liabilities   (31,714)   —    —  

Total fair value of derivatives, net  $ (54,039) $ (147) $ 740  
 
The effects of derivative instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 were as
follows (in thousands):

  Three Months Ended March 31,  
  2017  2016  

  Designated as Hedging  Designated as Hedging  
Designation:  Instruments  Instruments  
     Foreign     Interest     Foreign     Interest  
Derivative contract type:  Exchange  Rate  Exchange  Rate  
Derivative classification:  Cash Flow  Cash Flow  Cash Flow  Cash Flow  
              

Amount of gain or (loss) recognized in Other comprehensive income (loss) - effective portion, net
of tax  $ (4,084) $ (52) $ (3,420) $ (133) 

              
Amount and location of net gain or (loss) reclassified from Accumulated OCI to income - effective
portion:              
Revenue  $ (6,806) $  —  $ (5,897) $ —  
Interest expense    —   (89)   —   (229) 
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  Three Months Ended March 31,  
  2017  2016  

Designation:     
Not Designated as 

Hedging Instruments     
Not Designated as 

Hedging Instruments  
Derivative contract type:  Foreign Exchange  Foreign Exchange  
                          
Derivative classification:  Forward Contracts  Fair Value  Forward Contracts  Fair Value  
              

Amount and location of net gain or (loss) recognized in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss):              

Costs of services  $  —  $  —  $  —  $  —  
Other income (expense), net  $  —  $ (56) $  —  $ 3,992  

 

 
 

 
 

 

(7) FAIR VALUE
The authoritative guidance for fair value measurements establishes a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. This hierarchy
requires that the Company maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are
as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, similar assets
and liabilities in markets that are not active or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. This includes
certain pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies and similar techniques that use significant unobservable inputs.

The following presents information as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 for the Company’s assets and liabilities required to be measured at fair value on a
recurring basis, as well as the fair value hierarchy used to determine their fair value.

Accounts Receivable and Payable  - The amounts recorded in the accompanying balance sheets approximate fair value because of their short-term nature.

Investments – The Company measures investments, including cost and equity method investments, at fair value on a nonrecurring basis when they are deemed to be
other-than-temporarily impaired. The fair values of these investments are determined based on valuation techniques using the best information available, and may include
market observable inputs, and discounted cash flow projections. An impairment charge is recorded when the cost of the investment exceeds its fair value and this
condition is determined to be other-than-temporary. As of March 31, 2017, the investment in CaféX Communication, Inc., which consists of the Company’s first quarter
2015 $9.0 million investment, the fourth quarter 2016 $3.2 million investment and the first quarter 2017 $1.1 million investment, is recorded at $13.3 million which
approximates fair value.
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Debt - The Company’s debt consists primarily of the Company’s Credit Agreement, which permits floating-rate borrowings based upon the current Prime Rate or LIBOR
plus a credit spread as determined by the Company’s leverage ratio calculation (as defined in the Credit Agreement). As of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the
Company had $182.0 million and $217.3 million, respectively, of borrowings outstanding under the Credit Agreement. During the first quarter of 2017 outstanding
borrowings accrued interest at an average rate of 1.8% per annum, excluding unused commitment fees. The amounts recorded in the accompanying Balance Sheets
approximate fair value due to the variable nature of the debt based on Level 2 inputs.

Derivatives - Net derivative assets (liabilities) are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The portfolio is valued using models based on market observable inputs,
including both forward and spot foreign exchange rates, interest rates, implied volatility, and counterparty credit risk, including the ability of each party to execute its
obligations under the contract. As of March 31, 2017, credit risk did not materially change the fair value of the Company’s derivative contracts.

The following is a summary of the Company’s fair value measurements for its net derivative assets (liabilities) as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 (in
thousands):
As of March 31, 2017              
  Fair Value Measurements Using     
     Quoted Prices in     Significant                 
  Active Markets  Other  Significant     
  for Identical  Observable  Unobservable     
  Assets  Inputs  Inputs     
  (Level 1)  (Level 2)  (Level 3)  At Fair Value  
Cash flow hedges  $ —  $ (40,153) $ —  $ (40,153) 
Interest rate swaps   —   (57)  —   (57) 
Fair value hedges   —   1,944   —   1,944  

Total net derivative asset (liability)  $ —  $ (38,266) $ —  $ (38,266) 
 
As of December 31, 2016
  Fair Value Measurements Using     
     Quoted Prices in     Significant                 
  Active Markets  Other  Significant     
  for Identical  Observable  Unobservable     
  Assets  Inputs  Inputs     
  (Level 1)  (Level 2)  (Level 3)  At Fair Value  
Cash flow hedges  $ —  $ (54,039) $ —  $ (54,039) 
Interest rate swaps   —   (147)  —   (147) 
Fair value hedges   —   740   —   740  

Total net derivative asset (liability)  $ —  $ (53,446) $ —  $ (53,446) 
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The following is a summary of the Company’s fair value measurements as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 (in thousands):
 
As of March 31, 2017
  Fair Value Measurements Using  
     Quoted Prices in           Significant  
  Active Markets for  Significant Other  Unobservable  
  Identical Assets  Observable Inputs  Inputs  
  (Level 1)  (Level 2)  (Level 3)  
Assets           

Derivative instruments, net  $ —  $ —  $ —  
Total assets  $ —  $ —  $ —  

           
Liabilities           

Deferred compensation plan liability  $ —  $ (11,150) $ —  
Derivative instruments, net   —   (38,266)  —  
Contingent consideration   —    —   (1,813) 

Total liabilities  $  —  $ (49,416) $ (1,813) 
 
As of December 31, 2016
  Fair Value Measurements Using  
     Quoted Prices in           Significant  
  Active Markets for  Significant Other  Unobservable  
  Identical Assets  Observable Inputs  Inputs  
  (Level 1)  (Level 2)  (Level 3)  
Assets           

Derivative instruments, net  $ —  $ —  $ —  
Total assets  $ —  $ —  $ —  

           
Liabilities           

Deferred compensation plan liability  $ —  $ (10,841) $ —  
Derivative instruments, net   —   (53,446)  —  
Contingent consideration   —   —   (1,808) 

Total liabilities  $  —  $ (64,287) $ (1,808) 
 
Deferred Compensation Plan — The Company maintains a non-qualified deferred compensation plan structured as a Rabbi trust for certain eligible employees.
Participants in the deferred compensation plan select from a menu of phantom investment options for their deferral dollars offered by the Company each year, which are
based upon changes in value of complementary, defined market investments. The deferred compensation liability represents the combined values of market investments
against which participant accounts are tracked.

Contingent Consideration — The Company recorded contingent consideration related to the acquisitions of rogenSi and Atelka. These contingent payables were
recognized at fair value using a discounted cash flow approach and a discount rate of 4.6% or 0%, respectively. The discount rates vary dependent on the specific risks of
each acquisition including the country of operation, the nature of services and complexity of the acquired business, and other similar factors. These measurements were
based on significant inputs not observable in the market. The Company recorded interest expense each period using the effective interest method until the future value of
these contingent payables reached their expected future value. Interest expense related to all recorded contingent payables is included in Interest expense in the
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss).
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The Company recorded contingent consideration related to a revenue servicing agreement with Welltok in the fourth quarter of 2016, in which a maximum of $1.25 million
will be paid over eight quarters based on the dollar value of revenue earned by the Company. The contingent payable was recognized at fair value of $1.25 million as of
December 31, 2016.

A rollforward of the activity in the Company’s fair value of the contingent consideration payable is as follows (in thousands):
 
                       Imputed        
  December 31,        Interest /  March 31,  
  2016  Acquisitions  Payments  Adjustments  2017  
                 
Welltok  $ 1,250  $  —  $  —  $  —  $ 1,250  
Atelka   558    —    —    5   563  
Total  $ 1,808  $  —  $  —  $  5  $ 1,813  
 

 
 
(8) INCOME TAXES
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the accounting literature for income taxes, which requires recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for
the expected future income tax consequences of transactions that have been included in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Under this method, deferred tax assets
and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates in effect for the year in which
the differences are expected to reverse. Quarterly, the Company assesses the likelihood that its net deferred tax assets will be recovered. Based on the weight of all
available evidence, both positive and negative, the Company records a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets when it is more-likely-than-not that a future tax
benefit will not be realized.

In accordance with ASC 740, the Company recorded a liability during the first quarter of 2016 of $1.1 million, inclusive of penalties and interest, for uncertain tax positions.
See Note 1 for further information on this item.

During the second quarter of 2016, $0.3 million of liability was released due to the closing of a statute of limitations.

During the third quarter of 2016, $0.8 million of liability was released due to the favorable outcome of communications with a revenue authority related to site compliance
for locations with tax advantaged status.

During the third quarter of 2016, $0.5 million of liability was released due to the closing of a statute of limitations.

As of March 31, 2017, the Company had $47.1 million of gross deferred tax assets (after a $9.8 million valuation allowance) and net deferred tax assets (after deferred tax
liabilities) of $46.8 million related to the U.S. and international tax jurisdictions whose recoverability is dependent upon future profitability.

The effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 was 21.1% and 27.6%, respectively.

The Company’s U.S. income tax returns filed for the tax years ending December 31, 2013 to present remain open tax years. The Company has been notified of the intent
to audit, or is currently under audit of, income taxes for rogenSi in Hong Kong for the tax year 2014, Canada for tax years 2009 and 2010, and the state of Michigan in the
United States for tax years 2012 through 2015. Although the outcome of examinations by taxing authorities are always uncertain, it is the opinion of management that the
resolution of these audits will not have a material effect on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements. During the second quarter of 2016, the Company
successfully closed their audit in the U.S. for the acquired entity Technology Solutions Group for the tax year 2012 (prior to acquisition) with no changes. The Company
also closed in the fourth quarter of 2016 their audit in New Zealand for tax years 2013 and 2014 with no changes.
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The Company has been granted “Tax Holidays” as an incentive to attract foreign investment by the governments of the Philippines and Costa Rica. Generally, a Tax
Holiday is an agreement between the Company and a foreign government under which the Company receives certain tax benefits in that country, such as exemption from
taxation on profits derived from export-related activities. In the Philippines, the Company has been granted multiple agreements with an initial period of four years and
additional periods for varying years, expiring at various times between 2011 and 2020. The aggregate effect on income tax expense for the three months ended March 31,
2017 and 2016 was approximately $3.1 million and $2.5 million, respectively, which had a favorable impact on diluted net income per share of $0.07 and $0.05,
respectively.

 
(9) RESTRUCTURING CHARGES AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
Restructuring Charges
During the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company continued restructuring activities primarily associated with reductions in the Company’s capacity,
workforce and related management in several of the segments to better align the capacity and workforce with current business needs.

A summary of the expenses recorded in Restructuring, net in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the three months ended
March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, is as follows (in thousands):
  Three Months Ended March 31,  
  2017     2016     
        
Reduction in force        

Customer Management Services  $ (36) $ 88  
Customer Growth Services    —    —  
Customer Technology Services   79    —  
Customer Strategy Services    —    —  

Total  $ 43  $ 88  
 
  Three Months Ended March 31,  
  2017     2016     
        
Facility exit and other charges        

Customer Management Services  $ 42  $  —  
Customer Growth Services    —    —  
Customer Technology Services   84    —  
Customer Strategy Services    —    —  

Total  $ 126  $  —  
 
A rollforward of the activity in the Company’s restructuring accruals is as follows (in thousands):
 
  Reduction  Facility Exit and     
  in Force  Other Charges  Total  
           
Balance as of December 31, 2016  $ 1,468  $ 98  $ 1,566  

Expense   105   126   231  
Payments   (399)  (113)  (512) 
Change due to foreign currency    2    —    2  
Change in estimates   (62)   —   (62) 

Balance as of March 31, 2017  $ 1,114  $ 111  $ 1,225  
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The remaining restructuring accruals are expected to be paid or extinguished during 2017 and are all classified as current liabilities within Other accrued expenses in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Impairment Losses
During each of the periods presented, the Company evaluated the recoverability of its leasehold improvement assets at certain customer engagement centers. An asset is
considered to be impaired when the anticipated undiscounted future cash flows of its asset group are estimated to be less than the asset group’s carrying value. The
amount of impairment recognized is the difference between the carrying value of the asset group and its fair value. To determine fair value, the Company used Level 3
inputs in its discounted cash flows analysis. Assumptions included the amount and timing of estimated future cash flows and assumed discount rates. During the three
months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company recognized no losses related to leasehold improvement assets.

 
(10) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Credit Facility
On February 11, 2016, the Company entered into a First Amendment to our June 3, 2013 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Amended and Restated Security
Agreement (collectively the “Credit Agreement”) for a senior secured revolving credit facility (the “Credit Facility”) with a syndicate of lenders led by Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association. The Credit Agreement provides for a secured revolving credit facility that matures on February 11, 2021 with an initial maximum aggregate
commitment of $900.0 million, and an accordion feature of up to $1.2 billion in the aggregate, if certain conditions are satisfied.

Base rate loans bear interest at a rate equal to the greatest of (i) Wells Fargo’s prime rate, (ii) one half of 1% in excess of the federal funds effective rate, and (iii) 1.25% in
excess of the one month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”); plus in each case a margin of 0% to 0.75% based on the Company’s net leverage ratio. Eurodollar
loans bear interest at LIBOR plus a margin of 1.0% to 1.75% based on the Company’s net leverage ratio. Alternate currency loans bear interest at rates applicable to their
respective currencies.

Letter of credit fees are one eighth of 1% of the stated amount of the letter of credit on the date of issuance, renewal or amendment, plus an annual fee equal to the
borrowing margin for Eurodollar loans.

The Credit Facility commitment fees are payable to the lenders in an amount equal to the unused portion of the Credit Facility at a rate of 0.125% to 0.250% based on the
Company’s net leverage ratio.

The Company is obligated to maintain a maximum net leverage ratio of 3.25 to 1.00, and a minimum interest coverage ratio of 2.50 to 1.00.

The Company primarily utilizes its Credit Agreement to fund working capital, general operations, stock repurchases, dividends and other strategic activities, such as the
acquisitions described in Note 2. As of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Company had borrowings of $182.0 million and $217.3 million, respectively, under its
Credit Agreement, and its average daily utilization was $410.4 million and $313.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Based on the
current level of availability based on the covenant calculations, the Company’s remaining borrowing capacity was approximately $420 million as of March 31, 2017. As of
March 31, 2017, the Company was in compliance with all covenants and conditions under its Credit Agreement.

Letters of Credit
As of March 31, 2017, outstanding letters of credit under the Credit Agreement totaled $3.9 million and primarily guaranteed workers’ compensation and other insurance
related obligations. As of March 31, 2017, letters of credit and contract performance guarantees issued outside of the Credit Agreement totaled $6.5 million.
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Legal Proceedings
From time to time, the Company has been involved in legal actions, both as plaintiff and defendant, which arise in the ordinary course of business. The Company accrues
for exposures associated with such legal actions to the extent that losses are deemed both probable and reasonably estimable. To the extent specific reserves have not
been made for certain legal proceedings, their ultimate outcome, and consequently, an estimate of possible loss, if any, cannot reasonably be determined at this time.

Based on currently available information and advice received from counsel, the Company believes that the disposition or ultimate resolution of any current legal
proceedings, except as otherwise specifically reserved for in its financial statements, will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, cash
flows or results of operations.
 
(11) NONCONTROLLING INTEREST
 
The following table reconciles equity attributable to noncontrolling interest (in thousands):
 
  Three Months Ended March 31,  
     2017     2016  
Noncontrolling interest, January 1  $ 6,981  $ 7,201  
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest   922   680  
Dividends distributed to noncontrolling interest   (945)  (900) 
Foreign currency translation adjustments   92   60  
Other    —   10  
Equity-based compensation expense   (291)  31  

Noncontrolling interest, March 31  $ 6,759  $ 7,082  
 

 
 
(12) MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE NONCONTROLLING INTEREST
The Company held an 80% interest in iKnowtion until January 1, 2016 when the additional 20% was purchased. In the event iKnowtion met certain EBITDA targets for
calendar year 2015, the purchase and sale agreement required TeleTech to purchase the remaining 20% interest in iKnowtion in 2016 for an amount equal to a multiple of
iKnowtion’s 2015 EBITDA as defined in the purchase and sale agreement. These terms represented a contingent redemption feature which the Company determined was
probable of being achieved.

Based on final EBITDA for 2015, the payment for the remaining 20% was completed in April 2016 for the value shown in the table below in accordance with the purchase
and sale agreement.

The Company recorded the mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interest at the redemption value based on the corresponding EBITDA multiples as prescribed in the
purchase and sale agreement at the end of each reporting period. At the end of each reporting period the changes in the redemption value were recorded in retained
earnings. Since the EBITDA multiples as defined in the purchase and sale agreement are below the current market multiple, the Company has determined that there was
no preferential treatment to the noncontrolling interest shareholders resulting in no impact to earnings per share.
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A rollforward of the mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interest is included in the table below (in thousands).
 
  Three Months Ended March 31,  
     2017     2016  
Mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interest, January 1  $  —  $ 4,131  
Net income attributable to mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interest    —    —  
Working capital distributed to mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interest    —    —  
Change in redemption value    —   (26) 
Purchase of mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interest    —    —  
Mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interest, March 31  $  —  $ 4,105  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(13) ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
 
The following table presents changes in the accumulated balance for each component of other comprehensive income (loss), including current period other
comprehensive income (loss) and reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (in thousands):
              

     Foreign                    
  Currency  Derivative        
  Translation  Valuation, Net  Other, Net     
  Adjustment  of Tax  of Tax  Totals  
              
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at December 31, 2015  $ (71,196) $ (26,885) $ (3,284) $ (101,365) 
              

Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications   9,896   9,032   377   19,305  
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)    —   (3,553)  (202)  (3,755) 

Net current period other comprehensive income (loss)   9,896   5,479   175   15,550  
              
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at March 31, 2016  $ (61,300) $ (21,406) $ (3,109) $ (85,815) 
              
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at December 31, 2016  $ (92,008) $ (32,393) $ (2,563) $ (126,964) 
              

Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications   6,136   12,320   246   18,702  
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)    —   (4,136)  (117)  (4,253) 

Net current period other comprehensive income (loss)   6,136   8,184   129   14,449  
              
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at March 31, 2017  $ (85,872) $ (24,209) $ (2,434) $ (112,515) 
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The following table presents the classification and amount of the reclassifications from Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to the statement of
comprehensive income (loss) (in thousands):
 
          
        Statement of  
  For the Three Months Ended March 31,  Comprehensive Income  
     2017     2016     (Loss) Classification  
          
Derivative valuation          

Gain (loss) on foreign currency forward exchange contracts  $ (6,806) $ (5,897) Revenue  
Loss on interest rate swaps   (89)  (229) Interest expense  
Tax effect   2,759   2,573  Provision for income taxes  

  $ (4,136) $ (3,553) Net income (loss)  
          
Other          

Actuarial loss on defined benefit plan  $ (130) $ (224) Cost of services  
Tax effect   13   22  Provision for income taxes  

  $ (117) $ (202) Net income (loss)  
 

 
 
 

(14) NET INCOME PER SHARE
 
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted shares for the periods indicated (in thousands):
 
   Three Months Ended March 31,
         2017     2016
      
Shares used in basic earnings per share calculation   45,950  48,368

Effect of dilutive securities:      
Stock options    6  18
Restricted stock units   342  347
Performance-based restricted stock units   17  13

Total effects of dilutive securities   365  378
Shares used in dilutive earnings per share calculation   46,315  48,746
 
For the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, options to purchase 0.1 million and 0.1 million shares of common stock, respectively, were outstanding, but not
included in the computation of diluted net income per share because the exercise price exceeded the value of the shares and the effect would have been anti-dilutive. For
the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, restricted stock units (“RSUs”) of 0.0 million and 0.2 million, respectively, were outstanding, but not included in the
computation of diluted net income per share because the effect would have been anti-dilutive.
 
(15) EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS
All equity-based awards to employees are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) at the fair value of the award on the grant date.
During the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company recognized total compensation expense of $2.0 million and $2.8 million, respectively. Of the total
compensation expense, $0.4 million and $0.7 million was recognized in Cost of services and $1.6 million and $2.1 million was recognized in Selling, general and
administrative, respectively, during the three months ended 2017 and 2016.
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Restricted Stock Unit Grants
During the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company granted 624,862 and 18,806 RSUs, respectively, to new and existing employees, which vest in
equal installments over four or five years. The Company recognized compensation expense related to RSUs of $2.3 million and $2.8 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. As of March 31, 2017, there was approximately $18.0 million of total unrecognized compensation cost (including the impact of
expected forfeitures) related to RSUs granted under the Company’s equity plans.

Stock Options
The Company recognized compensation expense related to subsidiary performance options of $(0.3) million and $0.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively. The option benefit for 2017 is a resulted from the Company concluding that the performance targets of the subsidiary will not be achieved.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS
 
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (“Litigation Reform
Act”), relating to our future operations, expected financial condition and prospects, results of operation, continuation of client relationships, and other business matters that
are based on our current expectations, assumptions, business strategy, and projections with respect to the future, and are not a guarantee of performance. Forward-
looking statements may appear throughout this report, including without limitation, the following sections: Part I, Item 2, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and Part II, Item 1A, “Risk Factors.” Forward-looking statements generally can be identified by words such as “anticipates,”
“believes,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “predicts,” “projects,” “will be,” “will continue,” “will likely result,” and similar expressions. When we discuss our
strategy, plans, goals, initiatives, or objectives, we are making forward-looking statements. For those statements, we claim the protection of the safe harbor for forward-
looking statements contained in the Litigation Reform Act.
We caution you not to rely unduly on any forward-looking statements. Actual results may differ materially from what is expressed in the forward-looking statements, and
you should review and consider carefully the risks, uncertainties and other factors that affect our business and may cause such differences, as outlined but not limited to
factors discussed in the “Risk Factors” section of our 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K. The risk factors we wish for you to be aware of in particular include but are not
limited to the risk inherent in the volatile and uncertain economic conditions, the fact that a large portion of our revenue is generated from a limited number of clients and
the loss of one or more of these clients or a large portion of one client’s business could adversely effect our results of operations, the risk of client consolidation, the
possibility that the current trend among clients to outsource their customer care may not continue, the competitiveness of our markets, the risk of information systems
breach and the related impact on our clients and their data, our geographic concentration, the risk inherent in the terms of our contracts that we do not always have the
opportunity to negotiate, the risk related to our international footprint, how our foreign currency exchange risk can adversely impact our results of operations, the risk of
changes in law that impact our business and our ability to comply with all the laws that relate to our operations, the risk related to the reliability of the information
infrastructure that we use and our ability to deliver uninterrupted service to our clients, the risk of not being able to forecast demand for services accurately and the related
impact on capacity utilization, our inability to attract and retain qualified and skilled personnel, impact of changing technologies on our services and solutions, the restrictive
covenants contained in our credit facility that may impact our ability to execute our strategy and operate our business, the supply chain disruption related risk, the risk to
innovation due to unforeseen intellectual property infringement, the risk related to our M&A activity and our ability to identify, acquire and properly integrate acquired
businesses in accordance with our strategy, the controlling shareholder risk, and the volatility of our stock price that may result in loss of investment.  
The forward-looking statements are based on information available as of the date that this Form 10-Q is filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) and we undertake no obligation to update them, except as may be required by applicable laws. They are based on numerous assumptions and developments that
are not within our control. Although we believe these forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot assure you they will turn out to be correct.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Executive Summary
TeleTech Holdings, Inc. (“TeleTech”, “the Company”, “we”, “our” or “us”) is a leading global provider of technology enabled customer experience services. We help leading
brands improve customer experiences and operational effectiveness through a unique combination of technological innovation and operational expertise. Our portfolio of
solutions includes consulting, technology, operations and analytics to enable a seamless customer experience across every interaction channel and phase of the customer
lifecycle. Our solutions are supported by 48,000 employees delivering services in 23 countries from 82 customer engagement centers on six continents. Our revenue for
the quarter ended March 31, 2017 was $338 million.

Since our establishment in 1982, we have helped clients strengthen their customer relationships, brand recognition and loyalty by simplifying and personalizing
interactions with their customers. We deliver thought leadership, technology and innovation that create customer strategies designed to differentiate our clients from their
competition; data analytics that personalize interactions and increase customer value; and integration services that connect clients’ customer relationship management
(“CRM”) system to a cloud-based collaboration platform, leading to customer interactions that are seamless and relevant.

Our services are value-oriented, outcome-based, and delivered on a global scale across all of our business segments: Customer Management Services (“CMS”),
Customer Growth Services (“CGS”), Customer Technology Services (“CTS”) and Customer Strategy Services (“CSS”). Our integrated customer experience managed
services platform differentiates the Company by combining strategic consulting, data analytics, process optimization, system design and integration, operational
excellence, and technology solutions and services.

We have developed tailored expertise in the automotive, communications, financial services, government, healthcare, logistics, media and entertainment, retail,
technology, travel and transportation industries. We target customer-focused industry leaders in the Global 1000 and serve approximately 300 global clients.

To improve our competitive position in a rapidly changing market and stay strategically relevant to our clients, we continue to invest in innovation and growth businesses,
diversifying our heritage business process outsourcing services of our CMS segment into higher-value consulting, data analytics, digital marketing and technology-enabled
services. Of the $338.3 million in revenue we reported in the current period, approximately 25.5% or $86.2 million came from the CGS, CTS and CSS segments, focused
on customer-centric strategy, growth and technology-based services, with the remainder of our revenue coming from the heritage business process outsourcing focused
CMS segment.

Our strong balance sheet, cash flows from operations and access to debt and capital markets have historically provided us the financial flexibility to effectively fund our
organic growth, capital expenditures, strategic acquisitions and incremental investments. Additionally, we continue to return capital to our shareholders via an ongoing
stock repurchase program and regular semi-annual dividends. As of March 31, 2017, our cumulative authorized repurchase allowance was $762.3 million, of which we
repurchased 45.8 million shares for $729.1 million. For the period from April 1, 2017 through April 30, 2017, we repurchased 177 thousand additional shares. The stock
repurchase program does not have an expiration date.
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On February 24, 2015, our Board of Directors adopted a dividend policy, with the intent to distribute a periodic cash dividend to stockholders of our common stock, after
consideration of, among other things, TeleTech’s performance, cash flows, capital needs and liquidity factors. Given our cash flow generation and balance sheet strength,
we believe cash dividends and early returns to shareholders through share repurchases, in balance with our investments in innovation and strategic acquisitions, align
shareholder interests with the needs of the Company. The initial dividend of $0.18 per common share was paid on March 16, 2015 to shareholders of record as of
March 6, 2015. A second dividend of $0.18 per common share was paid on October 14, 2015 to shareholders of record as of September 30, 2015. A third dividend of
$0.185 per common share was paid on April 15, 2016 to shareholders of record as of March 31, 2016. A fourth dividend of $0.20 per common share was paid on October
14, 2016 to shareholders of record as of October 3, 2016. Effective February 23, 2017, the Board of Directors authorized an additional semi-annual dividend of $0.22 per
common share, which was paid on April 14, 2017 to shareholders of record as of March 31, 2017.

Our Integrated Service Offerings and Business Segments
We have four operating and reportable segments, which provide an integrated set of services including:

Customer Strategy Services
We typically begin by engaging our clients at a strategic level. Through our strategy and operations, analytics, learning and performance, change management and
consulting expertise, we help our clients design, build and execute their customer engagement strategies. We help our clients to better understand and predict their
customers’ behaviors and preferences along with their current and future economic value. Using proprietary analytic models, we provide the insight clients need to build
the business case for customer centricity, to better optimize their marketing spend and then work alongside them to help implement our recommendations. A key
component of this segment involves instilling a high performance culture through management and leadership alignment and process optimization.

Customer Technology Services
Once the design of the customer engagement is completed, our ability to architect, deploy and host or manage the client’s customer management environment becomes a
key enabler to achieving and sustaining the client’s customer engagement vision. Given the proliferation of mobile communication technologies and devices, we enable
our clients’ operations to interact with their customers across the growing array of channels including email, social networks, mobile, web, SMS text, voice and chat. We
design, implement and manage cloud, on-premise or hybrid customer management environments to deliver a consistent and superior experience across all touch points
on a global scale that we believe result in higher quality, lower costs and reduced risk for our clients. Through our Humanify™ platform, we also provide data-driven
context aware software-as-a-service (“SaaS”) based solutions that link customers seamlessly and directly to appropriate resources, any time and across any channel.

Customer Management Services
We design and manage clients’ front-to-back office processes to deliver just-in-time, personalized, multi-channel interactions. Our front-office solutions seamlessly
integrate voice, chat, email, e-commerce and social media to optimize the customer experience for our clients. In addition, we manage certain client back-office processes
to enhance their customer-centric view of relationships and maximize operating efficiencies. Our delivery of integrated business processes via our onshore, offshore or
work-from-home associates reduces operating costs and allows customer needs to be met more quickly and efficiently, resulting in higher satisfaction, brand loyalty and a
stronger competitive position for our clients.

Customer Growth Services
We offer integrated sales and marketing solutions to help our clients boost revenue in new, fragmented or underpenetrated business-to-consumer or business-to-business
markets. We deliver approximately $3 billion in client revenue annually via the discovery, acquisition, growth and retention of customers through a combination of our
highly trained, client-dedicated sales professionals and our proprietary Revana Analytic Multichannel PlatformTM. This platform continuously aggregates individual customer
information across all channels into one holistic view so as to ensure more relevant and personalized communications.
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Based on our clients’ requirements, we provide our services on an integrated cross-business segment and on a discrete basis.

Financial Highlights
In the first quarter of 2017, our revenue increased 8.3% to $338.3 million over the same period in 2016 including an increase of 0.3% or $1.0 million due to foreign
currency fluctuations. This increase in revenue is comprised of an increase from the Atelka acquisition and organic growth across all four of the segments. Revenue,
adjusted for the $1.0 million increase related to foreign exchange, increased by $24.8 million, or 7.9%, over the prior year.

Our first quarter 2017 income from operations increased 49.2% to $26.5 million or 7.8% of revenue, from $17.8 million or 5.7% of revenue in the first quarter of 2016. This
increase is primarily due to increases in CMS and CGS volumes, the operating income optimization actions the Company executed in the second half of 2016 including
restructuring of the sales and marketing functions and several IT support functions, a deprioritization of certain non-essential business and activities, improvement in our
people, site and technology utilization and a $4.0 million increase due to foreign currency fluctuations. Income from operations in the first quarter of 2017 and 2016
included $0.2 million and $0.1 million of restructuring charges and asset impairments, respectively.

Our offshore customer engagement centers serve clients based in the U.S. and in other countries and spans five countries with 22,700 workstations, representing 58% of
our global delivery capability. Revenue for our CMS and CGS segments that is provided in these offshore locations was $109 million and represented 38% of our revenue
for the first quarter of 2017, as compared to $107 million and 41% of our revenue for 2016.

Our cash flow from operations and available credit allowed us to finance a significant portion of our capital needs and stock repurchases through internally generated cash
flows. At March 31, 2017, we had $66.5 million of cash and cash equivalents, total debt of $197.6 million, and a total debt to total capitalization ratio of 34.5%.

We internally target capacity utilization in our customer engagement centers at 80% to 90% of our available workstations. As of March 31, 2017, the overall capacity
utilization in our centers was 78%. The table below presents workstation data for all of our centers as of March 31, 2017 and 2016. Our utilization percentage is defined as
the total number of utilized production workstations compared to the total number of available production workstations.
               
  March 31, 2017  March 31, 2016  
     Total               Total            
  Production    % In  Production    % In  
  Workstations  In Use  Use  Workstations  In Use  Use  
              
Total centers              

Sites open >1 year  38,643  29,962  78 %  31,489  22,484  71 %
Sites open <1 year  270  270  100 %  4,315  3,530  82 %

Total workstations  38,913  30,232  78 %  35,804  26,014  73 %
 
While we continue to see demand from all geographic regions to utilize our offshore delivery capabilities and expect this trend to continue with our clients, some of our
clients have regulatory pressures to bring the services onshore to the United States. In light of these trends we plan to continue to selectively retain and grow capacity and
expand into new offshore markets, while maintaining appropriate capacity in the United States. As we grow our offshore delivery capabilities and our exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations increases, we continue to actively manage this risk via a multi-currency hedging program designed to minimize operating margin volatility.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
Refer to Part I, Item I, Financial Statements, Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of recently issued accounting pronouncements.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, as well as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. We regularly review our estimates and assumptions. These
estimates and assumptions, which are based upon historical experience and on various other factors believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, form the basis
for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Reported amounts and disclosures may have
been different had management used different estimates and assumptions or if different conditions had occurred in the periods presented. For further information, please
refer to the discussion of all critical accounting policies in Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2016.

Results of Operations
Three months ended March 31, 2017 compared to three months ended March 31, 2016
The tables included in the following sections are presented to facilitate an understanding of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations and present certain information by segment for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 (amounts in thousands). All inter-company transactions
between the reported segments for the periods presented have been eliminated.

Customer Management Services
              
  Three Months Ended March 31,       
     2017     2016     $ Change     % Change  
Revenue  $ 252,079  $ 227,921  $ 24,158  10.6 %
Operating Income   20,596   15,595   5,001  32.1 %
Operating Margin   8.2 %   6.8 %       
 
The increase in revenue for the Customer Management Services segment was attributable to a $28.8 million net increase in client programs including the Atelka
acquisition and a $1.0 million increase due to foreign currency fluctuations, offset by program completions of $5.6 million.

The operating income as a percentage of revenue increased to 8.2% in the first quarter of 2017 as compared to 6.8% in the prior period. The operating margin increased
due to higher revenue including the acquisition of Atelka, a $3.9 million benefit due to improved foreign exchange trends, increased capacity utilization, and efficiencies
realized from the expense rationalization activities completed during the send half of 2016. Included in the operating income was amortization related to acquired
intangibles of $0.5 million and $0.2 million for the quarters ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Customer Growth Services
              
  Three Months Ended March 31,       
     2017     2016     $ Change     % Change  
Revenue  $ 33,658  $ 33,519  $ 139  0.4 %
Operating Income   2,410   495   1,915  386.9 %
Operating Margin   7.2 %   1.5 %       
 
The increase in revenue for the Customer Growth Services segment was due to a $4.3 million increase in client programs offset by program completions of $4.3 million.

The operating income as a percentage of revenue increased to 7.2% in the first quarter of 2017 as compared to 1.5% in the prior period. This increase in margin is related
to reductions in the Digital Marketing losses and increases in pricing for several of our large programs. Included in the operating income was amortization related to
acquired intangibles of zero and $0.7 million for the quarters ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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Customer Technology Services
              
  Three Months Ended March 31,       
     2017     2016     $ Change     % Change  
Revenue  $ 35,693  $ 35,268  $ 425  1.2 %
Operating Income   3,057   2,780   277  10.0 %
Operating Margin   8.6 %   7.9 %       
 
The increase in revenue for the Customer Technology Services segment was driven by increases for CISCO including higher product sales offset by decreases in the
Avaya offerings as we wind down this business unit.

The operating income as a percentage of revenue increased to 8.6% in the first quarter of 2017 as compared to 7.9% in the prior period. This increase is primarily due to a
decrease in amortization as well as profit from the increased revenue. Included in the operating income was amortization related to acquired intangibles of $0.3 million and
$1.2 million for the quarters ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Customer Strategy Services             
  Three Months Ended March 31,       
     2017     2016     $ Change     % Change  
Revenue  $ 16,847  $ 15,702  $ 1,145  7.3 %
Operating Income   427   (1,117)  1,544  138.2 %
Operating Margin   2.5 %   (7.1)%       
 
The increase in revenue for the Customer Strategy Services segment was related to growth in the Service Optimization and Insights practices across multiple delivery
regions.

The operating income as a percentage of revenue increased to 2.5% in the first quarter of 2017 as compared to a loss of (7.1)% in the prior period. The positive operating
income is related to the growth in revenue which increased the utilization of the consultants as well as reduced losses for the PRG Middle East unit which we are holding
for sale. Included in the operating income was amortization expense of $0.6 million and $0.8 million for the quarters ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Interest Income (Expense)
For the three months ended March 31, 2017 interest income increased to $0.4 million from $0.2 million in the same period in 2016. Interest expense increased to $2.3
million during 2017 from $2.0 million during 2016 primarily due to larger outstanding balances on the line of credit.

Income Taxes
The effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2017 was 21.1%. This compares to an effective tax rate of 27.6% for the comparable period of 2016. The
effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2017 was influenced by earnings in international jurisdictions currently under an income tax holiday and the
distribution of income between the U.S. and international tax jurisdictions. Without a $0.3 million of expense related to return to provision adjustments, a $0.3 million
benefit related to excess taxes on equity compensation, and a $0.1 million of benefit from restructuring expenses, the Company’s effective tax rate for the first quarter of
2017 would have been 21.3%.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Our principal sources of liquidity are our cash generated from operations, our cash and cash equivalents, and borrowings under our Credit Facility. During the three
months ended March 31, 2017, we generated positive operating cash flows of $74.9 million. We believe that our cash generated from operations, existing cash and cash
equivalents, and available credit will be sufficient to meet expected operating and capital expenditure requirements for the next 12 months.

30

 



Table of Contents

We manage a centralized global treasury function in the United States with a focus on concentrating and safeguarding our global cash and cash equivalents. While the
majority of our cash is held outside the U.S., we prefer to hold U.S. Dollars in addition to the local currencies of our foreign subsidiaries. We expect to use our offshore
cash to support working capital and growth of our foreign operations. While there are no assurances, we believe our global cash is protected given our cash management
practices, banking partners and utilization of diversified, high quality investments.

We have global operations that expose us to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations that may positively or negatively impact our liquidity. We are also exposed to
higher interest rates associated with our variable rate debt. To mitigate these risks, we enter into foreign exchange forward and option contracts and interest rate swaps
through our cash flow hedging program. Please refer to Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk, Foreign Currency Risk, for further discussion.

The following discussion highlights our cash flow activities during the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
We consider all liquid investments purchased within 90 days of their original maturity to be cash equivalents. Our cash and cash equivalents totaled $66.5 million and
$55.3 million as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively. We diversify the holdings of such cash and cash equivalents considering the financial condition
and stability of the counterparty institutions.

We reinvest our cash flows to grow our client base, expand our infrastructure, for investment in research and development, for strategic acquisitions, for the purchase of
our outstanding stock and to pay dividends.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
For the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, net cash flows provided by operating activities was $74.9 million and $12.8 million, respectively. The increase was
primarily due to a $28.3 million increase in cash collected from accounts receivable, a $20.7 million decrease in payments made for operating expenses and a $9.8 million
increase in collections for deferred revenue.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
For the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, we reported net cash flows used in investing activities of $14.2 million and $15.1 million, respectively. The
decrease was due to a $2.9 million decrease in capital expenditures offset by an additional $1.2 million funding for an investment.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
For the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, we reported net cash flows used in (provided by) financing activities of $49.8 million and $(12.3) million,
respectively. The change in net cash flows from 2016 to 2017 was primarily due to a $68.3 million decrease in the Credit Facility and a $2.9 million increase in purchases
of our outstanding common stock, offset by a decrease in the contingent consideration and hold-back acquisition payments of $7.6 million and a decrease of $1.9 million
related to the 2016 payment of debt issuance costs.

Free Cash Flow
Free cash flow (see “Presentation of Non-GAAP Measurements” below for the definition of free cash flow) increased for the three months ended March 31, 2017
compared to the three months ended March 31, 2016 due to an increase in cash flow from working capital and a decrease in capital expenditures. Free cash flow was
$62.9 million and $(2.2) million for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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Presentation of Non-GAAP Measurements
Free Cash Flow
Free cash flow is a non-GAAP liquidity measurement. We believe that free cash flow is useful to our investors because it measures, during a given period, the amount of
cash generated that is available for debt obligations and investments other than purchases of property, plant and equipment. Free cash flow is not a measure determined
by GAAP and should not be considered a substitute for “income from operations,” “net income,” “net cash provided by operating activities,” or any other measure
determined in accordance with GAAP. We believe this non-GAAP liquidity measure is useful, in addition to the most directly comparable GAAP measure of “net cash
provided by operating activities,” because free cash flow includes investments in operational assets. Free cash flow does not represent residual cash available for
discretionary expenditures, since it includes cash required for debt service. Free cash flow also includes cash that may be necessary for acquisitions, investments and
other needs that may arise.

The following table reconciles net cash provided by operating activities to free cash flow for our consolidated results (in thousands):
   Three Months Ended March 31,
         2017     2016  
Net cash provided by operating activities   $ 74,932  $ 12,786  

Less: Purchases of property, plant and equipment    12,035   14,949  
Free cash flow   $ 62,897  $ (2,163) 
 
Obligations and Future Capital Requirements
 
Future maturities of our outstanding debt and contractual obligations as of March 31, 2017 are summarized as follows (in thousands):                 
     Less than     1 to 3     3 to 5     Over 5        
  1 Year  Years  Years  Years  Total  
                 
Credit Facility  $ 4,993   9,935   186,554    —  $ 201,482  
Equipment financing arrangements   3,227   3,897   1,425    —   8,549  
Contingent consideration   1,171   642    —    —   1,813  
Purchase obligations   11,643   11,213   2,132    —   24,988  
Operating lease commitments   41,201   59,244   34,376   29,930   164,751  
Other debt   2,420   3,838   834    —   7,092  

Total  $ 64,655  $ 88,769  $ 225,321  $ 29,930  $ 408,675  
 

(1)Includes estimated interest payments based on the weighted-average interest rate, unused commitment fees, current interest rate swap arrangements, and outstanding
debt as of March 31, 2017.

 
· Contractual obligations to be paid in a foreign currency are translated at the period end exchange rate.

· Purchase obligations primarily consist of outstanding purchase orders for goods or services not yet received, which are not recognized as liabilities in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets until such goods and/or services are received.

· The contractual obligation table excludes our liabilities of $3.7 million related to uncertain tax positions because we cannot reliably estimate the timing of cash
payments.

Our outstanding debt is primarily associated with the use of funds under our Credit Agreement to fund working capital, repurchase our common stock, pay dividends, and
for other cash flow needs across our global operations.
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Future Capital Requirements
We expect total capital expenditures in 2017 to be approximately 4.6% of revenue. Approximately 70% of these expected capital expenditures are to support growth in our
business and 30% relate to the maintenance for existing assets. The anticipated level of 2017 capital expenditures is primarily driven by new client contracts and the
corresponding requirements for additional delivery center capacity as well as enhancements to our technological infrastructure.

The amount of capital required over the next 12 months will depend on our levels of investment in infrastructure necessary to maintain, upgrade or replace existing assets.
Our working capital and capital expenditure requirements could also increase materially in the event of acquisitions or joint ventures, among other factors. These factors
could require that we raise additional capital through future debt or equity financing. We can provide no assurance that we will be able to raise additional capital upon
commercially reasonable terms acceptable to us.

Client Concentration
During the three months ended March 31, 2017, one of our clients represented 9.6% of our total revenue. Our five largest clients accounted for 34.1% and 35.8% of our
consolidated revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. We have experienced long-term relationships with our top five clients, ranging
from nine to 20 years, with the majority of these clients having completed multiple contract renewals with us. The relative contribution of any single client to consolidated
earnings is not always proportional to the relative revenue contribution on a consolidated basis and varies greatly based upon specific contract terms. In addition, clients
may adjust business volumes served by us based on their business requirements. We believe the risk of this concentration is mitigated, in part, by the long-term contracts
we have with our largest clients. Although certain client contracts may be terminated for convenience by either party, we believe this risk is mitigated, in part, by the service
level disruptions and transition/migration costs that would arise for our clients.

The contracts with our five largest clients expire between 2017 and 2020. Additionally, a particular client may have multiple contracts with different expiration dates. We
have historically renewed most of our contracts with our largest clients. However, there is no assurance that future contracts will be renewed, or if renewed, will be on
terms as favorable as the existing contracts.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact our consolidated financial position, consolidated results of operations, or consolidated cash flows due to adverse
changes in financial and commodity market prices and rates. Market risk also includes credit and non-performance risk by counterparties to our various financial
instruments. We are exposed to market risk due to changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates (as measured against the U.S. dollar); as well as credit
risk associated with potential non-performance of our counterparty banks. These exposures are directly related to our normal operating and funding activities. We enter
into derivative instruments to manage and reduce the impact of currency exchange rate changes, primarily between the U.S. dollar/Philippine peso, the U.S.
dollar/Mexican peso, and the Australian dollar/Philippine peso. We enter into interest rate derivative instruments to reduce our exposure to interest rate fluctuations
associated with our variable rate debt. To mitigate against credit and non-performance risk, it is our policy to only enter into derivative contracts and other financial
instruments with investment grade counterparty financial institutions and, correspondingly, our derivative valuations reflect the creditworthiness of our counterparties. As of
the date of this report, we have not experienced, nor do we anticipate, any issues related to derivative counterparty defaults.
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Interest Rate Risk
We entered into interest rate derivative instruments to reduce our exposure to interest rate fluctuations associated with our variable rate debt. The interest rate on our
Credit Agreement is variable based upon the Prime Rate, the Federal Funds rate, or LIBOR and, therefore, is affected by changes in market interest rates. As of March 31,
2017, we had $182.0 million of outstanding borrowings under the Credit Agreement. Based upon average outstanding borrowings during the three months ended
March 31, 2017, interest accrued at a rate of approximately 1.8% per annum. If the Prime Rate or LIBOR increased by 100 basis points during the quarter, there would be
a $1.0 million of additional interest expense per $100.0 million of outstanding borrowing under the Credit Agreement.

The Company’s interest rate swap arrangements as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 were as follows:
 
                     Contract     Contract  
  Notional  Variable Rate  Fixed Rate  Commencement  Maturity  
  Amount  Received  Paid  Date  Date  
Swap 2  $ 15 million  1 - month LIBOR  3.14 %  May 2012  May 2017  
   15 million          
 
Foreign Currency Risk
Our subsidiaries in Bulgaria, Costa Rica, Mexico, Poland, and the Philippines use the local currency as their functional currency for paying labor and other operating costs.
Conversely, revenue for these foreign subsidiaries is derived principally from client contracts that are invoiced and collected in U.S. dollars or other foreign currencies. As a
result, we may experience foreign currency gains or losses, which may positively or negatively affect our results of operations attributed to these subsidiaries. For the three
months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, revenue associated with this foreign exchange risk was 28% and 32% of our consolidated revenue, respectively.

In order to mitigate the risk of these non-functional foreign currencies weakening against the functional currencies of the servicing subsidiaries, which thereby decreases
the economic benefit of performing work in these countries, we may hedge a portion, though not 100%, of the projected foreign currency exposure related to client
programs served from these foreign countries through our cash flow hedging program. While our hedging strategy can protect us from adverse changes in foreign
currency rates in the short term, an overall weakening of the non-functional foreign currencies would adversely impact margins in the segments of the servicing subsidiary
over the long term.

Cash Flow Hedging Program
To reduce our exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations associated with forecasted revenue in non-functional currencies, we purchase forward and/or option
contracts to acquire the functional currency of the foreign subsidiary at a fixed exchange rate at specific dates in the future. We have designated and account for these
derivative instruments as cash flow hedges for forecasted revenue in non-functional currencies.

While we have implemented certain strategies to mitigate risks related to the impact of fluctuations in currency exchange rates, we cannot ensure that we will not
recognize gains or losses from international transactions, as this is part of transacting business in an international environment. Not every exposure is or can be hedged
and, where hedges are put in place based on expected foreign exchange exposure, they are based on forecasts for which actual results may differ from the original
estimate. Failure to successfully hedge or anticipate currency risks properly could adversely affect our consolidated operating results.
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Our cash flow hedging instruments as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 are summarized as follows (in thousands). All hedging instruments are forward
contracts, except as noted.
 
             

     Local                          
  Currency  U.S. Dollar   % Maturing   Contracts  
  Notional  Notional   in the next   Maturing  
As of March 31, 2017  Amount  Amount   12 months   Through  
Philippine Peso  11,795,000   249,872  30.0 %   August 2021  
Mexican Peso  1,924,000   117,978   17.2 %   May 2021  
    $ 367,850        
 

 
     Local                    
  Currency  U.S. Dollar        
  Notional  Notional        
As of December 31, 2016  Amount  Amount        
Philippine Peso  14,315,000   301,134       
Mexican Peso  2,089,000   129,375        
    $ 430,509        
 

(1)Includes contracts to purchase Philippine pesos in exchange for New Zealand dollars and Australian dollars, which are translated into equivalent U.S. dollars on
March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016.

 
The fair value of our cash flow hedges at March 31, 2017 was assets/(liabilities) (in thousands):
 
     Maturing in the  
     March 31, 2017     Next 12 Months  
Philippine Peso  $ (18,002) $ (9,375) 
Mexican Peso   (22,151)  (9,865) 
  $ (40,153) $ (19,240) 
 
Our cash flow hedges are valued using models based on market observable inputs, including both forward and spot foreign exchange rates, implied volatility, and
counterparty credit risk. The increase in fair value from December 31, 2016 largely reflects a broad weakening in the U.S. dollar.

We recorded net losses of approximately $6.8 million and $5.9 million for settled cash flow hedge contracts and the related premiums for the three months ended
March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. These losses were reflected in Revenue in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss). If the
exchange rates between our various currency pairs were to increase or decrease by 10% from current period-end levels, we would incur a material gain or loss on the
contracts. However, any gain or loss would be mitigated by corresponding increases or decreases in our underlying exposures.

Other than the transactions hedged as discussed above and in Part I, Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the majority of the
transactions of our U.S. and foreign operations are denominated in their respective local currency. However, transactions are denominated in other currencies from time-
to-time. We do not currently engage in hedging activities related to these types of foreign currency risks because we believe them to be insignificant as we endeavor to
settle these accounts on a timely basis. For the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, approximately 26% and 20%, respectively, of revenue was derived from
contracts denominated in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar. Our results from operations and revenue could be adversely affected if the U.S. Dollar strengthens
significantly against foreign currencies.

Fair Value of Debt and Equity Securities
We did not have any investments in marketable debt or equity securities as of March 31, 2017 or December 31, 2016.
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ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
This report includes the certifications of our Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (the “CFO”) required by Rule 13a-14 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”). See Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2. This Item 4 includes information concerning the controls and control evaluations referred to in
those certifications.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, as amended) are designed to provide reasonable assurance
that information required to be disclosed in reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods
specified in SEC rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including our CEO and CFO, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosures.

Management of the Company, with the participation of its CEO and CFO, evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end
of the period. Based on that evaluation, as of the end of the period covered by this Form 10-Q, the Company’s CEO and CFO have concluded that the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures were not effective because of the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting.

At the year ended December 31, 2016, material weaknesses existed in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting which continued to exist as of March 31,
2017. These material weaknesses are fully described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016.

While these material weaknesses did not result in errors that were material to our annual or interim financial statements, they could result in misstatements of our
consolidated financial statements and disclosures which would result in material misstatement of our consolidated financial statements and disclosures which would not be
prevented or detected.

Notwithstanding such material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting, our CEO and CFO have concluded that our consolidated financial statements
included in this Form 10-Q present fairly, in all material respects, our financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Controls
Our management, including the CEO and CFO, believes that any disclosure controls and procedures or internal controls and procedures, no matter how well conceived
and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of internal control are met. Further, the design of internal controls must consider
the benefits of controls relative to their costs. Inherent limitations within internal controls include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that
breakdowns can occur because of simple errors or mistakes. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more
people, or by unauthorized override of controls. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance
with associated policies or procedures. While the objective of the design of any system of controls is to provide reasonable assurance of the effectiveness of controls, such
design is also based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and such assumptions, while reasonable, may not take into account all
potential future conditions. Thus, even effective internal control over financial reporting can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives. Therefore,
because of the inherent limitations in cost effective internal controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and may not be prevented or detected.
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Remediation Efforts and Status of Remaining Material Weaknesses
Revenue: During 2016, management took the necessary steps to redesign the control framework, including the implementation of (i) a revenue quality assurance
organization, (ii) standardized contract and invoice review and approval templates, and (iii) a document storage system for improved organization and evidence of
review.  Additionally, management established a quarterly control owner certification process and invested in employee training. Management has completed the design
and implementation of this control framework and has tested the revenue controls in the quarter ending December 31, 2016. Management will continue to test the controls
for revenue in 2017 to ensure they have operated for a sufficient period of time before concluding on remediation.

Impairments: During 2016, management has taken the necessary steps to redesign the control framework, including implementation of specific preparation and review
procedures to (i) ensure the accuracy of the valuation models used to calculate fair market values, (ii) validate the source of the financial forecasts, and (iii) evidence the
assessment of the models for reasonableness.  In addition, TeleTech has engaged a third party valuation expert to assist management with the underlying valuation
models supporting the goodwill and intangible impairment assessments. Management has completed the design and implementation of the control framework and has
tested the impairment controls in the quarter ending December 31, 2016. Management will continue to test the controls for impairment in 2017 to ensure they have
operated for a sufficient period of time before concluding on remediation.

Control Environment: During 2016 TeleTech invested significantly in the quality of our accounting talent including management, technical, process improvement and
financial system roles. Additionally, we implemented a number of programs to: improve our talent acquisition and retention platforms; enhance technical, transactional and
control knowledge of our accounting teams; create a culture of accountability and control. These programs have significantly improved the stability of our global accounting
organization. In order to consider this material weakness to be fully remediated, we believe additional time is needed to demonstrate sustainability as it relates to our
internal control over financial reporting and improvements made to our complement of resources.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended March 31, 2017 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely
to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
 

 
PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

 
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

 
Part I, Item 1. Financial Statements, Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-Q is hereby incorporated by reference.
 

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
There were no material changes to the risk factors described in Item 1A. Risk Factors described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2016.
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ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Following is the detail of the issuer purchases made during the quarter ended March 31, 2017:

                Total Number of     Approximate Dollar  
       Shares  Value of Shares that  
       Purchased as  May Yet Be  
       Part of Publicly  Purchased Under  
  Total Number     Announced  the Plans or  
  of Shares  Average Price  Plans or  Programs (In  
Period  Purchased  Paid per Share  Programs  thousands)  
December 31, 2016         $ 19,906  
January 1, 2017 - January 31, 2017  105,000  $ 30.41  105,000  $ 16,713  
February 1, 2017 - February 28, 2017  128,840  $ 29.84  128,840  $ 37,868  
March 1, 2017 - March 31, 2017  152,500  $ 30.30  152,500  $ 33,248  

Total  386,340     386,340     
 

(1)In November 2001, our Board of Directors (“Board”) authorized a stock repurchase program with the objective of increasing stockholder returns. The Board periodically
authorizes additional increases to the program. The most recent Board authorization to purchase additional common stock occurred in February 2017, whereby the
Board increased the program allowance by $25.0 million. Since inception of the program through March 31, 2017, the Board has authorized the repurchase of shares
up to a total value of $762.3 million, of which we have purchased 45.8 million shares on the open market for $729.1 million. As of March 31, 2017 the remaining amount
authorized for repurchases under the program was approximately $33.2 million. The stock repurchase program does not have an expiration date.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
 
   

Exhibit No.     Exhibit Description
   

10.91*
 

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement for the senior secured revolving credit facility with a syndicate of lenders led by
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as agent, swing line and fronting lender dated as of February 27, 2017.

   
10.96*

 
Purchase Agreement dated as of April 3, 2017 by and among OptumHealth Holdings, LLC, Connextions, Inc., and TeleTech Healthcare Solutions,
Inc.

   
31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350)

   
31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350)

   
32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350)

   
32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350)

   
101.INS** XBRL Instance Document

   
101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

   
101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

   
101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

   
101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

   
101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

   
   

   
 * Filed or furnished herewith.
   

**

 

Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following documents formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language):  (i) Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, (ii) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 (unaudited), (iii) Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 (unaudited), (iv) Consolidated Statements of
Stockholders’ Equity as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2017 (unaudited), and (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the
three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 (unaudited).
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SIGNATURES
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto
duly authorized.

 
   

   TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC.
  (Registrant)
   
Date: May 9, 2017 By: /s/ Kenneth D. Tuchman
  Kenneth D. Tuchman
  Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
   
Date: May 9, 2017 By: /s/ Regina M. Paolillo
  Regina M. Paolillo
  Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT INDEX
 

   

Exhibit No.     Exhibit Description
   

10.91*
 

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement for the senior secured revolving credit facility with a syndicate of lenders led by
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as agent, swing line and fronting lender dated as of February 27, 2017.

   
10.96*

 
Purchase Agreement dated as of April 3, 2017 by and among OptumHealth Holdings, LLC, Connextions, Inc., and TeleTech Healthcare Solutions,
Inc.

   
31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350)

   
31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350)

   
32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350)

   
32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350)

   
101.INS** XBRL Instance Document

   
101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

   
101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

   
101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

   
101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

   
101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

   
   

   
 * Filed or furnished herewith.
   

**

 

Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following documents formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language):  (i) Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, (ii) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 (unaudited), (iii) Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 (unaudited), (iv) Consolidated Statements of
Stockholders’ Equity as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2017 (unaudited), and (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the
three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 (unaudited).
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SECOND AMENDMENT

TO AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT
 

This SECOND AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “Amendment”) is dated as of February 27, 2017, and
effective in accordance with Section 3 below, by and among TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC., a Delaware limited liability company (the “Administrative
Borrower”), certain subsidiaries of the Administrative Borrower party hereto, the Lenders (as defined below) party hereto and WELLS FARGO BANK,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking association, as administrative agent for the Lenders party to the Credit Agreement (“Agent”).

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE:

WHEREAS, the Borrowers, the financial institutions party thereto (the “Lenders”) and Agent are parties to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
dated as of June 3, 2013 (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Credit Agreement”).

WHEREAS, the Borrowers have requested, and subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, Agent and the Lenders party hereto have agreed, to
certain amendments to the Credit Agreement as more specifically set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as
follows:

1.  Capitalized Terms.  All capitalized undefined terms used in this Amendment (including, without limitation, in the introductory paragraph and the
statement of purpose hereto) shall have the meanings assigned thereto in the Credit Agreement.

2.  Amendment to Credit Agreement.  The parties hereto agree that Section 5.3(b) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended by replacing such section in
its entirety with the following:

“(b) Annual Audit Report.  Administrative Borrower shall deliver to Agent, within ninety (90) days after the end of each fiscal year of
US Borrower, an annual audit report of the Companies for that year prepared on a Consolidated basis and certified by an unqualified opinion of an
independent public accountant reasonably satisfactory to Agent to the effect that the Companies’ consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Companies on a Consolidated basis in conformity with
GAAP, which report shall include balance sheets and statements of income (loss), stockholders’ equity and cash-flow for that period.”

3.  Conditions to Effectiveness.  This Amendment shall be deemed to be effective upon receipt by Agent of counterparts of this Amendment duly executed
by Agent, Required Lenders and by an Authorized Officer of the Administrative Borrower and each Credit Party.

4.  Representations and Warranties.  By its execution hereof, each Credit Party hereby represents and warrants to Agent and the Lenders that, as of the date
hereof after giving effect to this Amendment:
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(a) each of the representations and warranties made by the Credit Parties in or pursuant to the Loan Documents is true and correct in all
material respects (except to the extent that such representation and warranty is subject to a materiality or Material Adverse Effect qualifier, in which case it
shall be true and correct in all respects), in each case, on and as of the date hereof as if made on and as of the date hereof, except to the extent that such
representations and warranties relate to an earlier date, in which case such representations and warranties are true and correct in all material respects as of
such earlier date;

(b) no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing as of the date hereof or after giving effect hereto;

(c) it has the right and power and is duly authorized and empowered to enter into, execute and deliver this Amendment and to perform and
observe the provisions of this Amendment;

(d) this Amendment has been duly authorized and approved by such Credit Party’s board of directors or other governing body, as applicable,
and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of such Credit Party, enforceable against such Credit Party in accordance with their respective terms,
subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and subject to general principles
of equity, regardless of whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law; and

(e) the execution, delivery and performance of this Amendment do not conflict with, result in a breach in any of the provisions of, constitute a
default under, or result in the creation of a Lien (other than Liens permitted under Section 5.9 of the Credit Agreement) upon any assets or property of any
Company under the provisions of, such Company’s Organizational Documents or any material agreement to which such Company is a party.

5.  Effect of this Amendment.  Except as expressly provided herein, the Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documents shall remain unmodified and in
full force and effect.  Except as expressly set forth herein, this Amendment shall not be deemed (a) to be a waiver of, or consent to, a modification or amendment of,
any other term or condition of the Credit Agreement or any other Loan Document, (b) to prejudice any other right or rights which Agent or the Lenders may now
have or may have in the future under or in connection with the Credit Agreement or the other Loan Documents or any of the instruments or agreements referred to
therein, as the same may be amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, (c) to be a commitment or any other undertaking or
expression of any willingness to engage in any further discussion with the Borrowers or any other Person with respect to any waiver, amendment, modification or
any other change to the Credit Agreement or the Loan Documents or any rights or remedies arising in favor of the Lenders or Agent, or any of them, under or with
respect to any such documents or (d) to be a waiver of, or consent to or a modification or amendment of, any other term or condition of any other agreement by and
among the Credit Parties, on the one hand, and Agent or any other Lender, on the other hand.  References in the Credit Agreement to “this Agreement” (and indirect
references such as “hereunder”, “hereby”, “herein”, and “hereof”) and in any Loan Document to the “Credit Agreement” shall be deemed to be references to the
Credit Agreement as modified hereby. 

6.  Reaffirmations.  Each Credit Party (a) consents to this Amendment and agrees that the transactions contemplated by this Amendment shall not limit or
diminish the obligations of such Person under, or release such Person from any obligations under, any of the Loan Documents to which it is a party, (b) confirms and
reaffirms its obligations under each of the Loan Documents to which it is a party and (c) agrees that each of the Loan Documents to which it is a party remain in full
force and effect and are hereby ratified and confirmed.
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7.  Governing Law.  THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW OF THE STATE
OF NEW YORK AND THE RESPECTIVE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BORROWERS, AGENT, AND THE LENDERS SHALL BE GOVERNED BY
NEW YORK LAW, WITHOUT REGARD TO THE PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAWS.

8.  Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, and by different parties hereto in separate counterparts and by
facsimile signature, each of which counterparts when so executed and delivered shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute
but one and the same agreement.

9.  Electronic Transmission.  Delivery of this Amendment by facsimile, telecopy or pdf shall be effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart
hereof; provided that, upon the request of any party hereto, such facsimile transmission or electronic mail transmission shall be promptly followed by the original
thereof.

10.  Nature of Agreement.  For purposes of determining withholding Taxes imposed under FATCA from and after the effective date of this Amendment, the
Administrative Borrower and Agent shall treat (and the Lenders hereby authorize Agent to treat) the Credit Agreement (as amended by this Amendment) as not
qualifying as a “grandfathered obligation” within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.1471-2(b)(2)(i).

[Signature Pages Follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be duly executed as of the date and year first above written.

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE BORROWER:

 
TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC., as Borrower
 
 
By:

Name:

Title:
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TELETECH SERVICES CORPORATION, as Guarantor
 
 
By: 
Name: 
Title:

 
TELETECH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC., as Guarantor

By: 
Name: 
Title:

 
REVANA, INC., as Guarantor

By: 
Name: 
Title:

 
TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS GROUP, INC., as Guarantor

By: 
Name: 
Title:

 
ELOYALTY, LLC, as Guarantor

By: 
Name: 
Title:

 
TELETECH GOVERNMENT SOLUTIONS, LLC, as Guarantor

By: 
Name: 
Title:

 

 



Exhibit 10.91
TTEC CONSULTING, INC., as Guarantor

By: 
Name: 
Title:

 
TELETECH SOUTH AMERICA HOLDINGS, LLC, as Guarantor

By: 
Name: 
Title:

 
TELETECH HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC., as Guarantor

By: 
Name: 
Title:
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AGENT AND LENDERS:
 
 
WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Agent and Lender
 
 
By:

Name:

Title:
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BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.,  as Lender

By: 
Name: 
Title:
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HSBC BANK USA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,  as Lender

By: 
Name: 
Title:
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COMPASS BANK,  as Lender

By: 
Name: 
Title:
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BANK OF THE WEST,  as Lender

By: 
Name: 
Title:
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KEYBANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,  as Lender

By: 
Name: 
Title:
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U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,  as Lender

By: 
Name: 
Title:
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THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY,  as Lender

By: 
Name: 
Title:
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JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.,  as Lender

By: 
Name: 
Title:
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PURCHASE AGREEMENT

dated as of

April 3, 2017

by and among

OPTUMHEALTH HOLDINGS, LLC, AS SELLER,

CONNEXTIONS, INC.,

AND

TELETECH HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC., AS BUYER
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PURCHASE AGREEMENT

THIS PURCHASE AGREEMENT, dated as of April 3, 2017 (this “Agreement”), is entered into by and among TELETECH HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS,
INC., a Delaware corporation (“Buyer”), CONNEXTIONS, INC., a Florida corporation (the “Company”), and OPTUMHEALTH HOLDINGS, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company (“Seller”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Seller owns all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of the Company (the “Shares”);

WHEREAS, Buyer desires to purchase and acquire all of the Shares from Seller, and Seller desires to sell and transfer the Shares to Buyer, upon the terms
and subject to the conditions set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, contemporaneously upon entry into this Agreement, Buyer and Seller are entering into that certain transition services and employee leasing
agreements.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements herein contained, and intending to be
legally bound hereby, Buyer, the Company and Seller hereby agree as follows:

Article I 
DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.1.  Certain Defined Terms.  Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this Agreement have the meanings set forth in Schedule A.
 

 

 
Article II 

THE PURCHASE AND SALE

SECTION 2.1.  Purchase and Sale of the Shares.  On the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement, at the Closing, Buyer shall purchase
and acquire from Seller, and Seller shall sell, convey, transfer, assign and deliver to Buyer, all right, title and interest (record and beneficial) of Seller to the Shares,
free and clear of all Liens.

 

SECTION 2.2.  Consideration.  On the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement, at the Closing, the aggregate consideration to be paid by
Buyer for the Shares shall equal the Purchase Price, as adjusted in accordance with Section  2.5.

 

SECTION 2.3.  Pre-Closing Adjustment.  Attached as Exhibit B hereto is a statement prepared by Seller and delivered to Buyer (the “Estimated
Closing Statement”) that sets forth its good faith estimate of the Estimated Purchase Price, including its good faith estimates in reasonable detail, as of the Effective
Time, of (a) the amount of Closing Indebtedness and (b) the amount of the Transaction Expenses.
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SECTION 2.4.  Closing. 

 

(a)  The consummation of the sale and purchase of the Shares (the “Closing”) shall take place simultaneously with the execution and delivery
of this Agreement on the date hereof at the offices of Faegre Baker Daniels LLP, 2200 Wells Fargo Center, 90 South Seventh Street, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402,
or remotely by the electronic transmission of documents and wire transfer of funds (except with respect to any instruments validly transferable under applicable Law
only by physical delivery) (the date on which the Closing occurs, the “Closing Date”). The Closing shall be effective as of 12:01 a.m. on the Closing Date (the
“Effective Time”).

(b)  At the Closing, Buyer shall:

(i)  pay Seller, by wire transfer of immediately available funds, the aggregate amount of Estimated Purchase Price;

(ii)  pay all Closing Indebtedness in accordance with the pay-off letters delivered to Buyer by Seller from each lender to the Company
or Connextions HCI, evidencing the aggregate amount of such Closing Indebtedness (including any interest accrued thereon and any prepayment or similar
penalties and expenses associated with the prepayment of such Closing Indebtedness on the Closing Date);

(iii)  pay all Transaction Expenses in accordance with written payment instructions delivered by Seller to Buyer;

(iv)  deliver to Seller counterparts of the Transaction Documents (other than this Agreement), duly executed by Buyer; and

(v)  deliver to Seller a certificate, dated as of the Closing Date, of the Secretary, Assistant Secretary or corollary officer of Buyer
certifying that attached thereto is a complete and correct copy of the resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors of Buyer authorizing the execution,
delivery and performance of this Agreement and all other agreements executed in connection herewith by such entity and the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereunder and thereunder.

(c)  At the Closing, Seller shall:

(i)  deliver to Buyer an assignment of the Shares (which are uncertificated) duly endorsed in blank or any other proper instrument of
assignment endorsed in blank in proper form for transfer;

(ii)  deliver to Buyer counterparts of the Transaction Documents (other than this Agreement), duly executed by Seller or an Affiliate of
Seller (as applicable);

(iii)  deliver to Buyer resignations of each director and officer of the Company and Connextions HCI, resigning from all positions with
each of the Company and Connextions HCI effective at the Closing as permitted by Law;

(iv)  deliver to Buyer evidence, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Buyer, of the release of all Liens on the assets of the
Company and Connextions HCI, other than Permitted Liens;
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(v)  deliver to Buyer duly executed certification(s), in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Buyer, that Seller is not a foreign
person in accordance with Treasury Regulations Section 1.1445-2(b);

(vi)  deliver to Buyer an executed copy of the Contribution Agreement, duly executed by the Company and each of the other parties
thereto, along with schedules thereto; and

(vii)  deliver to Buyer one or more certificates, dated as of the Closing Date, of the Secretary, Assistant Secretary or corollary officer of
Seller and the Company certifying that attached thereto is a complete and correct copy of the resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors or other
governing body (as applicable) of Seller and the Company authorizing the execution, delivery and performance of all Transaction Documents to which
Seller or the Company, as applicable, is a party and all other agreements executed in connection therewith by such entity and the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereunder and thereunder.

All payments made by Buyer pursuant to this Section  2.4(b) shall be made by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the accounts specified
in writing at least two (2) Business Days prior to the Closing Date by Seller.

SECTION 2.5.  Post-Closing Adjustment.

(a)  As soon as reasonably practicable, but in no event later than three (3) Business Days following the date that is ninety (90) days after the
Closing Date, Seller shall prepare and cause to be delivered to Buyer a statement (the “Closing Statement”) setting forth, in reasonable detail, its calculations, as of
the Effective Time, of (i) the amount (if any) by which Net Working Capital exceeds Target Working Capital or the amount (if any) by which Target Working
Capital exceeds Net Working Capital, (ii) the amount of Closing Indebtedness, and (iii) the amount of the Transaction Expenses.

(b)  The Closing Statement shall be prepared, and all of the individual elements thereof, as applicable, used to calculate the Final Purchase Price
shall be determined, in accordance with the Net Working Capital Methodology.

(c)  As soon as reasonably practicable, and in no event more than three (3) Business Days following the date that is ninety (90) days after the
Closing Date, Buyer shall prepare and cause to be delivered to Seller a statement (the “Uncollected Receivables Statement”) setting forth, in reasonable detail, the
amounts of Closing Aged Receivables that have not been collected by Buyer and the Company Group within ninety (90) days after the Closing Date. Buyer shall
cause the Company Group to use commercially reasonable efforts to collect such Closing Aged Receivables within such ninety (90) day period; provided,  however,
that neither Buyer nor any member of the Company Group shall be required to commence any Legal Proceeding with respect to any Closing Aged Receivables. For
purposes of matching collected amounts to the appropriate invoices within the Closing Aged Receivables, the Parties agree that when a relevant customer indicates
that it is paying a specific invoice, then the Parties shall accept that indication in determining which outstanding invoices have been collected. Otherwise, Buyer
shall cause the Company Group to use commercially reasonable efforts, including through reasonably inquiry with the relevant customer, to identify the appropriate
invoice to which a payment is intended to be applied, provided that, if, following such efforts, the Company Group is unable to identify the appropriate invoice,
Buyer and the Company Group shall allocate all collected amounts from relevant customers to satisfy the oldest undisputed invoices within the Closing Aged
Receivables first before satisfying newer invoiced amounts (i.e., “first-in, first-out”).
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(d)  Following receipt of the Closing Statement and the Uncollected Receivables Statement, each of Buyer and Seller, as applicable, and its
accountants (subject to reasonable confidentiality and privilege restrictions) shall be permitted during the succeeding thirty (30)-day period (the “Review Period”)
reasonable access during regular business hours to Seller’s or Buyer’s (as applicable) relevant employees and outside accountants, and any documents, schedules or
workpapers used by Seller or Buyer in the preparation of the Closing Statement or the Uncollected Receivables Statement, respectively.

(e)  If Buyer disagrees with the calculation of the Net Working Capital, Closing Indebtedness or Transaction Expenses, on or prior to the last
day of the Review Period, Buyer shall notify Seller in writing of such disagreement with the calculation of the Net Working Capital, Closing Indebtedness or
Transaction Expenses, which notice shall set forth any such disagreement in reasonable detail, the specific item of the calculation in the Net Working Capital,
Closing Indebtedness or Transaction Expenses to which such disagreement relates and the specific (and reasonable) basis for each such disagreement (the “Buyer
Objection Notice”). If Buyer fails to deliver the Buyer Objection Notice within the Review Period, Seller’s calculation of the Net Working Capital, Closing
Indebtedness and Transaction Expenses shall be deemed to have been accepted by Buyer and shall be final and binding on the parties for all purposes hereunder and
used in computing the Final Purchase Price and the Post-Closing Adjustment Amount. If Buyer timely delivers the Buyer Objection Notice within the Review
Period, subject to Section  2.5(f) below, Buyer and Seller shall negotiate in good faith to resolve any such disagreement, and any resolution agreed to in writing by
Buyer and Seller shall be final and binding upon the parties hereto.

(f)  If Seller disagrees with the Uncollected Receivables Statement, on or prior to the last day of the Review Period, Seller shall notify Buyer in
writing of such disagreement, which notice shall set forth any such disagreement in reasonable detail, the specific item(s) within the Uncollected Receivables
Statement to which such disagreement relates and the specific (and reasonable) basis for each such disagreement (the “Seller Objection Notice” and, together with
the Buyer Objection Notice, each an “Objection Notice”). If Seller fails to deliver the Seller Objection Notice within the Review Period, Buyer’s Uncollected
Receivables Statement and the amounts reflected therein shall be deemed to have been accepted by Seller and shall be final and binding on the parties for all
purposes hereunder and used in computing the Final Purchase Price and the Post-Closing Adjustment Amount. If Seller timely delivers the Seller Objection Notice
within the Review Period, subject to Section 2.5(g) below, Buyer and Seller shall negotiate in good faith to resolve any such disagreement, and any resolution
agreed to in writing by Buyer and Seller shall be final and binding upon the parties hereto.

(g)  If Buyer and Seller are unable to resolve any disagreement as contemplated by Section  2.5(e) or Section 2.5(f) within forty-five (45) days
after delivery of an Objection Notice, then Buyer and Seller shall engage the dispute resolution group of a nationally recognized independent public accounting firm
or financial consulting firm mutually agreed upon by Buyer and Seller (the “Independent Auditor”), who shall, acting as experts and not as arbitrators, resolve the
issues remaining in dispute in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The parties agree that PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is not independent for this purpose.
The fees, costs and expenses of the Independent Auditor shall be borne by Buyer and Seller in proportion to the relative amount each party’s determination has been
modified. For example, if Buyer challenges the calculation of the Net Working Capital by an amount of $100,000, but the Independent Auditor determines that
Buyer has a valid claim for only $40,000, Seller shall bear 40% of the fees and expenses of the Independent Auditor and Buyer shall bear the other 60% of such fees
and expenses.

(h)  The parties shall instruct the Independent Auditor to consider only those items and amounts set forth in any Objection Notice that remain in
dispute. Further, the Independent Auditor’s determination shall be based solely on the relevant work papers and books and records relating to the Company and
Connextions HCI and oral presentations and written information provided by Buyer and Seller, which are in accordance with the terms and procedures set forth in
this Agreement (i.e., not on the
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basis of an independent review), and the Independent Auditor shall determine a value for any such disputed item which is equal to or between the final values
proposed by Buyer and Seller in their respective submissions.

(i)  The parties shall jointly instruct the Independent Auditor to make a determination as soon as practicable within thirty (30) days (or such
other time as Buyer and Seller shall agree in writing) after its engagement (i) whether the Closing Statement and the Uncollected Receivables Statement, as
applicable, were prepared in accordance with the terms of this Agreement or, alternatively, (ii) only with respect to the disputed items submitted to the Independent
Auditor, whether and to what extent (if any) the Closing Statement or Uncollected Receivables Statement requires adjustment and a written explanation in
reasonable detail of each such required adjustment, including the basis therefor. All negotiations pursuant to this Section  2.5 shall be treated as compromise and
settlement negotiations for purposes of Rule 408 of the Federal Rules of Evidence and comparable state rules of evidence, and all negotiations and submissions to
the Independent Auditor shall be treated as confidential information. The Independent Auditor shall be bound by a mutually agreeable confidentiality agreement.
The procedures of this Section  2.5 are exclusive and the determination of the Independent Auditor shall be final and binding on the parties. The decision rendered by
the Independent Auditor pursuant to this Section  2.5(i) may be filed as a judgment in any court of competent jurisdiction. Either party may seek specific
enforcement or take other necessary legal action to enforce any decision under this  SECTION 2.5. The other party’s only defense to such a request for specific
enforcement or other legal action shall be fraud by or upon the Independent Auditor. Absent such fraud, such other party shall reimburse the party seeking
enforcement for its expenses related to such enforcement.

(j)  Promptly following a final determination of the matters subject to this Section 2.5, the parties shall calculate the Purchase Price
consistently with such determination (the “Final Purchase Price”). If the Estimated Purchase Price is greater than the Final Purchase Price, the Purchase Price shall
be adjusted downward and Seller shall pay to Buyer the amount of such reduction, and if the Estimated Purchase Price is less than the Final Purchase Price, the
Purchase Price shall be adjusted upward and Buyer shall pay to Seller the amount of such increase (each, a “Post-Closing Adjustment Amount”). Payments in
respect of a Post-Closing Adjustment Amount shall be made within three (3) Business Days after the final determination of the amount of such increase or decrease
in accordance with this Section 2.5. Any Closing Aged Receivables that have not been collected by Buyer and the Company Group within ninety (90) days after the
Closing Date, and which ultimately reduce the Purchase Price in determining the Final Purchase Price, will within three (3) Business Days after the final
determination of the Post-Closing Adjustment Amount be transferred by Buyer to Seller to allow Seller to collect those Closing Aged Receivables for its own
account.

Article III 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY AND SELLER

Except as set forth in the corresponding section of the Disclosure Schedule to this Agreement, the Company and Seller, jointly and severally, hereby
represent and warrant to Buyer as follows in this  Article III as of the date hereof. Any information disclosed in one section of the Disclosure Schedule shall be
deemed, for purposes of disclosure made with respect to each section of this  Article III, to have been disclosed in each section of the Disclosure Schedule where the
application of such disclosure is readily apparent on its face from a reading of such disclosure.

SECTION 3.1.  Organization and Qualification.

(a)  Each of Seller, the Company and Connextions HCI is an entity duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of the
jurisdiction of its organization and has all
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requisite corporate or limited liability company power and authority, as the case may be, to conduct its business as it is now being conducted, to own or use the
properties and assets that it purports to own or use (in each case, after giving effect to the Contribution), except where the failure to have such power and authority
would not reasonably be expected to be material to the Business.

(b)  Seller, each member of the Company Group, and each Related Entity is duly qualified or licensed and in good standing to do business in
each jurisdiction in which the property owned, leased or operated by it or the nature of the business conducted by it (in each case, after giving effect to the
Contribution) makes such qualification or licensing necessary, except where the failure to be so duly qualified or licensed, or in good standing would not reasonably
be expected to be, individually or in the aggregate, material to the Business. Section 3.1(b) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and accurate list of each
jurisdiction in which each member of the Company Group is so qualified or licensed to transact business.

(c)  Seller has made available to Buyer accurate and complete copies of the Governing Documents, as currently in effect, of the Company and
Connextions HCI.

SECTION 3.2.  Capitalization; Subsidiaries.

(a)  The authorized capital stock (or any other form of equity interests) of the Company is accurately reflected in Section 3.2(a)(i) of the
Disclosure Schedule. The beneficial and record ownership of the Shares is set forth on Section 3.2(a)(ii) of the Disclosure Schedule. All of the Shares are duly
authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable. The Shares are not subject to, and were not issued in violation of, any preemptive rights or any other third
party rights created by statute, the Governing Documents of the Company or any agreement to which the Company is or was a party or by which the Company is or
was bound.

(b)  Except for the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, (i) there are no authorized or outstanding options, warrants, calls, preemptive
rights, subscriptions or other rights, agreements, arrangements or commitments of any character (whether or not conditional) relating to the issued or unissued
capital stock or membership interests of either the Company or Connextions HCI, obligating either the Company or Connextions HCI to issue, transfer or sell or
cause to be issued, transferred or sold any shares of capital stock, membership interests or other equity interest in such Person or securities convertible into or
exchangeable for such shares or equity interests, or obligating such Person to grant, extend or enter into any such option, warrant, call, subscription or other right,
agreement, arrangement or commitment; and (ii) there are no outstanding contractual obligations (contingent or otherwise) of either the Company or Connextions
HCI to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any capital stock or other equity interests in such Person, to make any payments based on the market price or value
of shares or other interests of such Person or to provide funds to make any investment (in the form of a loan, capital contribution or otherwise) in any other entity.

(c)  Neither the Company nor Connextions HCI has registered shares of its capital stock or any other equity interests under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder (collectively, the “Securities Act”), or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder (collectively, the “Exchange Act”) or registered itself under the Exchange Act.

(d)  The Company owns all of the issued and outstanding equity and ownership interests of Connextions HCI. Except as set forth in the
preceding sentence, neither the Company nor Connextions HCI: (i) has any Subsidiaries, or (ii) otherwise holds any direct or indirect equity or ownership interest in
any Person or other similar interest or any right (contingent or otherwise) to acquire the same.
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(e)  The authorized equity interests of Connextions HCI are accurately reflected in Section 3.2(e)(i) of the Disclosure Schedule. The beneficial
and record ownership of the issued and outstanding equity interests of Connextions HCI is set forth on Section 3.2(e)(ii) of the Disclosure Schedule. The equity
interests of Connextions HCI are not subject to, and were not issued in violation of, any preemptive rights or any other third party rights created by statute, the
Governing Documents of Connextions HCI or any agreement to which Connextions HCI is, or was, a party or by which Connextions HCI is, or was, bound. All of
the issued and outstanding equity interests of Connextions HCI have been validly issued, and are fully paid and are owned beneficially and of record by the
Company, free and clear of any Liens.

SECTION 3.3.  Title to the Shares.  Seller is the owner of all right, title and interest (record and beneficial) in and to the Shares, free and clear of any
Liens.

 

SECTION 3.4.  Authority Relative to the Transaction Documents.  Each member of the Company Group and Seller has all requisite power and
authority to enter into the Transaction Documents to which it is a party, to perform its obligations thereunder and to consummate the transactions contemplated by
the Transaction Documents to which it is a party. The execution, delivery and performance of each Transaction Document to which any member of the Company
Group or Seller is a party and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby by such Person have been duly and validly authorized by all requisite
action of such Person, and no other action on the part of such Person is necessary to authorize the execution, delivery or performance of the Transaction Documents
by it. Each of the Transaction Documents to which any member of the Company Group or Seller is a party has been duly executed and delivered by such Person and
constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of such Person enforceable against it in accordance with its respective terms, except to the extent that
enforceability thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization and other similar applicable Laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights
generally and by general principles of equity.

 

SECTION 3.5.  Financial Information.

 

(a)  Section 3.5(a) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth the (a) unaudited balance sheet of the Business as of December 31, 2016 and (b)
unaudited statement of contribution margin for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 (collectively, (a) and (b) are the “Financial Information”). The Financial
Information was prepared in good faith and was derived from the information contained in the books and records of the Business and fairly presents in all material
respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Business as of the respective dates thereof and for the periods indicated therein.

(b)  Section 3.5(b) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a full and complete list of all bank accounts and safe deposit boxes of each of the
Company and Connextions HCI, the number of each such account or box, and the names of the Persons authorized to draw on such accounts or to access such
boxes. All cash in such accounts is held in demand deposits and is not subject to any restriction as to withdrawal.

SECTION 3.6.  No Undisclosed Liabilities.  No member of the Company Group nor any Related Entity had as of December 31, 2016, or has incurred
since December 31, 2016, any Liabilities related to the Business, except for Liabilities (a) reflected or reserved against in the Financial Information (or the narratives
included therein), (b) incurred by such Person in the Ordinary Course of Business since December 31, 2016, or (c) that are Transaction Expenses reflected in the
Estimated Closing Statement.
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SECTION 3.7.  Consents and Approvals; No Violations.

 

(a)  Except for filings, permits, authorizations, consents and approvals as may be required under, and other applicable requirements of, the HSR
Act (if applicable), no filing with or notice to, and no permit, authorization, consent or approval of, a Governmental Entity is necessary for the execution, delivery
and performance by any member of the Company Group or Seller of this Agreement or the other Transaction Documents to which it is a party or the consummation
of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby.

(b)  Neither the execution, delivery and performance by any member of the Company Group or Seller of this Agreement or any other
Transaction Document by any member of the Company Group or Seller to which it is a party, nor the consummation by any member of the Company Group or
Seller of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, will (i) conflict with or result in a violation of any provision of the Governing Documents of any member
of the Company Group or Seller; (ii) result in a material violation or material breach of, or constitute (with or without due notice or lapse of time or both) a material
default (or give rise to any right of termination, amendment, cancellation or acceleration of any obligation or the loss of any material benefit under, or the creation of
any Lien) under, any of the terms, conditions or provisions of a Material Contract or a Governmental Approval to which any member of the Company Group or
Seller is a party or by which any of them is bound or affected; or (iii) violate in any material respect any Law applicable to any member of the Company Group or
Seller or their respective properties or assets comprising the Business.

SECTION 3.8.  Compliance with Laws.

(a)  Each member of the Company Group and each Related Entity is, and has since January 1, 2014 been, in compliance in all material respects
with all Laws applicable to the operation of the Business. No member of the Company Group nor any Related Entity has received, at any time since January 1, 2014,
any notice from any Governmental Entity regarding any actual or alleged failure to comply with, any Laws applicable to the Business in any material respect; and,
to the Knowledge of Seller, there is no investigation or review pending or threatened with respect to a violation of any Law applicable to the operation of the
Business in any material respect.

(b)  All Governmental Approvals necessary (i) for the conduct of the Business, (ii) operations of each member of the Company Group as
presently conducted, or (iii) necessary to own, lease and operate the respective properties of the Company Group or the Business, have been duly obtained by, or
transferred to, the Company or Connextions HCI and are, and have been since January 1, 2014, in full force and effect. None of the Company, Connextions HCI or,
with respect to the Business, any Related Entity has received, at any time since January 1, 2014, any written notice from any Governmental Entity regarding (1) any
actual or alleged violation of or failure to comply with any material requirement of any such Governmental Approval, or (2) any actual, proposed or potential
revocation, suspension, cancellation or any materially adverse modification of any such Governmental Approval. There are no proceedings pending or, to the
Knowledge of Seller, threatened or intended, that are reasonably expected to result in the revocation, cancellation or suspension, or any materially adverse
modification, of any such Governmental Approval, and the execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated thereby will not result in any such revocation, cancellation, suspension or modification.

(c)  No member of the Company Group nor any Related Entity (i) is a party to a Corporate Integrity Agreement or Certification of Corporate
Compliance or similar agreement with the Office of Inspector General of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, (ii) is a party to a Deferred
Prosecution Agreement with the Department of Justice (“DOJ”), (iii) is a party to or has reporting
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obligations pursuant to any settlement agreement entered into with any Governmental Entity, (iv) has, since January 1, 2014, been the subject of any Government
Program investigation or audit conducted by any Governmental Entity, (v) has, since January 1, 2014, been a defendant in any qui tam/False Claims Act litigation,
or (vi) has, since January 1, 2014, received any complaints or information from a whistleblower or any other Person that would indicate that any member of the
Company Group or any of its employees, agents, or contractors has violated, or is currently in violation of, any Law.

(d)  No member of the Company Group nor any Related Entity is enrolled in or receiving payments directly from any Government Program. No
member of the Company Group, no Related Entity, nor any of their respective employees, officers, directors or agents involved in the Business (i) is currently, or has
been since January 1, 2014, excluded, debarred, suspended from or otherwise ineligible to participate in the Government Programs, nor to the Knowledge of Seller
is any such action threatened; (ii) has been since January 1, 2014 subject to sanction pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7a or 1320a-8 or convicted of a criminal offense
related to the provision of healthcare items or services, including but not limited to a crime described at 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7b; or (iii) is listed in the United States
Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Inspector General’s List of Excluded Individuals/Entities, listed in the General Services Administration
Excluded Parties List System, or listed in the System for Award Management excluded list.

(e)  When acting as a Business Associate of a Covered Entity or another Business Associate (such terms as defined by HIPAA), each member
of the Company Group, OHCS, and OI has in effect agreements with each such Covered Entity and Business Associate that satisfy the requirements of HIPAA (“BA
Agreements”). Each member of the Company Group, OHCS, and OI has in effect with each entity acting as its Business Associate or Subcontractor (as defined in
HIPAA), as applicable, an agreement that satisfies all the requirements of HIPAA (“Vendor BA Agreements”). Each member of the Company Group, OHCS, and OI
is in compliance with (i) all such BA Agreements and (ii) all Contracts or other arrangements between a member of the Company Group, OHCS, or OI and other
business partners that apply to or restrict the use, disclosure or security of Personal Information. Each member of the Company Group, OHCS, and OI (A) has in
place written privacy and security policies, and (B) has the right pursuant to such policies and the BA Agreements to use and disclose Personal Information for the
purpose such information is and has been used and disclosed. Neither the execution, delivery or performance of this Agreement, nor the consummation of any of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including any transfer of any Personal Information resulting from such transactions, will violate any policies or any
BA Agreements of any member of the Company Group, OHCS, or OI as such currently exist or as existed at any time during which any of such Personal
Information was collected or obtained.

(f)  No member of the Company Group, OHCS, or OI has since January 1, 2014 received any written complaint from any Person or
Governmental Entity regarding such member of the Company Group’s, OHCS’s, OI’s, or any of their respective agents, employees or contractors’ uses or
disclosures of, or security practices or security incidents regarding, Personal Information. Except as set forth on Section 3.8(f) of the Disclosure Schedule, there have
not been since January 1, 2014 any breaches (as defined by HIPAA) involving Personal Information held or collected by or on behalf of any member of the
Company Group, OHCS, or OI. No member of the Company Group, OHCS, or OI has since January 1, 2014 notified, either voluntarily or as required by Law, any
affected individual, any customer, any Governmental Entity, or the media of any breach of Personal Information, and no member of the Company Group, OHCS, or
OI is currently planning to conduct any such notification or investigating whether any such notification is required. No member of the Company Group, OHCS, or
OI is subject to any pending suit, action, proceeding, or investigation, audit or review by a Governmental Entity, nor, to the Knowledge of Seller, has any such suit,
action, proceeding, or investigation, audit or review been threatened in writing, for a violation of HIPAA.
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(g)  No member of the Company Group, nor OHCS and OI, nor any director, officer, agent, employee, or Representative thereof involved in the
Business, nor any other Person associated with or acting therefor or on behalf thereof in connection with the Business, has, since January 1, 2014: (a) made,
authorized, offered or promised to make any unlawful payment or transfer of anything of value, whether money, property, or services, directly or indirectly through a
third party, to any officer, employee or Representative of a foreign government or any department, agency or instrumentality thereof, political party, political
campaign or public international organization, in violation of the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended (the “FCPA”), or any applicable Law of
similar effect; or (b) otherwise taken any action which would cause any member of the Company Group, OHCS, or OI to be in violation of the FCPA or any
applicable Law of similar effect. Each member of the Company Group, OHCS, and OI have instituted and maintain policies, procedures, periodic employee training,
internal audits, and internal controls designed to ensure, and which the members of the Company Group reasonably expect will continue to ensure, compliance with
the FCPA.

SECTION 3.9.  Property.

 

(a)  Owned Real Property. No member of the Company Group nor UHS owns any real property.

(b)  Leased Real Property.  Section 3.9(b)(i) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and correct list of all real property leased by any
member of the Company Group or, to the extent such real property is used in the Business, UHS, including the names of each of the parties to such lease and the
address of the applicable property. Section 3.9(b)(ii) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and correct list of all real property that both (i) is leased by an
Affiliate of any member of the Company Group or UHS (other than another member of the Company Group or UHS) and (ii) is the location of employment of any
Company Employee other than any Group B Employee (the real property listed in Sections 3.9(b)(i) and 3.9(b)(ii) of the Disclosure Schedule, collectively, the
“Leased Real Property”). The Company or Connextions HCI has a valid leasehold interest in such Leased Real Property, free and clear of any Liens other than
Permitted Liens. To the Knowledge of Seller, no party to any Lease set forth on Section 3.9(b)(i) of the Disclosure Schedule is in default under such Lease, and there
has not occurred any event which (whether with or without notice, lapse of time or the happening or occurrence of any other event) would constitute such a default.

(c)  Personal Property. All of the buildings, fixtures, leasehold improvements, computers, equipment and other tangible and intangible assets
owned by any member of the Company Group that are used or held for use in the conduct of the Business as currently conducted are in good condition and repair,
ordinary wear and tear excepted, and are suitable for immediate use in the Ordinary Course of Business. The Company and Connextions HCI have good and valid
title to, or a valid leasehold or licensed interest in, all of the material tangible assets used in the conduct of the Business, in each case free and clear of any Liens
other than Permitted Liens. After giving effect to the Contribution, all tangible personal property of the Company and Connextions HCI is in the possession of the
Company and Connextions HCI. The assets owned or leased by the Company and Connextions HCI as of the Effective Time, together with those assets and services
being provided under the Transition Services Agreement or Employment Leasing and Transition Agreement, are adequate to execute the daily operations of the
Business as conducted on the date of this Agreement.

SECTION 3.10.  Litigation.  There are no Legal Proceedings pending or, to the Knowledge of Seller, threatened in writing, against any member of the
Company Group or any Related Entity or otherwise relating to the Business or its properties or assets. There is no Legal Proceeding pending or, to the Knowledge of
Seller, threatened in writing, that questions the validity of this Agreement, the Contribution
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Agreement or of any action taken or to be taken by any member of the Company Group, Seller, or any Related Entity in connection with the Transaction Documents
or the transactions contemplated thereby.

 

SECTION 3.11.  Employee Benefit Plans.

(a)  Section 3.11(a) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and correct list of each material plan, policy, program or agreement
(including any “employee benefit plan,” within the meaning of Section 3(3) of ERISA) that is an employment, consulting, termination, severance, change in control,
retention or deferred compensation agreement, or an executive compensation, incentive bonus or other bonus, employee pension, profit-sharing, savings, retirement,
stock option or other equity based award, severance pay, termination pay, retention pay, life, health, disability or accident insurance plan, or other material employee
benefit plan, program, policy, arrangement or agreement, that is maintained by, or participated in by Seller or the Company or their ERISA Affiliates with respect to
the Company Employees (and/or their dependents or beneficiaries) (each, a “Benefit Plan” and, collectively, the “Benefit Plans”). For the avoidance of doubt, the
Benefit Plans do not include benefits or plans that are delivered or provided by a Governmental Entity, regardless of whether Seller, the Company or any of their
ERISA Affiliates makes contributions to such arrangements, such as benefits provided by the U.S. Social Security Administration in the United States. The
Company is not the plan sponsor of any Benefit Plan.

(b)  With respect to each Benefit Plan: (i) such Benefit Plan has been operated and administered in compliance in all material respects with its
terms and all applicable Laws and regulations, and (ii) there are no material claims pending or, to the Knowledge of Seller, threatened against, by or on behalf of any
Benefit Plans (other than routine claims for benefits under the terms of any such Benefit Plan). Each Benefit Plan that is intended to be a “qualified plan” within the
meaning of Code Section 401(a) (“Qualified Plans”) has been issued a favorable determination letter by the IRS that has not been revoked, and there are no
circumstances and no events that have occurred that could reasonably be expected to adversely affect the qualified status of any Qualified Plan or the related trust.

(c)  No Benefit Plan is (i) a “multiemployer plan,” as such term is defined in Section 3(37) of ERISA; (ii) a plan that is subject to Title IV of
ERISA, Sections 302 or 303 of ERISA or Sections 412 or 436 of the Code; (iii) a multiple employer plan as defined in Section 413(c) of the Code; or (iv) a
“multiple employer welfare arrangement” as such term is defined in Section 3(40) of ERISA.

(d)  None of the Benefit Plans that are “welfare benefit plans,” within the meaning of Section 3(1) of ERISA, provide for continuing benefits or
coverage after termination or retirement from employment for any Company Employee, except for COBRA rights under a “group health plan” as defined in Section
4980B(g) of the Code and Section 607 of ERISA. The consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby will not (i) result in an increase in or accelerate the
vesting of any of the benefits available to a Company Employee under any Benefit Plan, or (ii) otherwise entitle any current or former employee, independent
contractor or director of any member of the Company Group, OSI, or UHS to severance pay or any other payment from any member of the Company Group, OSI, or
UHS.

SECTION 3.12.  Labor Matters.

 

(a)  Section 3.12 of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a correct and complete list of the following information (to the extent applicable) with
respect to each Company Employee, including with respect to each Group B Employee, as of March 30, 2017: (i) name, (ii) title or position (including whether full-
or part-time), (iii) hire date, (iv) current annual base salary rate or current hourly wage rate, (v) commission, bonus (or bonus opportunity) or other incentive-based
compensation, as the case may be, (vi) accrued, unused paid-time off, (vii) leave status, (viii) principal work location, and (ix) each such employee’s status as being
exempt or nonexempt from the application of state and federal minimum wage
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and overtime Laws. No Key Employee nor any Company Employee who would reasonably be expected to have a material impact on the transaction, has informed
any officer of Seller (whether orally or in writing) of any plan to terminate his or her employment with Buyer, the Company, Connextions HCI, OSI, or UHS. To the
Knowledge of Seller, each Company Employee is properly classified in all material respects with respect to employment status for all purposes, including
employment, labor, wage and hour compliance and Tax purposes.

(b)  Section 3.12(b) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a correct and complete list of the following information with respect to each
independent contractor involved in the Business whose Contracts will be transferred to the Company (collectively, the “Company Contractors”): (i) name, (ii)
engagement date, (iii) project assignment, (iv) contract expiration or expected termination date, and (v) daily rate or other remuneration. To the Knowledge of Seller,
each Company Contractor is properly classified in all material respects as an independent contractor and not an employee of any member of the Company Group or
any of their respective Affiliates.

(c)  Seller has provided Buyer with copies of the current (i) trade secret, non-compete, non-disclosure and invention assignment agreements
entered into by any Key Employee in connection with his or her employment by OSI or UHS, and (ii) handbooks applicable to any Company Employee or
Company Contractor. Subject to Buyer’s compliance with Section 5.5, no Company Employee will have any claim for severance pay as a result of this Agreement
or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

(d)   
(i)  Seller or its applicable Affiliate has paid or made provision for payment of all salaries and wages or other remuneration, which are

payable by such Person to any Company Employees or Company Contractors, accrued through the Closing Date, and is in compliance in all material
respects with all applicable Laws respecting employment and employment practices, including without limitation all Laws governing terms and conditions
of employment, wage and hour compliance, pay equity, discrimination in employment, harassment, retaliation, human rights, immigration, work
authorization, fair labor standards, occupational health and safety and unfair labor practices, as set forth in Section 8 of the National Labor Relations Act.

(ii)  (A) None of the Company Employees are represented by any labor union or other labor representative with respect to his or her
employment with Seller or its applicable Affiliate; (B) there are no labor, collective bargaining agreements or similar arrangements binding on Seller or any
of its Affiliates with respect to any Company Employees; (C) to the Knowledge of Seller, no petition has been filed nor has any proceeding been instituted
by any Company Employee or group of Company Employees with the National Labor Relations Board or similar Governmental Entity seeking recognition
of a collective bargaining agreement; (D) there are no Persons attempting to represent or organize or purporting to represent for bargaining purposes any of
the Company Employees; (E) since January 1, 2014, there has not occurred or have not been threatened any strikes, slowdowns, picketing, work stoppages
or concerted refusals to work or other similar labor activities with respect to Company Employees; and (F) no material grievance or arbitration or other
proceeding arising out of or under any collective bargaining agreement relating to any member of the Company Group is pending or, to the Knowledge of
Seller, threatened.

(iii)  Since January 1, 2014, none of the members of the Company Group or their respective Affiliates has, with respect to any
employees involved in the Business and associated with the Leased Real Property locations, effectuated: (A) a “plant closing” (as defined in the WARN Act,
or any similar Law) affecting any of the Leased Real Property locations; or (B)
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a “mass layoff” (as defined in the WARN Act, or any similar Law) affecting any of the Leased Real Property locations.

SECTION 3.13.  Environmental Matters.

 

(a)  Each member of the Company Group and UHS is, and at all times since January 1, 2014 has been, in compliance in all material respects
with all Environmental Laws. Each member of the Company Group and UHS has obtained, and is and has been in compliance in all material respects with, all
Governmental Approvals required by all Environmental Laws.

(b)  Except for matters that have been substantially resolved, no member of the Company Group, nor UHS, nor any other Person for whose
conduct with respect to the Business any member of the Company Group is or may be held responsible, has received any citation, Order, claim, directive, inquiry,
notice, summons, warning, complaint, request for information, or other written communication that relates to (i) Hazardous Substances, or (ii) any alleged, actual, or
potential violation of or failure to comply with any Environmental Laws.

(c)  No member of the Company Group, nor UHS, nor any other Person for whose conduct any member of the Company Group is or may be
held responsible, has any Environmental, Health and Safety Liabilities with respect to the Leased Real Property or any other properties and assets (whether real,
personal or mixed) in which such member of the Company Group, UHS, or any predecessor thereof has or had an interest. There are no facts, conditions or
circumstances existing, including the presence or release of any Hazardous Substance, that are reasonably likely to result in material Liabilities or Damages to any
member of the Company Group or UHS pursuant to Environmental Laws.

SECTION 3.14.  Taxes.

 

(a)  All consolidated U.S. federal and state income Tax Returns for any “affiliated group” (within the meaning of Section 1504(a) of the Code)
filing a consolidated return of which the Company or Connextions HCI is or was a member have been timely filed, and each member of the Company Group has
filed all other material Tax Returns required to be filed by such member. All such Tax Returns described in the preceding sentence are true, correct, and complete in
all material respects.

(b)  Each member of the Company Group has paid all Taxes due from such Person (whether or not shown on any Tax Return). Neither the
Company nor Connextions HCI (i) has been a member of an affiliated group filing a consolidated federal income Tax Return (other than an affiliated group of which
it is currently a member), or (ii) has any Liability for the unpaid Taxes of any Person (other than members of the affiliated group of which it is currently a member)
under Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-6 (or any similar provision of state, local, or non-U.S. Law), as a transferee or successor, by Contract, or otherwise.

(c)  There are no Liens relating to Taxes upon the assets of any member of the Company Group other than Permitted Liens.

(d)  No audit or other administrative or judicial proceeding for Taxes for any year currently open under the applicable state of limitations is
pending, is being conducted, or has been threatened in writing without resolution with respect to any Tax or Tax Return that relates to the Company or Connextions
HCI, other than with respect to a consolidated federal income Tax Return or state or local combined, consolidated, affiliated or unitary Tax Returns.
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(e)  No claim or deficiency against the Company or Connextions HCI for the assessment or collection of any Tax has been asserted or proposed
in writing which claim or deficiency has not been settled with all amounts determined to have been due and payable having been timely paid.

(f)  No claim has been made by a Tax authority in a jurisdiction where the Company or Connextions HCI does not file Tax Returns asserting
that the Company or Connextions HCI is or may be subject to Taxes imposed by that jurisdiction.

(g)  Neither the Company nor Connextions HCI has executed or entered into with, or received from, any Governmental Entity any agreement,
waiver or other document extending or waiving the period for assessment or collection of any Taxes of such Person.

(h)  Neither the Company nor Connextions HCI will be required to include any item of income in, or exclude any item of deduction from,
taxable income for any taxable period ending after the Closing Date as a result of any (i) change in accounting method for any taxable period ending on or before the
Closing Date (“Pre-Closing Periods”) under Section 481 of the Code (or any similar provision of state, local, or non-U.S. Law), (ii) written agreement with a
Governmental Entity with regard to the Tax liability of any member of the Company Group in any Pre-Closing Period, (iii) installment sale or open transaction
disposition made prior to the Closing Date or prior to the Closing on the Closing Date, (iv) prepaid amount received on or prior to the Closing Date, (v) election
under Section 108(i) of the Code, or (vi) intercompany transaction or any excess loss account described in Treasury Regulations under Section 1502 of the Code (or
any corresponding or similar provision of state, local, or non-U.S. Law).

(i)  Each of the Company and Connextions HCI has withheld and paid all material Taxes required to have been withheld and paid in
connection with any amounts paid or owing to any employee, independent contractor, creditor, stockholder, or other Person, and substantially all IRS Forms W-2
and 1099 required with respect thereto have been properly completed and timely filed.

(j)  Neither the Company nor Connextions HCI is a party to any agreement, Contract, arrangement or plan that has resulted or could result,
separately or in the aggregate, in the payment of any “excess parachute payment” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code (or any corresponding provision
of state, local, or non-U.S. Tax Law) as a result of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

(k)  Neither the Company nor Connextions HCI is a party to or bound by any Tax indemnification, allocation, sharing or similar agreement, or
has any current or potential contractual or legal obligation to indemnify any other Person with respect to Taxes other than an agreement the primary subject of which
is not Taxes.

(l)  Neither the Company nor Connextions HCI has participated in any “reportable transaction” within the meaning of Treasury Regulations
Section 1.6011-4.

(m)  Neither the Company nor Connextions HCI has distributed stock of another Person, or has had its stock distributed to another Person, in a
transaction that was purported or intended to be governed in whole or in part by Sections 355 or 361 of the Code.

(n)  No claim has been asserted by any Governmental Entity that the Company or Connextions HCI is liable for any Taxes based on Section
482 of the Code or comparable provisions of other applicable Laws.
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(o)  Each party to the Contribution Agreement is a member of the “affiliated group” (within the meaning of Section 1504(a) of the Code) filing
a consolidated return of which (i) Ultimate Parent is the common parent and (ii) the Company and Connextions HCI are members. Connextions HCI has never filed
an election under Treasury Regulations Sections 301.7701-3 to be classified other than as provided in Treasury Regulations Section 301.7701-3(b). Connextions
HCI has been treated at all times commencing with its formation as a disregarded entity for federal income Tax purposes pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section
301.7701-3.

SECTION 3.15.  Material Contracts.

 

(a)  Section 3.15(a) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth, by applicable subsection a correct and complete list of the following Contracts to
which the Company or Connextions HCI is, following the Contribution, a party or by which such Person is or its assets are (or intended to be) bound (each, a
“Material Contract”):

(i)  any Contract with a Customer or Material Supplier;

(ii)  any Lease;

(iii)  any Contract involving contracted payments by or to the Company or Connextions HCI on a going-forward basis in an amount of
at least (A) $75,000 during any 12-month period or (B) $500,000 in the aggregate;

(iv)  any Contract for Licensed Intellectual Property (excluding commercially available “off-the-shelf” software or technology with a
one-time acquisition cost or annual fees of less than $75,000 and non-negotiated licenses to Intellectual Property embedded in equipment or fixtures, each,
an “IP License”);

(v)  any Contract containing “most favored nations” or similar pricing provisions applicable to the Company or Connextions HCI or
the Business, or that provides for any Person to be an exclusive or preferred provider of services or products to the Company or Connextions HCI or the
Business, or under which the Company or Connextions HCI is an exclusive or preferred provider of services or products to another Person, or that grants a
right of first refusal or first negotiation to another Person;

(vi)  any note, indenture, loan agreement, credit agreement, security agreement, financing agreement, or other evidence of Indebtedness
relating to the borrowing of money by the Company or Connextions HCI, any guarantee made by the Company or Connextions HCI in favor of any Person
guaranteeing obligations of such Person, or any letter of credit issued for the account of the Company or Connextions HCI;

(vii)  any Contract containing requirements of minimum purchases by the Company or Connextions HCI from another Person or that
requires the Company or Connextions HCI to supply a minimum level of goods or services to another Person, in each case, in an amount of at least (A)
$75,000 during any 12-month period, or (B) $500,000 in the aggregate;

(viii)  any Contract restricting the ability of the Company or Connextions HCI to operate any business or solicit or hire any Person, or
that provides any exclusive rights to any party thereto or include rights of first refusal, negotiation or similar rights in any of its property, in each case that
was entered into outside of the Ordinary Course of Business;
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(ix)  any Contract relating to personal property with an initial, nondepreciated book value of more than $100,000 that is used in the
operation of the Business;

(x)  any mortgage, pledge, indenture or security agreement or similar arrangement constituting a Lien upon any of the assets or
properties that are owned by the Company or Connextions HCI;

(xi)  any Contract involving the sale of any material assets of the Company or Connextions HCI outside of the Ordinary Course of
Business, or the acquisition of any material amount of assets of any Person by the Company or Connextions HCI outside of the Ordinary Course of
Business, in each case in any business combination transaction (whether by merger, sale of stock, sale of assets or otherwise) under which obligations of any
party thereto remain outstanding;

(xii)  any Contract involving a commitment for capital expenditures in excess of $75,000 under which the Company or Connextions
HCI has any outstanding obligations (financial or otherwise) as of the date hereof;

(xiii)  any joint venture agreement, shareholder or partnership agreement, voting agreement (either with respect to any capital stock of
the Company or Connextions HCI or the appointment of directors of the Company or Connextions HCI), or any other Contract involving co-investment
with a third party to which the Company or Connextions HCI is a party;

(xiv)  any Contract between the Company or Connextions HCI, on the one hand, and any Governmental Entity on the other hand;

(xv)  any capital lease or similar agreement relating to the Business or its properties or assets involving contracted fees by the Company
or Connextions HCI following the Closing of at least (i) $75,000 during any 12-month period, or (ii) $500,000 in the aggregate; and

(xvi)  any Contract or agreement relating to employment of a Company Employee or consulting of a Company Contractor, including all
severance agreements, noncompetition agreements, employment agreements and consultant agreements providing for payments in excess of $75,000 per
year or in a lump sum.

(b)  Each Material Contract is valid, binding and enforceable against the Company or Connextions HCI to the extent a party thereto and, to the
Knowledge of Seller, against each other Person party thereto in accordance with its terms (subject in each case to the effects of applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
fraudulent conveyance, moratorium, or other Laws relating to or affecting creditors’ rights generally and to general principles of equity, whether considered at law
or in equity), and is in full force and effect in all material respects. The member of the Company Group that is a party to each Material Contract has performed all of
the material obligations required to be performed by it to date under the Material Contract; and is not in material breach or material default under any Material
Contract. To the Knowledge of Seller, (i) no other party to any Material Contract is in material breach or material default under any Material Contract and (ii) no
event has occurred that, with or without notice or lapse of time, would reasonably be expected to constitute a material breach or material default under any Material
Contract. Since January 1, 2015, no member of the Company Group has given to, or received from, any other party to a Material Contract any written notice or other
written communication regarding (A) any intention of a party to terminate such Material Contract, (B) any actual or alleged breach of or default under such Material
Contract by any member of the Company Group or any other party to such Material Contract, or (C) any claim for Damages or indemnification with respect to the
products or performance of services pursuant to such Material Contract. Seller and the Company have made available to Buyer complete and
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accurate (1) copies of each of the Material Contracts that is in written form and (2) descriptions of the material terms of each Material Contract that is not in written
form, in each case including any and all amendments, supplements and modifications thereof.

SECTION 3.16.  Insurance Matters.  Section 3.16 of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a correct and complete list of each insurance policy maintained
by or for the benefit of each member of the Company Group. (a) Each such policy is in full force and effect and all premiums due thereon have been paid, (b) all of
such policies were placed with financially sound and reputable insurers, and are and were in amounts and had coverages that are and were reasonable and customary
for Persons engaged in businesses similar to the Business as currently conducted, (c) each member of the Company Group has complied in all material respects with
the terms and provisions of such policies and no member of the Company Group is in default with respect to its obligations under the policies applicable to it, (d)
there is no claim by any member of the Company Group pending under any of such policies as to which coverage has been questioned, denied or disputed by the
underwriters of such policies, and (e) such policies (or other policies providing substantially similar insurance coverage) have been in effect since December 31,
2014.

 

SECTION 3.17.  Intellectual Property.

 

(a)  Section 3.17(a)(i) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a correct and complete list of all Intellectual Property issued by, registered with,
renewed by, or the subject of a pending application before, any Governmental Entity and owned by any member of the Company Group, including all such
Intellectual Property consisting of domain names (the “Registered Intellectual Property”) indicating for each such item, as applicable, the registration number and
the applicable filing jurisdiction, and identifying the owner. The consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents will not result in the
loss of, or otherwise adversely affect, any ownership or, as applicable, use rights of the Company Group (as in effect prior to the Contribution, or the rights of the
Company and Connextions HCI following the Contribution) in any Owned Intellectual Property, or any of the Company Group’s rights (as in effect prior to the
Contribution, or the rights of the Company and Connextions HCI following the Contribution) to use any other material Company Intellectual Property.

(b)  The Company and Connextions HCI exclusively own (beneficially, and of record where applicable) all right, title and interest in and to the
Owned Intellectual Property owned by it, free and clear of all Liens (excluding Permitted Liens), and have the right to use all other Company Intellectual Property as
necessary for the conduct of the Business as currently conducted. No third party has been granted or retains any ownership rights in any Owned Intellectual Property
owned by the Company or Connextions HCI. The Registered Intellectual Property is subsisting and enforceable, and, to the Knowledge of Seller, is valid and,
except with respect to proceedings relating to the prosecution of Registered Intellectual Property before a Governmental Entity, is not subject to any outstanding
Order or proceeding with a Governmental Entity adversely affecting, or that could adversely affect, the Company’s or Connextions HCI’s use thereof or rights
thereto. There are no material royalties, fees, honoraria or other payments payable by any member of the Company Group to any Person by reason of the ownership,
development, modification, use, license, sublicense, sale, distribution or other disposition of the Owned Intellectual Property owned by the Company Group, other
than salaries and sales commissions paid to employees and sales agents in the Ordinary Course of Business.

(c)  The conduct of the Business does not infringe, misappropriate or otherwise violate the Intellectual Property rights of any third party and
since January 1, 2014, has not infringed, misappropriated or otherwise violated the Intellectual Property rights of any third party. Except with respect to proceedings
relating to the prosecution of Registered Intellectual Property before a Governmental Entity, there is no litigation, opposition, cancellation, Legal Proceeding,
objection or claim pending, asserted or threatened in writing by or against any member of the Company Group concerning the ownership, validity,
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registerability, enforceability, infringement, misappropriation, violation or use of any Intellectual Property. To the Knowledge of Seller, no valid basis exists for any
such litigation, opposition, cancellation, Legal Proceeding, objection or claim. To the Knowledge of Seller, no Person is infringing, misappropriating or otherwise
violating any Owned Intellectual Property or has infringed, misappropriated or otherwise violated any Owned Intellectual Property. This  SECTION 3.17 (c)
constitutes the sole and exclusive representation and warranties of Seller with respect to any matters related to the infringement, misappropriation or violation of
Intellectual Property.

(d)  To the Knowledge of Seller, no trade secret or confidential know-how that is material to the Business has been disclosed or authorized to be
disclosed to any third party, other than pursuant to a non-disclosure agreement or similar instrument and, to the Knowledge of Seller, there has been no breach by
any third party of the same. Each member of the Company Group has taken reasonable precautions to protect the secrecy, confidentiality and value of its trade
secrets and confidential know-how.

(e)  Section 3.17(e) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and accurate list of general descriptions of Owned Software that is material
to the Business. To the Knowledge of Seller, none of the source code of such Owned Software has been published, disclosed or put into escrow by such Person for
any reason. Except for source code provided to employees or third-party developers to make modifications or derivative works thereof solely for the benefit of any
such member of the Company Group, no licenses or rights have been granted to any Person to distribute, or to otherwise use or create derivative works of, the
source code of any such Owned Software. No Open Source Software is used in, incorporated into, integrated or bundled with any such Owned Software in a manner
that would require that source code for any material portion of such Owned Software be disclosed or distributed under terms that require general disclosure of such
source code. The Business Systems (i) are in reasonable working order, operate as necessary for the operation of the Business and meet current capacity of the
Business; (ii) have reasonable security, backups, disaster recovery arrangements, and hardware and software support and maintenance to reduce the risk of material
error, breakdown, failure, data loss or security breach occurring; (iii) use reasonable anti-virus protections and, to the Knowledge of Seller, do not contain Trojan
horses, spyware, adware, malware, or other malicious code; and (iv) have not suffered any material error, breakdown, failure, or security breach in the last twelve
(12) months that has caused disruption or damage to the Business or was reportable to any Governmental Entity or Person.

(f)  Each member of the Company Group and the conduct of the Business are in compliance with, and have been in compliance with, all Data
Security Requirements and, except as set forth in Section 3.8(f) of the Disclosure Schedule, there have not been any actual or alleged incidents of data security
breaches, unauthorized access or use of any of the Business Systems, or unauthorized acquisition, destruction, damage, disclosure, loss, corruption, alteration, or use
of any Business Data. The transactions contemplated by this Agreement will not result in any Liabilities in connection with any Data Security Requirements.

SECTION 3.18.  Accounts Receivable.  All accounts receivable of the Business as of March 30, 2017 represent valid and enforceable obligations arising
from bona fide transactions in the Ordinary Course of Business and are not subject to any defenses, claims, or rights of setoff. Section 3.18 of the Disclosure
Schedule sets forth a complete and accurate list of all of the accounts receivable of the Business as of the date hereof, along with a range of days elapsed since the
original invoice.

 

SECTION 3.19.  Customers and Material Suppliers.

 

(a)  Section 3.19(a) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and accurate list of the customers of the Business during calendar year
2016 (the “Customers”), and the amount of sales to each Customer during such period.
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(b)  Section 3.19(b) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a complete and accurate list of each of the suppliers of the Business from which the
Company Group or a Related Entity has made total purchases in excess of $75,000 during calendar year 2016 (the “Material Suppliers”), and the amount of
purchases from each Material Supplier during such period.

(c)  Since January 1, 2016 (i) no Customer or Material Supplier has terminated or suspended, or to the Knowledge of Seller, has threatened to
terminate or suspend its business with the Business and (ii) no Customer or Material Supplier has cancelled or otherwise terminated any Contract with respect to the
Business.

SECTION 3.20.  Brokers.  No broker, finder or investment banker is entitled to any brokerage, finder’s or other fee or commission or expense
reimbursement in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of any member of the Company
Group or any of their respective Affiliates.

 

SECTION 3.21.  Transactions with Affiliates.  Except for the Transaction Documents or pursuant to an agreement between a member of the Company
Group and Seller or an Affiliate of Seller that is disclosed in Section 3.15 of the Disclosure Schedule, as of the Closing, there are no Contracts, agreements,
arrangements or business relationships between or among Seller or any Affiliate of Seller and any member of the Company Group in respect of the Business.

 

Article IV 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BUYER

Buyer hereby represents and warrants to Seller as follows as of the date hereof:

SECTION 4.1.  Organization and Qualification.

 

(a)  Buyer is a corporation duly organized and validly existing under the Laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation and has all requisite
corporate power and authority to conduct its business as it is now being conducted, to own or use the properties and assets that it purports to own or use, except
where the failure to be duly organized an existing or to have such power and authority would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a
material adverse effect on the ability of Buyer to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

(b)  Buyer is duly qualified or licensed and in good standing to do business in each jurisdiction in which the property owned, leased or operated
by it or the nature of the business conducted by it makes such qualification or licensing necessary, except where the failure to be duly licensed or in good standing
would not have individually or in the aggregate a material adverse effect on the ability of Buyer to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

SECTION 4.2.  Authority Relative to the Transaction Documents.  Buyer has all requisite corporate power and authority to enter into the Transaction
Documents to which it is a party, to perform its obligations thereunder and to consummate the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents to which it
is a party. The execution, delivery and performance of each Transaction Document to which Buyer is a party, and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated thereby by Buyer have been duly and validly authorized by all requisite corporate action of Buyer, and no other action on the part of Buyer is
necessary to authorize the execution, delivery or performance of the Transaction Documents by it. Each of the Transaction Documents to which Buyer is a party has
been duly executed and delivered by Buyer, and constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of Buyer enforceable against Buyer in accordance with its
respective terms, except to the extent that enforceability thereof may be limited by bankruptcy,
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insolvency, reorganization and other similar applicable Laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and by general principles of equity.

 

SECTION 4.3.  Brokers.  No broker, finder or investment banker is entitled to any brokerage, finder’s or other fee or commission or expense
reimbursement in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of Buyer or any of its Affiliates.

 

SECTION 4.4.  Consents and Approvals; No Violations.

 

(a)  Except for filings, permits, authorizations, consents and approvals as may be required under, and other applicable requirements of, the HSR
Act (if applicable), and as otherwise set forth in Section 3.7(a) of the Disclosure Schedule, no filing with or notice to, and no permit, authorization, consent or
approval of, a Governmental Entity is necessary for the execution, delivery and performance by Buyer of this Agreement or the other Transaction Documents to
which it is a party or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby.

(b)  Neither the execution, delivery and performance by Buyer of this Agreement or any other Transaction Document to which it is a party, nor
the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, will (i) conflict with or result in a violation of any provision of the Governing Documents of
Buyer; (ii) result in a material violation or material breach of, or constitute (with or without due notice or lapse of time or both) a material default (or give rise to any
right of termination, amendment, cancellation or acceleration of any obligation or the loss of any material benefit under, or the creation of any Lien) under, any of
the terms, conditions or provisions of a Contract, license or permit to which Buyer is a party or by which it is bound or affected; or (iii) violate in any material
respect any Law applicable to Buyer or its properties or assets.

SECTION 4.5.  Litigation.  There is no Legal Proceeding pending or, to the Knowledge of Buyer, threatened in writing, against Buyer with respect to
the validity of this Agreement or any of the Transaction Documents to which it is a party, or of any action taken or to be taken by Buyer in connection with the
Transaction Documents or the transactions contemplated thereby.

 

SECTION 4.6.  Investment Intent.  Buyer is acquiring the Shares as an investment for its own account for the purpose of investment and not with a
view to the resale or distribution thereof except pursuant to an effective registration under the Securities Act and applicable state securities Laws, or pursuant to an
available exemption from such registration requirement.

 

SECTION 4.7.  No Other Representations and Warranties.  Buyer acknowledges and agrees that, except for the representations and warranties made by
the Company and Seller in  Article III and in the other Transaction Documents, neither the Company, Seller nor any other Person makes any express or implied
representation or warranty with respect to the Company Group or their respective businesses, assets, operations, liabilities, condition (financial or otherwise) or
prospects, and the Company and Seller hereby disclaim any such other representations or warranties. In particular, without limiting the foregoing, Buyer
acknowledges and agrees that except for the representations and warranties made by the Company and Seller in  Article III and in the other Transaction Documents,
neither the Company, Seller nor any other Person makes or has made any representation or warranty to Buyer or any of its Representatives, with respect to (a) any
financial projection, forecast, estimate, budget or prospective information relating to the Company Group or their respective businesses or operations or (b) any oral
or written information furnished or made available to Buyer or any of its Representatives in the course of their due diligence investigation of the Company Group,
the Business, the negotiation of this Agreement or the consummation the
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transactions contemplated hereby, including the accuracy, completeness or currency thereof, and neither the Company, Seller nor any other Person shall have any
Liability to Buyer or any other Person in respect of such information, including any subsequent use of such information, except in the case of fraudulent
misrepresentation in the making of any representation or warranty hereunder.

 

 

Article V 
CERTAIN COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS

SECTION 5.1.  Access and Information.  From and after Closing until the date that is six (6) years after the Closing Date, Buyer shall retain, or cause
the Company and Connextions HCI to retain, the books and records existing and in possession of the Company and Connextions HCI on the Closing Date and shall,
subject to reasonable confidentiality and privilege restrictions, make such books and records (or copies thereof) and reasonably appropriate personnel available,
during regular business hours, to Seller and its Representatives to the extent reasonably required by Seller in connection with any audit, investigation or Legal
Proceeding; provided that Seller agrees to reimburse Buyer promptly for all reasonable and documented out-of-pocket costs and expenses incurred in connection
with such request. In advance of any such inspection, Seller shall provide written notice to Buyer, stating the desired time and date of such requested review, the
books and records to be made available for review and the purpose of such review.

 

SECTION 5.2.  Tax Matters.

 

(a)  Pre-Closing Period Tax Returns. Seller shall prepare or cause to be prepared all Tax Returns that relate solely to the Company Group for all
Pre-Closing Periods (such Tax Returns, “Pre-Closing Period Tax Returns”). Except as otherwise required by applicable Law, Seller shall prepare such Pre-Closing
Period Tax Returns in a manner consistent with past custom and practice. Seller shall permit Buyer to review and comment on each Pre-Closing Period Tax Return
(including all supporting work papers to the extent related solely to the Business) at least fifteen (15) days prior to the due date (including extensions) for filing such
Pre-Closing Period Tax Return and shall consider in good faith any comments provided by Buyer. Seller shall deliver the Pre-Closing Period Tax Returns to Buyer
no later than ten (10) days prior to the due date (including extensions) for filing such Pre-Closing Period Tax Returns. Subject to Seller’s timely delivery of such
Pre-Closing Period Tax Returns pursuant to the preceding sentence, Buyer shall execute and file or cause to be executed and filed all such Pre-Closing Period Tax
Returns on or prior to the due date (including extensions) for filing such Pre-Closing Period Tax Returns. Seller shall remit to Buyer, at least five (5) days before the
due date (including extensions) of the applicable Pre-Closing Period Tax Return, an amount equal to the amount of Taxes shown as due and payable on such Pre-
Closing Period Tax Return, and Buyer shall timely pay such amount to the appropriate Tax authority. All deductions for Transaction Expenses, compensatory
amounts and similar amounts paid or payable by the Company Group as a result of or in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby
shall be allocated to and claimed in the taxable year (or portion thereof) ending on the Closing Date to the extent permitted by applicable Law.

(b)  Consolidated Income Tax Returns. Seller shall include the income of each member of the Company Group (including any deferred items
triggered into income by Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-13 and any excess loss account taken into income under Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-19) on
Seller’s consolidated federal income Tax Returns for all periods (or portions thereof) through the Closing Date and pay any federal income Taxes attributable to such
income.

(c)  Straddle Tax Returns. Buyer shall prepare or cause to be prepared all Tax Returns that relate solely to the Company and/or Connextions
HCI for any taxable periods which begin before and
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end after the Closing Date (“Straddle Periods”) (such Tax Returns, “Straddle Period Tax Returns”). In any instance a Straddle Period Tax Return is required, Seller
will provide Buyer with reasonably requested financial and other information required to properly calculate and report Tax for the Pre-Closing Tax Period at least
fifteen (15) days prior to the due date (including extensions). Except as otherwise required by applicable Law, Buyer shall prepare such Straddle Period Tax Returns
in a manner consistent with past custom and practice. Buyer shall permit Seller to review and comment on each Straddle Period Tax Return at least fifteen (15) days
prior to the due date (including extensions) for filing such Straddle Period Tax Return and shall consider in good faith any comments provided by Seller. Buyer shall
execute and file or cause to be executed and filed all such completed Straddle Period Tax Returns on or prior to the due date (including extensions) for filing such
Straddle Period Tax Returns, and shall timely pay all Taxes due as reflected on such Straddle Period Tax Returns. Seller shall remit to Buyer, at least five (5) days
before the due date (including extensions)  of the applicable Straddle Period Tax Return, an amount equal to the amount of Taxes shown as due and payable on such
Straddle Period Tax Return to the extent such Taxes are allocable to the portion of such Straddle Period ending on the Closing Date pursuant to Section 5.2(d).

(d)  Apportionment of Straddle Period Taxes. In the case of any Straddle Period, (i) Taxes imposed on a periodic basis shall be apportioned
between the portion of such Straddle Period ending on and including the Closing Date and the portion of such Straddle Period beginning after the Closing Date on a
daily pro-rata basis, and (ii) all other Taxes shall be apportioned between the portion of such Straddle Period ending on and including the Closing Date and the
portion of such Straddle Period beginning after the Closing Date on a closing of the books basis.

(e)  Post-Closing Actions. Except as otherwise required by applicable Law, Buyer shall not without the prior written consent of Seller (i) file, or
allow to be filed, any amended Tax Return of the Company or Connextions HCI for a Pre-Closing Period or a Straddle Period, (ii) apply to any Tax authority for any
binding or non-binding opinion, ruling, or other determination with respect to the Company or Connextions HCI in relation to any act, matter, or transaction that
relates to any Pre-Closing Period, (iii) make or change any Tax election with respect to the Company or Connextions HCI for a Pre-Closing Period or the portion of
a Straddle Period ending on the Closing Date (including any election under Section 336(e) or Section 338 of the Code, or under any analogous or similar rules in
any relevant Tax jurisdiction), or (iv) take any action or enter into any transaction that would result in an increase in the Tax liability of the Company or Connextions
HCI with respect to any Pre-Closing Period or the portion of such Straddle Period ending on the Closing Date. Buyer shall be permitted to waive any carry-back for
federal, state, local or non-U.S. Tax purposes of any net operating losses, capital losses, Tax credits or similar items arising in a Taxable period beginning after the
Closing Date to any Pre-Closing Period, or portion thereof, of the Company or Connextions HCI. To the fullest extent permitted by Law, Buyer agrees not to carry-
back any losses of the Company or Connextions HCI to any Pre-Closing Periods of the Company or Connextions HCI, including by making or causing to be made
an election under Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-21(b)(3)(ii)(B). If necessary in order to prevent the reduction of U.S. federal income Tax asset basis or other
U.S. federal income Tax attributes of the Company or Connextions HCI, Seller will file or cause to be filed a “Section 1.1502-36 Statement” (as defined in Treasury
Regulations Section 1.1502-36(e)(5)) with the timely filed U.S. federal consolidated income Tax Return for the consolidated group of which Seller is a member for
the consolidated tax return year that includes the Closing Date making an election to reduce the tax basis, pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-36(d)(6)
(i)(A), in shares of the Company immediately before the transfer to Buyer (the “Section 1.1502-36 Election”). To the extent permitted by Law, and provided it is
consistent with the election described above, Seller will make or cause to be made similar elections for purposes of the alternative minimum tax imposed under the
Code. Seller further agrees to take all other such actions as may be required to give effect to such Section 1.1502-36 Election. Seller will deliver or cause any of its
Affiliates to deliver a copy of the Section 1.1502-36 Statement to Buyer as soon as practicable following the filing of Seller’s U.S. federal consolidated Tax Return
for the consolidated tax return year that includes the Closing Date. The Section 1.1502-36 Statement will include all of the
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requirements as set forth in Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-36(e)(5)(viii) and Seller and any of its Affiliates shall not take any action which could reasonably
be expected to result in a revocation of the Section 1.1502-36 Election.

(f)  Cooperation. Seller and Buyer shall cooperate fully, as and to the extent reasonably requested by the other party, in connection with the
preparation and filing of Tax Returns (including pursuant to this Section  5.2) and any Tax Proceeding (as defined below). Such cooperation may include signing Tax
Returns, claims or other documents necessary to settle any Tax Proceeding, providing notice of any statutory audit and information regarding any significant
statutory audit adjustments which may affect the Tax Returns of the Company or Connextions HCI, the retention and (upon the other party’s request) the provision
of records and information which are reasonably relevant to any Tax Return (including, without limitation, the provision by Seller of Tax work papers related to
deferred Tax assets and liabilities for 2015 through the Closing Date but not including copies of any Tax Returns) or Tax Proceeding or other proceeding described
in this Section 5.2(f) and making employees available on a mutually convenient basis to provide additional information and explanation of any material provided
hereby.

(g)  Tax Proceedings. 

(i)  After the Closing Date, Buyer shall notify Seller in writing within fifteen (15) days of the receipt of any proposed assessment or
the commencement of any Tax audit or administrative or judicial proceeding or of any demand or claim that relates solely to the Taxes of the Company or
Connextions HCI (“Tax Proceeding”) for any Pre-Closing Period or Straddle Period. Such notice shall contain factual information describing any Tax
Proceeding in reasonable detail and shall include copies of any notice or other document received from any Tax authority in respect of any such asserted Tax
Proceeding. Thereafter, Buyer shall deliver to Seller, as promptly as possible but in no event later than fifteen (15) days after Buyer’s receipt thereof, copies
of all relevant notices and documents and any attachments thereto (including court papers) received by Buyer in respect of such Tax Proceeding.

(ii)  In the case of any Tax Proceeding relating to any Pre-Closing Period, Seller shall have the right, at Seller’s expense, to control the
conduct of such Tax Proceeding; provided, that Buyer shall have the right, at Buyer’s expense, to participate in such Tax Proceeding, and Seller shall not
settle such Tax Proceeding without the written consent of Buyer, which such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned.

(iii)  In the case of any Tax Proceeding relating to any Straddle Period, Buyer shall have the right, at Buyer’s expense, to control the
conduct of such Tax Proceeding; provided, that Seller shall have the right, at Seller’s expense, to participate in such Tax Proceeding, and Buyer shall not
settle such Tax Proceeding without the consent of Seller, which such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned.

(h)  Transfer Taxes.  Any sales, use, real estate transfer, stock transfer, stamp, value added or similar transfer Tax (“Transfer Taxes”) payable in
connection with (i) the Contribution shall be borne solely by Seller and (ii) the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (other than the Contribution) shall be
borne 50% by Buyer, on the one hand, and 50% by Seller, on the other hand. Buyer and Seller shall cooperate in preparing, executing and filing all necessary Tax
Returns and other documentation with respect to such Transfer Taxes.

(i)  Tax Refunds.  The amount of any refunds, credits or offsets of Taxes of the Company or Connextions HCI for any Pre-Closing Period shall
be for the account of Seller. The amount of any refund, credit or offset of Taxes of the Company or Connextions HCI for any Straddle Period shall be
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equitably apportioned between Seller and Buyer in accordance with the principles set forth in Section  5.2(d). Buyer shall promptly pay or cause to be paid to Seller
any such refund and the dollar value of any such credit or benefit. If Seller determines that the Company or Connextions HCI is entitled to file or make a claim for a
refund or credit or an amended Tax Return providing for a refund or credit with respect to a Pre-Closing Period, Seller shall be entitled to file or make such claim or
amended Tax Return (solely at Seller’s expense) on behalf of the Company or Connextions HCI, as applicable, and shall control the prosecution of such claim.
Buyer shall cooperate with any reasonable request by Seller relating to filing or making such claim or amended Tax Return or prosecuting such claim, provided that
any such costs relating to such claim or such Tax Return, as the case may be, shall be borne solely by Seller.

(j)  Limitations on Indemnity.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or otherwise, the Buyer Indemnified
Parties shall not be entitled to be indemnified or held harmless under this Agreement (including pursuant to a claim for breach of representation or warranty) for, and
Seller shall not be responsible for (i) (A) any Taxes that are paid prior to the Closing (including through estimated Tax payments or other prepayments of Tax), (B)
any Taxes (or Damages relating to Taxes) incurred in respect of any taxable year, or portion thereof, that begins after the Closing Date, (C) any Taxes (or Damages
relating to Taxes) incurred in respect of a Straddle Period that are not allocable to the portion of such Straddle Period ending on the Closing Date pursuant to Section
5.2(c), (D) any Taxes (or Damages relating to Taxes) which are Transfer Taxes for which Buyer is responsible pursuant to Section 5.2(h) or (ii) any Taxes (or
Damages relating to Taxes) attributable or relating to transactions outside the Ordinary Course of Business that occur on the Closing Date after the Closing, or (iii)
any Taxes (or Damages relating to Taxes) relating to the availability of or limitations on, or reductions in or changes to, any Tax attributes (including, without
limitation, net operating or capital losses, credit carryovers, Tax basis and depreciation or amortization periods).

SECTION 5.3.  Additional Efforts.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, each party hereto will use commercially reasonable efforts
to take, or cause to be taken, all actions and to do, or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper or advisable under applicable Laws promptly to consummate the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Following the Closing, as and when requested by any party hereto and at such requesting party’s expense, any other
party shall execute and deliver, or cause to be executed and delivered, all such documents and instruments and shall take, or cause to be taken, all such further
actions as the requesting party may reasonably deem necessary or desirable to evidence and effectuate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

 

SECTION 5.4.  Public Announcements.  Buyer and Seller agree that no press release or other announcement disclosing the existence of this Agreement
or the matters contemplated hereby may be issued by any party, directly or indirectly, without the prior consent of the other party hereto. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing contained herein will (i) limit any party or its Affiliates from issuing any press release or making any other announcement that such party or its
Affiliates is required by applicable Law or the requirements of any national securities exchange to issue, make or release, as reasonably determined by the disclosing
party, or (ii) limit Buyer or its Affiliates (including, without limitation, Buyer Parent) from making any disclosures that they deem necessary or advisable to be made
in filings with the SEC; provided that in each case under clause (i) and (ii), the party required to make the release or disclosure will allow the other party reasonable
time to comment on such release or disclosure in advance of such issuance and will consider any such comments in good faith.

 

SECTION 5.5.  Employees; Company Employee Benefits.

 

(a)  No later than May 15, 2017, Buyer shall cause the Company to offer employment to all Company Employees who are then employed by
the Current Employers and are not Group B Employees in accordance with the terms of the Employment Leasing and Transition Agreement. Each
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Company Employee who is not a Group B Employee and who accepts an offer of employment from the Company and who commences employment with the
Company in accordance with the terms of the Employment Leasing and Transition Agreement shall become a Transferred Employee. As of each Transferred
Employee’s Employment Transition Date (except as otherwise provided under the terms of the applicable Benefit Plan), the Transferred Employee shall cease to
participate in and accrue benefits under each Benefit Plan, and the Company will provide compensation and employee benefits to each such Transferred Employee
in accordance with the terms of the Employment Leasing and Transition Agreement.

(b)  The provisions contained in this Section 5.5 are included for the sole benefit of the parties hereto and nothing in this Section 5.5, whether
express or implied, shall (i) create any third-party beneficiary or other rights in any other Person, including any current or former employees, any participant in any
Benefit Plan, or any dependent or beneficiary thereof, (ii) be construed as an amendment, waiver or creation of or limitation on the ability to terminate any Benefit
Plans or benefit plan or agreement of Buyer or (iii) limit the ability of Buyer or the Company to terminate the employment of any Company Employee at any time.
Except as otherwise provided in the Employment Leasing and Transition Agreement, nothing in this Agreement shall diminish the Current Employers’ or the
Company’s rights to change or terminate its policies regarding salaries, benefits, and other employment matters at any time or from time to time.

(c)  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall constitute or be deemed to be an amendment to any Benefit Plan or any other compensation or
benefit plan, program or arrangement.

SECTION 5.6.  Names and Trademarks of Seller; Signage.  Subject to the last sentence of this Section 5.6, within ninety (90) days from the Closing
Date, Buyer shall take all action necessary to change the name of each member of the Company Group to remove all references to “OPTUM” and to remove all
references to “OPTUM” in conducting the Business. Buyer shall not, and shall ensure that its Representatives and the members of the Company Group after Closing
do not, represent itself or themselves as Seller or an Affiliate of Seller or as Representatives of Seller or an Affiliate of Seller. The prohibitions in this Section  5.6
shall expressly apply, without limitation, to the use of any company name, website, stationery, invoices, packaging and identifying signs bearing name or trademarks
of Seller or any Affiliate of Seller, except as permitted under the Transition Services Agreement. Seller will remove external building signage bearing the “Optum”
name from each of the Leased Real Property locations.

 

SECTION 5.7.  Straddle Contracts.

 

(a)  Buyer and Seller acknowledge and agree that certain Contracts that are utilized by Seller and its Affiliates (the “Seller Entities”) are also
utilized by the Company Group (such Contracts, together with all statements of work, exhibits, schedules, and other attachments thereto, the “Straddle Contracts”).
With respect to the Straddle Contracts, Seller and Buyer hereby agree that:

(i)  Until the replacement contract described below with respect to each such Straddle Contract is obtained (such period for each
Straddle Contract, the “Straddle Contract Period”), Seller and the Buyer shall, and shall cause their respective Affiliates (which, in the case of the Buyer,
shall include the Company Group) to, use commercially reasonable efforts to (A) replace each Straddle Contract with two new Contracts, one for the
applicable Seller Entity that relates solely to the Seller Entities’ retained businesses governed by such Straddle Contract (the “Seller Business”) and one for
the Company Group that relates solely to the Business governed by such Straddle Contract on materially similar terms and conditions as pertained to each of
Seller and the Company Group under the Straddle Contract as of the date hereof, and (B) terminate the rights and obligations of the Company Group or
Seller, as applicable, with respect to the portion of the Straddle Contract that was assigned in part and applicable to the other party’s business. If the
applicable counterparty declines to enter into replacement contracts as provided for in this Section
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5.7, Seller and the applicable Seller Entity, on the one hand, and Buyer and the Company Group, on the other hand, shall work together in good faith during
the remaining term of the Straddle Contract to seek a solution so that the respective parties will have the benefits, rights and obligations they were intended
to have under this Agreement.

(ii)  With respect to any Straddle Contract, during the Straddle Contract Period: (A) the Company Group and Seller shall, and shall
cause their Affiliates to, enter into such alternative arrangements during the Straddle Contract Period as the Company and/or Seller may reasonably request
(to the maximum extent permitted by Law and the applicable Straddle Contract) including: (1) Seller acting as the Company Group’s agent, as may be
directed by the Company, in order to obtain for the Company Group thereunder the benefits and burdens thereunder in respect of the Business, and (2) Seller
cooperating with the Company Group in any other reasonable arrangement designed to provide the benefits and burdens in respect of the Business to the
Company Group, including any subcontract, delegation or similar arrangement; (B) the Company Group shall perform or cause to be performed all
obligations owing to any counterparty under each such Straddle Contract in respect of the Business; and (C) Seller shall, and shall cause the Seller Entities
to perform, or cause to be performed, all obligations owing to any counterparty under each such Straddle Contract with respect to the Seller Business.

(d)  No benefits of the Straddle Contracts with respect to the Seller Business shall accrue to Company Group or Buyer, and Buyer, on behalf of
Company Group, hereby assigns to the Seller Entities all of the benefits accruing under the Straddle Contracts with respect to the Seller Business, including all
Intellectual Property Rights.

(e)  Seller hereby acknowledges and agrees, on behalf of itself and the Seller Entities, and Buyer hereby acknowledges and agrees, on behalf of
itself and the Company Group, that from and after the Closing, Seller and the Seller Entities or Buyer and the Company Group, as applicable, are not permitted to
and shall not, without the prior consent of Buyer or Seller, respectively: (i) for Seller and the Seller Entities, use or exercise any right (including the purchase or
consumption of any good, product, right or service) under a Straddle Contract, unless such use or exercise exclusively relates to the Seller Business; (ii) for Buyer
and Company Group, use or exercise any right (including the purchase or consumption of any good, product, right or service) under a Straddle Contract, unless such
use or exercise exclusively relates to the Company Group Business; (iii) for Seller and the Seller Entities, take any action under a Straddle Contract that creates or
continues any Liability of or on the part of the Company Group, Buyer or their Affiliates; or (iv) for Buyer and the Company Group, take any action under a
Straddle Contract that creates or continues any Liability of or on the part of Seller, the Seller Entities or their Affiliates. Seller hereby acknowledges and agrees that
Seller and the Seller Entities are liable for, and will bear, and will fully indemnify the Buyer and its Affiliates from any and all Liabilities arising under or related to
the Straddle Contracts to the extent relating to the Seller Business or the conduct or operation of the Business prior to the Closing or to the extent caused by any act
or omission of Seller, the Seller Entities, their Affiliates, or any of their subcontractors or Representatives. Except as may be otherwise set out in this Agreement,
Buyer hereby acknowledges and agrees that Buyer and the Company Group are liable for, and will bear, and will fully indemnify Seller and its Affiliates from any
and all Liabilities arising under or related to the Straddle Contracts to the extent relating to the conduct or operation of the Business following the Closing or to the
extent caused by any act or omission of Buyer, the Company Group, their Affiliates, or any of their subcontractors or Representatives.

(f)  All proprietary or non-public information relating to the Seller Business portion of the Straddle Contracts, including the Seller Entities’
performance of the Seller Business obligations thereunder, shall be deemed confidential and subject to Section 7.13. All proprietary or non-public information
relating to the Company Group Business portion of the Straddle Contracts, including the
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Company Group’s performance of the Company Group Business obligations thereunder, shall be deemed confidential and subject to Section 7.13. For the avoidance
of doubt, the foregoing provisions of this Section 5.7(e) shall not be deemed to prevent any party’s or its Affiliates’ ability to perform its obligations pursuant to
such Straddle Contract in accordance with this Section 5.7.

(g)  Seller and the Seller Entities, on the one hand, and Buyer and the Company, on the other hand, will cooperate with each other and work in
good faith with respect to the Straddle Contracts so as not to harm the other party’s relationship with the counterparties to the Straddle Contracts.

(a)  Seller and Buyer acknowledge and agree that they are not, by virtue of the relationship under this Section 5.7: (i) creating a joint venture or
similar venture between Buyer, the Company Group or their respective Affiliates, on the one hand, and Seller or the Seller Entities or their respective Affiliates,
on the other hand; (ii) authorized to act as the other party’s agent or otherwise bind the other party or its Affiliates with respect to any Straddle Contracts, other
than as otherwise agreed by the parties under this Section 5.7; or (iii) being granted any ownership, license or other rights in the Intellectual Property of the other
party or its Affiliates that is used or developed in the performance of, or licensed or assigned by the third party customer with respect to the Seller Business or
Business portion, as applicable, of the Straddle Contracts.

SECTION 1.8.  Restrictive Covenants.

 

(a)  Non-Competition. In consideration of the completion of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, Seller agrees that, for a period of
four (4) years from and after the Closing Date (the “Restricted Period”), Seller shall not, and shall cause each of its Subsidiaries not to, directly or indirectly, engage
or invest in, own, manage, operate, finance, control, be employed by, render services or advice or other aid to, or be connected or associated with in any capacity,
including without limitation as a partner, shareholder, manager, agent, consultant, advisor, developer or trustee, any Person or enterprise that engages in any
Restricted Activity anywhere in the United States or any of its territories (it being understood by the parties hereto that such business is not limited to any particular
region of the United States or any of its territories and that such business may be engaged in effectively from any location in the United States or any of its
territories); provided,  however, that none of the following will be considered a violation, in whole or in part, of this Agreement:

(i)  providing any services to the customers listed in Schedule 1.1(b) other than the services included in the Restricted Activity;

(ii)  providing any services to any customers not listed in Schedule 1.1(b); or

(iii)  the acquisition of another entity (whether through the acquisition of the equity securities of such entity or the operating assets of such
entity (an “Acquired Business”)) that engages in the Restricted Activity as long as the Restricted Activity is not the primary activity of such Acquired Business.

(a)  Non-Solicitation. In consideration of the completion of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, Seller agrees that, during (i) the
Restricted Period with respect to the Key Employees and (ii) the twelve (12) months following the Closing Date with respect to all other Company Employees,
without the prior written consent of Buyer, Seller shall not, and shall cause each of its Subsidiaries not to, directly or indirectly or by assisting others, contact,
approach, induce or solicit, or attempt to induce or solicit, hire, offer employment to, or otherwise engage as an employee or independent contractor, any of such
Company Employees; provided,  however, that this Section 5.8(b) shall not prohibit Seller or any of its Affiliates or Representatives from (i) interviewing or hiring
any Company Employee
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who responds, without specific inducement by Seller or any of its Subsidiaries, to a general solicitation made by Seller or any of its Subsidiaries in any trade
publication, newspaper, or online posting or through any search firm not targeted specifically at such Company Employee, or (ii) interviewing or hiring any
Company Employee who has not been employed by Buyer, the Company or any of their respective Subsidiaries for a period of at least six (6) months prior thereto.

(b)  Seller acknowledges and agrees that: (i) the duration, scope and geographic area of the covenants contained in this Section 5.8 are fair,
reasonable and necessary in order to protect the goodwill and legitimate business interests of the Company and Buyer and to prevent any unfair advantage conferred
upon Seller; and (ii) that adequate consideration has been received by Seller for such obligations and Buyer would not have entered into this Agreement or made the
payments to Seller hereunder unless Seller agreed to be subject to all of the restrictions set forth in this Section 5.8. If, however, any of the covenants set forth in this
Section 5.8 are held to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of such covenants shall not thereby be affected and shall be given full effect, without regard to the
invalid portions. If it is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that any of the restrictive covenants, or any part thereof, are unenforceable because of the
duration of such provision, the geographical area covered thereby, or any other determination of unreasonableness of the provision, the court making such
determination shall have the power to reduce the duration, area or scope of such provision and, in its reduced form, such provision shall then be enforceable and
shall be enforced.

(c)  Seller acknowledges that a breach by Seller of any of the covenants set forth in Section 5.8(a) or Section 5.8(b) of this Agreement may not
be reasonably or adequately compensated in damages in an action at law, and that Buyer will be entitled to seek, among other remedies, injunctive relief, which may
include, but will not be limited to: (i) restraining Seller from engaging in any action that would constitute or cause a breach or violation of this Section 5.8, (ii)
obtaining specific performance to compel Seller to perform its obligations and covenants hereunder, or (iii) obtaining damages available either at law or in equity.

Article VI 
Indemnification

SECTION 6.1.  Survival. The representations and warranties contained in  Article III and  Article IV hereof, and the indemnification obligations of the
parties with respect thereto, shall survive the Closing for a period of twenty-four (24) months following the Closing, subject to the terms and conditions of this
Article VI. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the representations and warranties in Section  3.1 (Organization and Qualification), Section  3.2 (Capitalization;
Subsidiaries), Section  3.3 (Title to the Shares), Section  3.4 (Authority Relative to the Transaction Documents), Section 3.13 (Environmental Matters), Section 3.14
(Taxes), and Section 3.20 (Brokers) (such representations and warranties by the Company and Seller, collectively, the “Fundamental Seller Representations and
Warranties”), Section  4.1 (Organization and Qualification), Section  4.2 (Authority Relative to the Transaction Documents), and Section  4.3 (Brokers) (such
representations and warranties by Buyer, collectively, the “Fundamental Buyer Representations and Warranties”) shall survive the Closing until ninety (90) days
after the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations. The indemnification obligation of Seller in Section 6.2(e) shall survive the Closing for a period of six (6)
years following the Closing. The covenants contained in this Agreement, and the indemnification obligations of the parties with respect thereto, shall survive the
Closing to the extent provided in their respective terms.

 

SECTION 6.2.  Seller’s Indemnification Obligations.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Article VI, Seller shall indemnify and hold harmless
Buyer, its Affiliates (including the Company and Connextions HCI) and each of their respective officers, directors, employees, and agents (collectively, the “Buyer
Indemnified Parties” and each a “Buyer Indemnified Party”), and shall reimburse the Buyer
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Indemnified Parties, for any Damages, whether in respect of third party claims, claims between the parties hereto, or otherwise directly or indirectly relating to, as a
result of, arising out of, or by virtue of:

 

(a)  any inaccuracy in or breach of any representation and warranty made by the Company or Seller to Buyer herein (other than Fundamental
Seller Representations and Warranties);

(b)  any inaccuracy in or breach of any Fundamental Seller Representations and Warranties;

(c)  any breach by the Company or Seller of, or failure by the Company or Seller to comply with, any covenant or obligation under this
Agreement to be performed by Seller;

(d)  (i) any Taxes of Seller for any taxable period, (ii) any Taxes for Pre-Closing Periods and the portion of any Straddle Period ending on and
including the Closing Date owed by or payable with respect to any member of the Company Group, (iii) any Transfer Taxes for which Seller is liable pursuant to
Section 5.2(h) of this Agreement, and (iv) any Taxes arising by reason of any member of the Company Group being a member of any “affiliated group” (within the
meaning of Section 1504(a) of the Code) on or prior to the Closing Date, including pursuant to U.S. Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-6(a) (or any predecessor
or successor thereof or any analogous or similar provision of state, local or non-U.S. Law); and

(e)  the matters set forth on Schedule 6.2(e).

SECTION 6.3.  Limitation on Seller’s Indemnification Obligations.  Seller’s obligations pursuant to Section  6.2 are subject to the following limitations:

 

(a)  Other than for Damages resulting from claims brought on the basis of fraudulent misrepresentation in the making of any representation or
warranty in  Article III, the Buyer Indemnified Parties shall not be entitled to recover under Section  6.2(a) (i) unless the Damages in respect of any single claim
exceed $10,000 (the “Single Claim Threshold”) or (ii) until the total amount of Damages which the Buyer Indemnified Parties would recover under Section  6.2(a)
exceeds an aggregate amount equal to $250,000 (the “Threshold”), in which case the Buyer Indemnified Parties shall be entitled to recover the entire amount of such
Damages regardless of the Threshold (provided that no claim for Damages of less than the Single Claim Threshold will be taken into account in determining
whether the Threshold has been met).

(b)  Other than for Damages resulting from claims brought on the basis of fraudulent misrepresentation in the making of any representation or
warranty in  Article III,  the aggregate amount of indemnification that the Buyer Indemnified Parties may receive to satisfy claims under Section 6.2(a) shall be
$10,000,000 (the “Cap”).

(c)  Seller shall not be liable for any Damages with respect to the matters set forth in Section 6.2 unless a claim is timely asserted prior to the
expiration of the survival period specified in Section  6.1;  provided,  however, if a notice of a claim is timely given under this Article VI then such indemnification
obligation shall continue to survive past expiration of such survival period until such claim has been satisfied or otherwise resolved as provided in this Article VI.

(d)  Other than for Damages resulting from claims brought on the basis of fraud or intentional misrepresentation, the aggregate liability of
Seller pursuant to Section  6.2 shall in no event exceed the amount of the cash proceeds actually received by Seller under this Agreement.
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(e)  For the avoidance of doubt, no Buyer Indemnified Party will assert a claim for indemnification under Section 6.2(a)  or Section 6.2(b) on
the basis of Section 3.6 (No Undisclosed Liabilities) if such claim would be covered under any other representation or warranty set forth in Article III but for the
effect of any express exceptions or limitations set forth in such other representation or warranty, including limitations as to materiality, Knowledge, dollar
thresholds, or duration.

(f)  In addition to the foregoing, Seller’s obligations pursuant to Section  6.2 shall be further limited by Section  5.2(j).

SECTION 6.4.  Buyer’s Indemnification Obligations.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Article VI, Buyer shall indemnify and hold harmless
Seller, its Affiliates and each of their respective officers, directors, employees, and agents (collectively, the “Seller Indemnified Parties” and each a “Seller
Indemnified Party”), and shall reimburse the Seller Indemnified Parties, for any Damages, whether in respect of third party claims, claims between the parties
hereto, or otherwise directly or indirectly relating to, as a result of, arising out of, or by virtue of:

 

(a)  any inaccuracy in or breach of any representation and warranty made by Buyer to Seller herein (other than Fundamental Buyer
Representations and Warranties);

(b)  any inaccuracy in or breach of any Fundamental Buyer Representations and Warranties; and

(c)  any breach by Buyer of, or failure by Buyer to comply with, any covenant or obligation under this Agreement to be performed by Buyer.

SECTION 6.5.  Limitation on Buyer’s Indemnification Obligations.  Buyer’s obligations pursuant to Section 6.4 are subject to the following
limitations:

 

(a)  Other than for Damages resulting from claims brought on the basis of fraudulent misrepresentation in the making of any representation or
warranty in  Article IV, the Seller Indemnified Parties shall not be entitled to recover under Section  6.4(a) until the total amount of Damages which the Seller
Indemnified Parties would recover under Section  6.4(a) exceeds an aggregate amount equal to the Threshold, in which case the Seller Indemnified Parties shall be
entitled to recover such Damages that exceed the Threshold.

(b)  Other than for Damages resulting from claims brought on the basis of fraudulent misrepresentation in the making of any representation or
warranty in  Article IV, the aggregate amount of indemnification that the Seller Indemnified Parties may receive to satisfy claims under Section  6.4(a) shall be the
Cap.

(c)  Buyer shall not be liable for any Damages with respect to the matters set forth in Section 6.4 unless a claim is timely asserted prior to the
expiration of the survival period specified in Section  6.1;  provided,  however, if a notice of a claim is timely given under this Article VI then such indemnification
obligation shall continue to survive past expiration of such survival period until such claim has been satisfied or otherwise resolved as provided in this Article VI.

SECTION 6.6.  Notice and Procedure.

(a)  In the event that any Legal Proceeding is instituted by a third party or any claim or demand is asserted or threatened against or sought to be
collected from a Person who is seeking indemnity under any provision of this Agreement (the “Indemnitee”) by a third party, in each case for which the party
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from whom indemnity is sought (the “Indemnitor”) may have liability to any Indemnitee hereunder (a “Third Party Claim”), such Indemnitee shall notify the
Indemnitor in writing of such Third Party Claim (a “Claim Notice”), in each such case promptly following such Indemnitee’s receipt of a Third Party Claim;
provided,  however, that the failure to give a timely Claim Notice shall not affect the rights of an Indemnitee hereunder or otherwise relieve the Indemnitor of any
liability that it may have to any Indemnitee, except and only to the extent that the Indemnitor demonstrates that the defense of such Third Party Claim is materially
prejudiced by the Indemnitee’s failure to give such notice. The Indemnitor shall have thirty (30) days after receipt of the Claim Notice (the “Notice Period”) to
notify the Indemnitee that it desires to defend the Indemnitee against such Third Party Claim.

(b)  In the event that the Indemnitor timely notifies the Indemnitee within the Notice Period that it desires to defend the Indemnitee against a
Third Party Claim, the Indemnitor shall have the right to defend the Indemnitee by appropriate proceedings and shall have the sole power to direct and control such
defense, with counsel of its choosing and at its own expense, unless the Third Party Claim seeks as the sole remedy an injunction or other equitable relief against the
Indemnitee or the Indemnitee reasonably concludes, based upon the advice of counsel, that an actual or potential conflict exists between the Indemnitee and the
Indemnitor in connection with the defense of such Third Party Claim. If an Indemnitor assumes the defense of a Third Party Claim in accordance with this Section
6.6, (i) the Indemnitor shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to defend diligently such Third Party Claim, and (ii) the Indemnitee, prior to the period in which
the Indemnitor assumes the defense of such matter, may take such reasonable actions to preserve any and all rights with respect to such matter, without such actions
being construed as a waiver of the Indemnitee’s rights to defense and indemnification pursuant to this Agreement, but with such actions not being determinative of
the amount of any Damages. The Indemnitor shall not, without the prior written consent of the Indemnitee (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
delayed or conditioned), settle, compromise or offer to settle or compromise any Third Party Claim that does not include as a term thereof the giving by the
Person(s) asserting such Third Party Claim to Indemnitee a release from all Liability with respect to such claim or consent to entry of any judgment.
Notwithstanding anything in this Section 6.6 to the contrary, the Indemnitee may participate, through counsel of its choosing and at its own expense, in the defense
of any such Third Party Claim as to which the Indemnitor has so elected to assume and conduct the defense thereof.

(c)  If the Indemnitor (i) does not elect to defend the Indemnitee against a Third Party Claim, whether by not giving the Indemnitee timely
notice of its desire to so defend or otherwise or (ii) after assuming the defense of a Third Party Claim, fails to take commercially reasonable steps necessary to
defend diligently such Third Party Claim, the Indemnitee shall have the right (but not the obligation) to assume such defense and shall have the sole power to direct
and control such defense, with counsel of its choosing, at the expense of the Indemnitor; it being understood that the Indemnitee’s right to indemnification for a
Third Party Claim shall not be adversely affected by assuming the defense of such Third Party Claim. The Indemnitee shall not settle a Third Party Claim without
the consent of the Indemnitor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned.

(d)  The Indemnitee and the Indemnitor shall cooperate in good faith and render to each other such assistance as they may reasonably require of
each other in connection with the defense of a Third Party Claim, including by providing reasonable access to each other’s relevant business records and other
documents, and employees.

(e)  The Indemnitee and the Indemnitor shall use commercially reasonable efforts to avoid production of confidential information (consistent
with applicable Law), and to cause all communications among employees, counsel and others representing any party to a Third Party Claim to be made so as to
preserve any applicable attorney-client or work-product privileges.
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(f)  A claim for indemnification for any matter not involving a Third Party Claim may be asserted by (i) in the case of any claim under Section
6.2, written notice by Buyer to Seller, and (ii) in the case of any claim under Section 6.4, written notice by Seller to Buyer.

SECTION 6.7.  Duty to Mitigate. Any Person seeking indemnification under this Agreement shall take all commercially reasonable steps to mitigate
any Damages incurred by such Person upon and after becoming aware of any event or condition that would reasonably be expected to give rise to any
indemnification rights hereunder.

 

SECTION 6.8.  Calculation of Damages.  

 

(a)  For purposes of calculating the amount of Damages to which the Buyer Indemnified Parties or the Seller Indemnified Parties are entitled
under this Article VI (but not for purposes of determining whether a representation or warranty has been breached), the terms “material” and “materiality” will be
disregarded.

(b)  Any Indemnitee will only be entitled to recover the full amount of Damages once with respect to any item giving rise to Damages.

(c)  The amount of any indemnification obligation under this Agreement shall be reduced by the amount of any insurance proceeds actually
received by the Indemnitee under any applicable insurance policy with respect thereto, net of any deductibles or other expenses and any increase in applicable
premiums/retro-premiums related to the recovery of such proceeds; provided,  however, that the foregoing shall not be deemed to require an Indemnitee to seek
recovery under any applicable insurance policies prior to a claim for indemnification hereunder. In the event that any Indemnitee actually recovers any insurance
proceeds with respect to any Damages for which such Person has been indemnified under this Agreement, then a refund equal to the aggregate amount of the
insurance recovery (net of any deductibles or other expenses and any increase in applicable premiums/retro-premiums related to the recovery of such proceeds) shall
be made promptly to the Indemnitor so as to avoid a duplication of recovery (but not to exceed the amount for which such Indemnitee was previously indemnified
for hereunder in respect of such Damages).

(d)  Any indemnification obligation under this Agreement shall be net of any indemnity, contribution or other similar payment received by the
Indemnitee or its Affiliates from any third party with respect thereto, net of any expenses related to the recovery of such amounts. In the event that any recovery is
received by any Indemnitee or its Affiliates with respect to any indemnification obligation for which any such Person has been indemnified under this Agreement,
then a refund equal to the aggregate amount of the recovery shall be made promptly to the Indemnitor.

(e)  NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING HEREIN TO THE CONTRARY, IN NO EVENT SHALL ANY PARTY BE LIABLE TO ANY
INDEMNITEE HEREUNDER FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES OR
DAMAGES BASED ON A MULTIPLE OF EARNINGS, REVENUES, OR OTHER FINANCIAL MEASURE OR OTHER DAMAGES NOT EXPRESSLY
PROVIDED FOR IN THIS AGREEMENT, IN EACH CASE, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT SUCH DAMAGES ARE PAYABLE BY AN INDEMNITEE TO AN
UNAFFILIATED THIRD PARTY.

SECTION 6.9.  Exclusive Remedy.

(a)  Buyer and Seller acknowledge and agree that their sole and exclusive remedy for monetary relief with respect to any breach of any
representation, warranty, covenant or agreement and with
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respect to any and all claims relating to the subject matter of this Agreement, excluding (i) any claim relating to fraudulent misrepresentation in the making of any
representation or warranty under  Article III or  Article IV, as applicable, or (ii) any Post-Closing Adjustment contemplated by Section  2.5, shall be pursuant to the
provisions set forth in this Article VI;  provided,  however, nothing contained herein shall prevent the Indemnitee from (A) pursuing remedies as may be available to
such party under applicable Law in the event of the Indemnitor’s failure to comply with its indemnification obligations hereunder, or (B) pursuing an injunction or
other equitable relief as may be available to such party under applicable Law.

(b)  Buyer and Seller agree to treat (and cause their respective Affiliates to treat) any indemnification payment under this Agreement as an
adjustment to the Purchase Price. Neither Buyer nor Seller shall (nor shall they permit their respective Affiliates to) take any position on any Tax Return, or before
any Governmental Entity involved in the administration of Tax Laws, that is inconsistent with such treatment.

Article VII 
Miscellaneous

SECTION 7.1.  Fees and Expenses.  Unless otherwise specifically provided pursuant to this Agreement, all Expenses incurred in connection with this
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby shall be paid by the party incurring such Expenses.

 

SECTION 7.2.  Entire Agreement; Amendment; Assignment. 

(a)  This Agreement (including the schedules and exhibits hereto) and the other Transaction Documents constitute the entire agreement between
the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all other prior agreements and understandings, both written and oral, between the parties
with respect to the subject matter hereof. For the avoidance of doubt, the Confidentiality Agreement is hereby terminated.

(b)  This Agreement may not be amended, supplemented, or otherwise modified except by an instrument in writing executed by the party
against which such amendment, supplement, or other modification is sought to be enforced. No course of dealing between or among any Persons having any interest
in this Agreement shall be deemed effective to modify or amend any part of this Agreement or any rights or obligations of any Person under or by reason of this
Agreement.

(c)  No party may assign this Agreement, nor any of the rights, interests or obligations hereunder, by operation of Law (including by merger or
consolidation) or otherwise, without the prior written consent of the other parties hereto; provided,  however, that Seller shall have the right, without the consent of
any other party, to assign its rights or delegate its responsibilities, liabilities and obligations under this Agreement to any Affiliate of Seller, provided that Seller shall
remain liable for the performance of its obligations hereunder. Any assignment in violation of the preceding sentence shall be void.

SECTION 7.3.  Waiver.  The rights and remedies of the parties to this Agreement are cumulative and not alternative. Neither the failure nor any delay
by any party in exercising any right, power or privilege under this Agreement or the documents referred to in this Agreement will operate as a waiver of such right,
power or privilege, and no single or partial exercise of any such right, power or privilege will preclude any other or further exercise of such right, power or privilege
or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. To the maximum extent permitted by applicable Law, (a) no claim or right arising out of this Agreement or the
documents referred to in this Agreement can be discharged by one party, in whole or in part, by a waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless it is in a writing
signed by the other party, (b) no waiver that may be given by a party will be applicable except in the specific instance for which it is
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given, and (c) no notice to or demand on one party will be deemed to be a waiver of any obligation of such party or of the right of the party giving such notice or
demand to take further action without notice or demand as provided in this Agreement or the documents referred to in this Agreement.

 

SECTION 7.4.  Notices.  All notices, requests, instructions or other documents to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
deemed effectively given only (a) when personally delivered, (b) one Business Day after deposit with a nationally recognized overnight courier, specifying next day
delivery, or (c) three (3) Business Days after being sent by registered or certified mail. Notices, demands, and communications to Buyer, the Company, and Seller
will, unless another address is specified in writing in accordance with this Section, be sent to the applicable address indicated below:

 

if to the Company or Buyer:TeleTech Healthcare Solutions, Inc.
9197 South Peoria Street, 2-300
Englewood, CO 80112
Attention:  General Counsel

with a copy to: Bass, Berry & Sims PLC
150 Third Ave. South, Suite 2800
Nashville, TN 37201
Attention:  Scott W. Bell

if to Seller:OPTUMHEALTH HOLDINGS, LLC
9900 Bren Road East
Minnetonka, MN 55343
Attention:  Executive Vice President
and Chief Legal Officer 
Attention:  Vice President, Corporate Development

with a copy to: Faegre Baker Daniels LLP
2200 Wells Fargo Center
90 South Seventh Street
Minneapolis, MN 55402
Attention:  W. Morgan Burns

Notice given by a party’s counsel shall be considered notice given by that party.

SECTION 7.5.  Governing Law; Waiver of Jury Trial.  The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
Laws of the State of Delaware, excluding any rule or principle that might refer the governance or the construction of this Agreement to the laws of another
jurisdiction. EACH PARTY HERETO ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT ANY CONTROVERSY WHICH MAY ARISE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT
IS LIKELY TO INVOLVE COMPLICATED AND DIFFICULT ISSUES, AND THEREFORE EACH SUCH PARTY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND
UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT SUCH PARTY MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY LITIGATION DIRECTLY OR
INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS AGREEMENT. EACH
PARTY CERTIFIES AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT (A) NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PARTY HAS REPRESENTED,
EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER PARTY WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, SEEK TO ENFORCE THE FOREGOING
WAIVER, (B) EACH PARTY UNDERSTANDS AND HAS CONSIDERED THE IMPLICATIONS OF THIS WAIVER, (C) EACH PARTY MAKES THIS
WAIVER VOLUNTARILY, AND (D) EACH PARTY HAS BEEN INDUCED
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TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT BY, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION  7.5.

 

SECTION 7.6.  Divisions and Headings.  The division of this Agreement into sections and subsections and the use of captions and headings in
connection therewith are solely for convenience and shall have no legal effect in construing the provisions of this Agreement.

 

SECTION 7.7.  Parties in Interest.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure solely to the benefit of each party hereto and its successors and
permitted assigns, and nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon any other Person any rights, benefits or remedies of any
nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement other than the third party rights under Article VI.

 

SECTION 7.8.  Severability.  Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid
under applicable Law, but if any provision of this Agreement is held to be prohibited by or invalid under applicable Law, such provision shall be ineffective only to
the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provision or the remaining provisions of this Agreement.

 

SECTION 7.9.  Consent to Jurisdiction.  EACH PARTY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY SUBMITS TO THE JURISDICTION OF THE COURT OF
CHANCERY OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE OR ANY FEDERAL COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION IN THE STATE OF DELAWARE, SOLELY
IN RESPECT OF THE INTERPRETATION AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT AND OF THE DOCUMENTS
REFERRED TO IN THIS AGREEMENT, AND HEREBY WAIVES, AND AGREES NOT TO ASSERT, AS A DEFENSE IN ANY ACTION, SUIT OR
PROCEEDING FOR THE INTERPRETATION OR ENFORCEMENT HEREOF OR OF ANY SUCH DOCUMENT, (A) THAT IT IS NOT SUBJECT THERETO
OR THAT SUCH ACTION, SUIT OR PROCEEDING MAY NOT BE BROUGHT OR IS NOT MAINTAINABLE IN SAID COURTS, (B) THAT THE VENUE
THEREOF MAY NOT BE APPROPRIATE OR (C) THAT THE INTERNAL LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE DO NOT GOVERN THE VALIDITY,
INTERPRETATION OR EFFECT OF THIS AGREEMENT, AND THE PARTIES HERETO IRREVOCABLY AGREE THAT ALL DISPUTES WITH RESPECT
TO SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING SHALL BE HEARD AND DETERMINED IN SUCH A STATE OR FEDERAL COURT. EACH PARTY HEREBY
CONSENTS TO AND GRANTS ANY SUCH COURT JURISDICTION OVER THE PERSON OF SUCH PARTIES AND OVER THE SUBJECT MATTER OF
ANY SUCH DISPUTE AND AGREES THAT MAILING OF PROCESS OR OTHER PAPERS IN CONNECTION WITH ANY SUCH ACTION OR
PROCEEDING IN THE MANNER PROVIDED IN SECTION  7.4, OR IN SUCH OTHER MANNER AS MAY BE PERMITTED BY LAW, SHALL BE VALID
AND SUFFICIENT SERVICE THEREOF.

 

SECTION 7.10.  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be an original copy of
this Agreement and all of which, when taken together, will be deemed to constitute one and the same agreement. The exchange of copies of this Agreement and of
signature pages by facsimile transmission or other electronic means shall constitute effective execution and delivery of this Agreement as to the parties and may be
used in lieu of the original Agreement for all purposes. Signatures of the parties transmitted by facsimile or other electronic means shall be deemed to be their
original signatures for any purposes whatsoever.

 

SECTION 7.11.  Interpretation.

 

(a)  The words “hereof,” “herein” and “herewith” and words of similar import shall, unless otherwise stated, be construed to refer to this
Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of this Agreement, and article, section, paragraph, exhibit and schedule references are to the
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articles, sections, paragraphs, exhibits and schedules of this Agreement unless otherwise specified. Whenever the words “include,” “includes” or “including” are
used in this Agreement, they shall be deemed to be followed by the words “without limitation.” The term “or” is not exclusive. All terms defined in this Agreement
shall have the defined meanings contained herein when used in any certificate or other document made or delivered pursuant hereto unless otherwise defined
therein. The definitions contained in this Agreement are applicable to the singular as well as the plural forms of such terms. All pronouns contained in this
Agreement encompass the masculine as well as to the feminine and neuter genders of such terms. Any Contract, instrument or Law defined or referred to herein or
in any Contract or instrument that is referred to herein means such Contract, instrument or Law as from time to time, amended, qualified or supplemented, including
(in the case of Contracts and instruments) by waiver or consent and (in the case of Laws) by succession of comparable successor Laws and all attachments thereto
and instruments incorporated therein. References to a Person are also to its permitted successors and assigns. The reference to “$” or “Dollars” shall be United
States Dollars.

(b)  The parties have participated jointly in the negotiation and drafting of this Agreement. In the event an ambiguity or question of intent or
interpretation arises, this Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by the parties and no presumption or burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring
any party by virtue of the authorship of any provisions of this Agreement. The language used in this Agreement and the other agreements contemplated hereby shall
be deemed to be the language chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of strict construction shall be applied against any party.

SECTION 7.12.  Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement.

 

SECTION 7.13.  Confidentiality.  After the Closing:

 

(a)  Buyer and its Affiliates shall not disclose, directly or indirectly, any documents, work papers or other materials of a confidential or
proprietary nature related to Seller (including any such information obtained in connection with the entering into of this Agreement) and shall have all such
information kept confidential; provided,  however, that Buyer may disclose any such information (i) that is or becomes generally available to the public other than as
a result of disclosure by Buyer or its Affiliates, (ii) that is or becomes available to Buyer on a non-confidential basis from a source that is not bound by a
confidentiality obligation to Seller, or (iii) with the prior written approval of Seller; provided further, that, to the extent that Buyer or its Affiliates may become
legally compelled to disclose any such information by any Governmental Entity or if Buyer or its Affiliates receives an opinion of counsel that disclosure is required
in order to avoid violating any Laws, Buyer or its Affiliates may disclose such information but only after, if applicable or relevant, they have used all commercially
reasonable efforts to afford Seller, at its sole cost and expense, the opportunity to obtain an appropriate protective order, or other satisfactory assurance of
confidential treatment, for the information required to be disclosed; provided further, that Buyer may disclose such information to the extent necessary to comply
with applicable Law or regulation, or to enforce its obligations under this Agreement; and, provided further, that this Section  7.13 shall not prohibit or restrict or
otherwise limit the use or disclosure by Buyer and its Affiliates of any documents, work papers or other materials or information related to the Company or
Connextions HCI.

(b)  Seller and its Affiliates shall not disclose, directly or indirectly, any documents, work papers or other materials of a confidential or
proprietary nature related to Buyer and its Affiliates (which shall for the purposes of this Section 7.13 include, as of the Closing, the Company and Connextions
HCI) (including any information obtained in connection with the entering into of this Agreement) and shall have all such information kept confidential; provided,
 however, that Seller may disclose any such information (i) that is or becomes generally available to the public other than as a result of disclosure by Seller or its
Affiliates, (ii) that is or becomes available to Seller on a non-confidential basis from a source
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that is not bound by a confidentiality obligation to Buyer, or (iii) with the prior written approval of Buyer; provided further, that, to the extent that Seller or its
Affiliates may become legally compelled to disclose any such information by any Governmental Entity or if Seller or its Affiliates receives an opinion of counsel
that disclosure is required in order to avoid violating any Laws, Seller or its Affiliates may disclose such information but only after, if applicable or relevant, they
have used all commercially reasonable efforts to afford Buyer, at its sole cost and expense, the opportunity to obtain an appropriate protective order, or other
satisfactory assurance of confidential treatment, for the information required to be disclosed; and, provided further, that Seller may disclose such information to the
extent necessary to comply with applicable Law or regulation, in connection with any required Tax disclosures or to enforce its rights under this Agreement.

SECTION 7.14.  Waiver of Conflicts Regarding Representation; Non-Assertion of Attorney-Client Privilege.

 

(a)  Effective as of the Effective Time, Buyer hereby waives and agrees not to assert, and Buyer agrees to cause each of the Company and
Connextions HCI to waive and not to assert, any conflict of interest arising out of or relating to any representation after the Closing (any “Post-Closing
Representation”) of Seller, any of its Affiliates or any officer, employee or director of Seller or any of its Affiliates (any such Person, a “Designated Person”) in any
matter involving this Agreement or any agreement, certificate, instrument or other document executed or delivered pursuant to this Agreement or any transaction
contemplated hereby or thereby (including any litigation, arbitration, mediation or other proceeding and including any matter regarding the negotiation, execution,
performance or enforceability hereof or thereof) by Faegre Baker Daniels LLP and any other legal counsel currently representing any Designated Person in
connection with this Agreement or any agreement, certificate, instrument or other document executed or delivered pursuant to this Agreement or any transaction
contemplated hereby or thereby (including the negotiation, execution or performance hereof or thereof) (the “Current Representation”).

(b)  Effective as of the Effective Time, Buyer hereby agrees not to control or assert, and Buyer agrees to cause each of the Company and
Connextions HCI not to control or assert, any attorney-client privilege, work product protection or other similar privilege or protection applicable to any
communication between any legal counsel and any Designated Person during the Current Representation in connection with any Post-Closing Representation,
including in connection with a dispute with Buyer or any of its Affiliates (including, after the Closing Date, the Company and Connextions HCI), it being the
intention of the parties hereto that all rights of any Person under or with respect to such attorney-client privilege, work product protection or other similar privilege
or protection, including the right to waive, assert and otherwise control such attorney-client privilege, work product protection or other similar privilege or
protection, shall be (and are hereby) transferred to or retained by (as applicable), and vested solely in, such Designated Person.

[Signature pages follow.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has duly executed this Agreement or caused this Agreement to be duly executed on its behalf as of
the day and year first above written.

BUYER:

TELETECH HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.

By: 
Name: 

Title:
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has duly executed this Agreement or caused this Agreement to be duly executed on its behalf as of
the day and year first above written.

COMPANY:

CONNEXTIONS, INC.

By: 
Name: 

Title:

SELLER:

OPTUMHEALTH HOLDINGS, LLC

By: 
Name: 

Title:
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Schedule A

Certain Defined Terms

“Affiliate” means with respect to any Person, any other Person that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with such Person. A Person shall be deemed to control another Person if such Person possesses, directly or indirectly, the power to direct or
cause the direction of the management and policies of the “controlled” Person, whether through ownership of voting securities, by Contract, or otherwise.

“Business” means the provision of contract call center services on behalf of customers, primarily in the healthcare industry, conducted by the Company as of
the date of this Agreement (for the avoidance of doubt, giving effect to the Contribution).

“Business Data” means all business information and all personally-identifying information and data (whether of employees, contractors, consultants,
customers, consumers, or other Persons and whether in electronic or any other form or medium) that is accessed, collected, used, processed, stored, shared,
distributed, transferred, disclosed, destroyed, or disposed of by any of the Business Systems.

“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or day on which banks in New York, New York are authorized or required by Law to close.

“Business Systems” means all software, computer hardware (whether general or special purpose), electronic data processing, information, record keeping,
communications, telecommunications, networks, interfaces, platforms, servers, peripherals, and computer systems, including any outsourced systems and processes
that are owned or used or held for use in, and that are material for, the conduct of the Business.

“Buyer Parent” means TeleTech Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation.

“Closing Aged Receivables” means all accounts receivable and other receivables of the Business that have been invoiced and unpaid and are past due for
more than ninety (90) days as of the Closing Date.

“Closing Indebtedness” means the aggregate amount of Indebtedness outstanding as of the Effective Time.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Company Employees” means the employees identified in Chart A of the Employment Leasing and Transition Agreement.

“Company Group” means the Company and Connextions HCI.

“Company Intellectual Property” means the Intellectual Property used or held for use in the conduct of the Business.

“Confidentiality Agreement” means that certain confidentiality agreement by and between the Company and TeleTech Services Corporation (an Affiliate of
Buyer), dated December 14, 2016, as amended.

“Connextions HCI” means Connextions HCI, LLC, a Florida limited liability company and wholly owned Subsidiary of the Company.
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“Contract” means any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, contract, lease, license, purchase order, sales order, memoranda of understanding or other agreement,
undertaking or binding commitment, whether or not in written form.

“Contribution” means the transfer of certain assets and liabilities related to the Business by Affiliates of the Company to the Company prior to the date of
this Agreement pursuant to the Contribution Agreement.

“Contribution Agreement” means that certain Assignment, Assumption and Distribution Agreement by and among the Company, OHCS, OI, and UHS,
dated as of April 2, 2017, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

“Current Employer” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the Employment Leasing and Transition Agreement.

“Damages” means all assessments, levies, losses, fines, liabilities, claims, payments, penalties, damages, interest, costs and expenses, including reasonable
attorneys’ fees and expenses.

“Data Security Requirements” means, collectively, all of the following to the extent relating to data treatment and processing, or otherwise relating to
privacy, security, or security breach notification requirements and applicable to the Company or Connextions HCI, to the conduct of the Business, or to any of the
Business Systems or any Business Data: (i) any of the Company Group’s own rules, policies, and procedures, (ii) all Laws, (iii) industry standards applicable to the
industry in which the Business operates (including, if applicable, the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI DSS)), and (iv) Contracts into which the
Company Group have entered or by which they are otherwise bound.

“Disclosure Schedule” means the disclosure schedule delivered by Seller and the Company to Buyer concurrently with the execution of this Agreement.

“Employment Leasing and Transition Agreement” means the Employment Leasing and Transition Agreement dated as of the date hereof by and between
OSI, UHS, and Buyer.

“Employment Transition Date” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the Employment Leasing and Transition Agreement.

“Environmental Laws” means any Laws relating to (i) protection, preservation or cleanup of the environment or natural resources; or (ii) the manufacture,
generation, production, installation, use, handling, storage, treatment, transportation, disposal, or release of or exposure to Hazardous Substances.

“Environmental, Health and Safety Liabilities” means any cost, Damages, expense, Liability, obligation or other responsibility arising from or under any
Environmental Law.

“ERISA Affiliate” means any entity that is considered a single employer with Seller or the Company or any Affiliate of Seller or the Company under
Section 414 of the Code.

“Estimated Purchase Price” means $80,000,000 minus Seller’s good faith estimates, as of the Effective Time, of Closing Indebtedness and Transaction
Expenses.

“Expenses” means all out-of-pocket expenses (including all fees and expenses of counsel, accountants, investment bankers, experts and consultants to a
party hereto and its Affiliates) incurred by a
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party or on its behalf in connection with, or related to, the authorization, preparation, negotiation, execution and performance of this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby.

“GAAP” means the United States generally accepted accounting principles, at the time in effect, consistently applied.

“Governing Documents” means (i) in the case of a Person that is a corporation, its articles or certificate of incorporation and its bylaws or similar governing
instruments required by the Laws of its jurisdiction of formation or organization; (ii) in the case of a Person that is a partnership, its articles or certificate of
partnership, formation or association, and its partnership agreement (in each case, limited, limited liability, general or otherwise); (iii) in the case of a Person that is a
limited liability company, its articles or certificate of formation or organization, and its limited liability company agreement or operating agreement; (iv) in the case
of a Person that is a trust, its declaration of trust, trust agreement, certificates of ownership or similar governing instruments required by the Laws of its jurisdiction
of formation; and (v) in the case of a Person that is none of a corporation, partnership (limited, limited liability, general or otherwise), limited liability company, trust
or natural person, its governing instruments as required or contemplated by the Laws of its jurisdiction of organization.

“Government Program” means the federal Medicare Program (including Medicare Part C and Medicare Part D), Medicaid, Medicaid-waiver and
CHAMPUS/TRICARE programs, any other federal health care program (as defined in 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7b(f)), any other federal or state medical assistance
programs.

“Governmental Approval” means any consent, approval, authorization, waiver, permit, license, grant, franchise, certification, exemption or order of, or
registration, franchise, certificate, declaration or filing with any Governmental Entity.

“Governmental Entity” means any federal, state, municipal, local or foreign government, any political subdivision thereof or any court, administrative or
regulatory agency, department, instrumentality, body or commission or other governmental or quasi-governmental authority, agency or entity, domestic or foreign.

“Group B Employees” means the employees identified in Chart B of the Employment Leasing and Transition Agreement.

“Hazardous Substances” means any (i) pollutant, contaminant, waste, petroleum, petroleum products, asbestos or asbestos-containing material, radioactive
materials, polychlorinated biphenyls, mold, urea formaldehyde and radon gas; (ii) other chemicals, materials or substances defined or regulated as “pesticide,”
“hazardous waste,” “hazardous material,” “hazardous substance,” “extremely hazardous waste,” “restricted hazardous waste,” “biohazardous waste,” “biomedical
waste,” “medical waste,” “sharps,” “contaminant,” “pollutant,” “toxic waste,” “toxic substance” or words of similar import, under any Environmental Law; and (iii)
other substance, material or waste which may be the subject of regulatory action by a Governmental Entity pursuant to any Environmental Law.

“Healthcare Laws” means all Laws relating to: (i) the licensure, certification, qualification or authority to operate business in connection with the provision
of, payment for, or arrangement of, health care services, health benefits or health insurance and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Medicare
Program Laws, including the Medicare Advantage program (also known as “Medicare Part C”) and the Medicare Prescription Drug Benefit Programs (also known
as “Medicare Part D”), and Laws relating to the Medicaid program; (ii) the offer, solicitation, receipt or acceptance of improper inducements or incentives involving
Persons operating in the health care industry, including the following statutes: the
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Federal anti-kickback law (42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(b)), the Federal physician self-referral law (42 U.S.C. § 1395nn), the Federal False Claims Act (31 U.S.C. §§
3729, et seq.), the Federal Civil Monetary Penalties Law (42 U.S.C. § 1320a−7a), the Federal Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act (31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq.) and any
similar state Laws; (iii) the administration of health care claims or benefits for, or processing or payment for, health care services, treatment or supplies furnished by
providers, including such administration and processing or payment activities conducted by third party administrators, utilization review agents and persons
performing quality assurance, credentialing or coordination of benefits; (iv) billings to insurance companies, health maintenance organizations and other managed
care plans or Government Programs or otherwise related to insurance fraud; and (v) any state insurance, health maintenance organization or managed care Laws
(including Laws relating to Medicaid programs).

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (Pub. L. No. 104-191), as amended by the Health Information Technology
for Economic and Clinical Health Act (Pub. L. No. 111-5) and their implementing regulations set forth at 45 CFR Part 160, 162 and 164.

“HSR Act” means the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Indebtedness” means (without duplication), with respect to the Company and Connextions HCI, (i) indebtedness for borrowed money, whether secured or
unsecured; (ii) obligations evidenced by any note, bond, debenture or other debt security; (iii) obligations under conditional sale or other title retention agreements
relating to purchased property; (iv) obligations under letter of credit or similar facilities (for the avoidance of doubt, not including any undrawn amounts under
standby letters of credit); (v) obligations under interest rate cap, swap, collar or similar transaction or currency hedging transactions; (vi) any debt-like obligation in
respect of the deferred purchase price of property with respect to which the Company or Connextions HCI is liable as obligor (including contingent purchase price
obligations, such as earnouts, resulting from acquisitions); (vii) guarantees of any such indebtedness referred to in clauses (i)-(vi) of any other Person; and (viii) any
accrued interest, prepayment premiums or penalties or other costs or expenses related to any of the foregoing.

“Intellectual Property” means all rights in patents, patent applications, trademarks, service marks and trade names, and all goodwill associated therewith and
all registrations and applications therefor, copyrights, copyright registrations and applications, Internet domain names, software, technology, processes, inventions,
methodologies, workflows, protocols, trade secrets, and know how, or any other similar type of proprietary or intellectual property right, in each case, in any
jurisdiction, to the extent protectable by applicable Law.

“IRS” means the U.S. Internal Revenue Service.

“Key Employees” means the individuals identified on Schedule 1.1(c).

“Knowledge of Buyer” or “Buyer’s Knowledge” means any matters known by, or which should be known following reasonable inquiry by, any of Kenneth
D. Tuchman, Regina Paolillo, and Margaret McLean.

“Knowledge of Seller” means any matters known by, or which should be known following reasonable inquiry by, any of Norman Wright, Elaine
Birkemeyer, or Joel Johnson.

“Law” means any foreign or domestic law, Order, ordinance, stipulation, statute or regulation of a Governmental Entity, including any Healthcare Laws.
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“Lease” means any lease with respect to the Leased Real Property.

“Legal Proceeding” means any judicial (civil or criminal) or administrative action, suit, claim, charge, audit, mediation, arbitration, Order, inquiry, hearing,
search warrant, civil investigative demand, or other proceeding commenced, brought, conducted, pending, or heard by or before any Governmental Entity, arbitrator,
or mediator, or any enforcement action or material subpoena by or from any Governmental Entity.

“Liability” or “Liabilities” means any debts, liabilities, commitments, obligations, duties or responsibilities of any kind and description, whether accrued or
unaccrued, absolute or contingent, known or unknown, liquidated or unliquidated, secured or unsecured, joint or several, due or to become due, vested or unvested,
and regardless of whether such debt, liability or obligation would be required to be disclosed on a balance sheet prepared in accordance with GAAP.

“Licensed Intellectual Property” means any Company Intellectual Property that is owned by a third party and licensed to a member of the Company Group.

“Lien” means any mortgage, lien, pledge, charge, security interest or encumbrance.

“Net Working Capital” means, as of the Effective Time, the aggregate amount of current assets of the Business, minus the aggregate amount of current
liabilities of the Business, in each case determined in accordance with the Net Working Capital Methodology.

“Net Working Capital Methodology” means the accounting methodologies, principles, practices, policies, and procedures set forth on Exhibit A attached
hereto.

“OHCS” means OptumHealth Care Solutions, Inc., a Delaware corporation. References to OHCS in Article III of the Agreement only refer to OHCS to the
extent of its ownership or lease of assets used in the Business that were contributed to the Company under the Contribution Agreement.

“OI” means OptumInsight, Inc., a Delaware corporation. References to OI in Article III of the Agreement only refer to OI to the extent of its ownership or
lease of assets used in the Business that were contributed to the Company under the Contribution Agreement.

“Open Source Software” means any software subject to a license or other agreement whose terms require the distribution of source code in connection with
the distribution of the software to which such license applies or that prohibits the licensee from charging a fee or otherwise limit the licensee’s freedom of action
with regard to seeking compensation in connection with sublicensing or distributing the software to which such license applies (whether in source code or
executable code form), including the licenses commonly referred to as the “Artistic License,” the “Mozilla Public License,” the “General Public License,” the
“Lesser General Public License” and other similar licenses applicable to software distributed without charge to the public in source code form.

“Order” means any judgment, order, award, decree, consent, writ, or injunction of any Governmental Entity, any conciliation agreement, settlement
agreement, market conduct or financial examination report or corrective action plan with any Governmental Entity.

“Ordinary Course of Business” means the conduct of the Business by Seller, or each member of the Company Group in a manner consistent with its past
custom and practice (or, in the case of the assets transferred as part of the Contribution, in a manner consistent with the past custom and practice of the transferors of
such assets).
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“OSI” means Optum Services, Inc., a Delaware corporation. References to OSI in Article III of the Agreement only refer to OI to the extent of its
employment of Transferred Employees.

“Owned Intellectual Property” means Company Intellectual Property owned by or exclusively licensed to the Company Group, including any such Company
Intellectual Property consisting of software (“Owned Software”).

“Permitted Liens” means (i) mechanic’s, materialmen’s, carriers’, repairers’ and other Liens arising in the Ordinary Course of Business for amounts that are
not yet delinquent or are being contested in good faith; (ii) Liens for Taxes, assessment or other governmental charges not yet due and payable as of the Closing Date
or which are being contested in good faith; (iii) encumbrances and restrictions on real property (including easements, covenants, conditions, rights of way and
similar restrictions as to the use of the real property) not created or granted by any member of the Company Group, but only to the extent that such matters and
encumbrances do not materially interfere with the right of the Company or Connextions HCI to use such real property in the conduct of the Business as currently
conducted; (iv) Liens granted to any lender at the Closing in connection with any financing by Buyer of the transactions contemplated hereby; (v) zoning, building
codes and other land use laws regulating the use or occupancy of real property or the activities conducted thereon which (A) are imposed by any Governmental
Entity having jurisdiction over such real property, (B) are not violated by the current use or occupancy of such real property or the operation of the Business as
currently conducted, and (C) do not affect or interfere in any material respect with the use of the real property by any member of the Company Group; and (vi) the
Liens listed on Schedule 1.1(a).

“Person” means an individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, association, trust, unincorporated organization, Governmental Entity,
other entity or group (as defined in Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act).

“Personal Information” means any information that identifies a specific natural person, including, without limitation: (i) a natural person’s first and last
name, in combination with a (A) social security number or tax identification number, or (B) credit card number, bank account information and other financial
account information, or financial customer or account numbers, account access codes and passwords; and (ii) Protected Health Information as defined under HIPAA
and any information pertaining to an individual that is regulated or protected by one or more Laws.

“Purchase Price” means (i) $80,000,000, plus (ii) the amount (if any) by which Net Working Capital exceeds Target Working Capital, minus (iii) the amount
(if any) by which Target Working Capital exceeds Net Working Capital, minus (iv) the amount of Closing Indebtedness, minus (v) the amount of the Transaction
Expenses, and minus (vi) the amount of the Closing Aged Receivables that remain uncollected within ninety (90) days following the Closing Date.

“Related Entity” means each of OHCS, OI, OSI, and UHS; provided, that any reference to a Related Entity shall only apply (i) to OHCS, OI, or UHS to the
extent of that entity’s ownership or lease of assets used in the Business that were contributed to the Company under the Contribution Agreement or (ii) in the case of
OSI, only to the extent of its employment of Transferred Employees.

“Representative”  means, with respect to any Person, any director, manager, officer, employee, agent, consultant, advisor or other representative of such
Person, including legal counsel, accountants and financial advisors.

“Restricted Activity” means the provision of contract call center services to each customer listed on Schedule 1.1(b) of the type described in the Contracts
with that customer identified on Schedule 1.1(b).
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“Subsidiary” or “Subsidiaries” means, when used with reference to any Person, any Person (i) of which such Person, or any other Subsidiary of such Person,
is a general or managing partner, (ii) of which a Person owns or controls, directly or indirectly, capital stock or other equity ownership interests representing more
than 50% of the outstanding voting stock or other equity ownership interests, or (iii) the outstanding voting securities or interests of which, having by their terms
ordinary voting power to elect a majority of the board of directors or others performing similar functions with respect to such corporation or other organization, are
directly or indirectly owned or controlled by such Person or by any one or more of its Subsidiaries.

“Target Working Capital” means $13,051,000.

“Tax” means (i) any and all taxes, fees, levies, duties, tariffs, imposts and other charges of any kind, imposed by any taxing authority or other Governmental
Entity, including taxes or other charges on, measured by, or with respect to income, franchise, windfall or other profits, gross receipts, property, sales, use, capital
stock, payroll, employment, social security, workers’ compensation, unemployment compensation or net worth; and taxes or other charges in the nature of excise,
withholding, ad valorem, stamp, transfer, value-added or gains taxes; license, registration and documentation fees; and customs duties, tariffs and similar charges;
(ii) any and all interest, penalties, additions to tax and additional amounts imposed in connection with or with respect to the foregoing; (iii) any liability for payment
of amounts described in clauses (i) or (ii), whether as a result of transferee liability, of being a member of an affiliated, consolidated, combined or unitary group for
any taxable period (including, without limitation, any liability pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-6 or any similar provision of state, local, or non-U.S.
Law), by Contract, or otherwise through operation of Law; and (iv) any liability for the payment of amounts described in clauses (i), (ii) or (iii) as a result of any tax
sharing, tax indemnity or tax allocation agreement or any other agreement to pay any Taxes of any other Person.

“Tax Return” means any return, statement, declaration, form, report, or information return or other documentation filed or maintained, or required to be filed
or maintained, with respect to or in connection with the assessment or collection of any Taxes, including any schedules or attachments thereto and any amendments
thereof.

“Transaction Documents” means this Agreement (including the Disclosure Schedule and other exhibits and schedules hereto), the Transition Services
Agreement and the Employment Leasing and Transition Agreement, collectively.

“Transaction Expenses” means, as of the Effective Time, the aggregate Expenses payable by any member of the Company Group in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, which have not been paid by the Company Group.

“Transferred Employees” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the Employment Leasing and Transition Agreement.

“Transition Date” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the Employment Leasing and Transition Agreement.

“Transition Services Agreement” means the Transition Services Agreement dated as of the date hereof by and between Seller and Buyer describing services
(including call recording retrieval services) that Seller will provide or cause to be provided to Buyer post-Closing to support the transition of the Business on the
terms therein.
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“UHS” means United HealthCare Services, Inc., a Minnesota corporation. References to UHS in Article III of the Agreement only refer to UHS to the extent
of its ownership or lease of assets used in the Business that were contributed to the Company under the Contribution Agreement.

“Ultimate Parent” means UnitedHealth Group Incorporated.

“WARN Act” means the United States Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act and any applicable state or local Laws of comparable effect,
each as amended from time to time.

The following terms are not defined above but are defined on the pages of this Agreement indicated below:

Term Page

 

 

Acquired Business 29
Agreement ii
BA Agreements 11
Benefit Plan 12
Benefit Plans 13
Buyer ii
Buyer Indemnified Parties 30
Buyer Indemnified Party 30
Buyer Objection Notice 5
Cap 31
Claim Notice 33
Closing 3
Closing Date 3
Closing Statement 5
Company ii
Company Contractors 13
Current Representation 39
Customers 20
Designated Person 39
DOJ 10
Effective Time 3
Estimated Closing Statement 3
Exchange Act 8
FCPA 11
Final Purchase Price 7
Financial Information 9
Fundamental Buyer Representations and Warranties 30
Fundamental Seller Representations and Warranties 30
Indemnitee 32
Indemnitor 33
Independent Auditor 6
IP License 17
Leased Real Property 12
Material Contract 17
Material Suppliers 21
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Notice Period
33

Objection Notice 6
Owned Software 48
Post-Closing Adjustment Amount 7
Post-Closing Representation 39
Pre-Closing Period Tax Returns 23
Pre-Closing Periods 16
Qualified Plans 13
Registered Intellectual Property 19
Restricted Period 29
Review Period 5
Section 1.1502-36 Election 24
Securities Act 8
Seller ii
Seller Business 27
Seller Entities 27
Seller Indemnified Parties 32
Seller Indemnified Party 32
Seller Objection Notice 6
Shares ii
Single Claim Threshold 31
Straddle Contract Period 27
Straddle Contracts 27
Straddle Period Tax Returns 23
Straddle Periods 23
Tax Proceeding 25
Third Party Claim 33
Threshold 31
Transfer Taxes 25
Uncollected Receivables Statement 5
Vendor BA Agreements 11
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Schedule 1.1(a)

Permitted Liens

Liens under the Faxable Lease Agreements between the Company and Canon Financial Services, Inc.
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Schedule 1.1(b)

Restricted Activity Customers and Contracts

 

 Customer Contract
1.
 

Kaiser Foundation Health Plan, Inc. Amended and Restated Master Services Agreement effective as
of October 1, 2012 by and between Kaiser Foundation Health
Plan, Inc. and Connextions, Inc., as amended.

2.
 

Independence Blue Cross Standard Support Agreement between Connextions, Inc. and
Independence Blue Cross, effective July 25, 2011, as amended.

3.
 

Health Net, Inc. Master Services and License Agreement by and between
Health Net, Inc. and OptumInsight, Inc., effective as of June
29, 2012, as amended

o
Order Schedule No. 11 to Master Services and License
Agreement between OptumInsight, Inc. and Health Net,
Inc., made as of March 10, 2014, together with all
amendments thereto.
o
Order Schedule No. 14 to Master Services and License
Agreement between OptumInsight, Inc. and Health Net,
Inc., made as of July 1, 2014, together with all
amendments thereto.

4.
 

Cedars-Sinai Medical Center Call Center Agreement between Cedars-Sinai Medical Center
and Connextions, Inc., effective January 1, 2012, as amended,
together with all statements of work.

5.
 

Connecticut General Life Insurance
Company

Professional Services Agreement by and between Connecticut
General Life Insurance Company and Connextions, Inc.,
effective as of December 2, 2009, together with all Task Orders
as each may be amended.

6.
 

USAA Life General Agency Master Services Agreement between USAA Life General
Agency and Connextions, Inc., effective February 28, 2013,
together with all statements of work and addenda, as each may
be amended.

7.
 

Connecticare, Inc. Standard Support Agreement between Connextions, Inc. and
Connecticare, Inc., effective August 15, 2010, including
addenda, as each may be amended.

8.
 

Chesapeake Life Insurance Company Master Software License and Services Agreement between
Connextions, Inc. and the Chesapeake Life Insurance
Company, effective September 1, 2011, together with all
statements of work, as each may be amended.
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Schedule 1.1(c)

Key Employees

Lisa Hendricks
Doreen Thibodeaux
Julie Burleigh
Pete Swisshelm
Angela Rees
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Schedule 6.2(e)
 

Indemnification Matters
 

1.  Any claim made by an individual who was a director or officer of the Company or Connextions HCI prior
to the Effective Time for indemnification as a former director or officer of either of those entities under their respective
Governing Documents related to any action or inaction that occurred at or prior to Closing.

2.  Any claims related to how any Company Employees are classified or paid, including “wage and hour
claims” or other claims made with respect to any Company Employee(s) under the Fair Labor Standards Act, as amended,
or any applicable state or local wage and hour Laws to the extent related to any action or inaction that occurred prior to
Closing.
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CERTIFICATIONS
 
I, Kenneth D. Tuchman, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of TeleTech Holdings, Inc.;
  
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light

of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
  
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results

of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
  
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-

15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
  
 a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material

information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this report is being prepared;

   
 b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

   
 c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the

disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
   
 d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the

registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

   
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and

the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
   
 a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely

affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
   
 b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial

reporting.
 
Date:  May 9, 2017
  
 By: /s/ KENNETH D. TUCHMAN
  Kenneth D. Tuchman
  Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
  (Principal Executive Officer)
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CERTIFICATIONS
 

I, Regina M. Paolillo, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of TeleTech Holdings, Inc.;
  
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light

of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
  
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results

of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
  
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-

15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
  
 a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material

information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this report is being prepared;

   
 b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

   
 c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the

disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
   
 d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the

registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

   
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and

the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
   
 a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely

affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
   
 b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial

reporting.
 
Date: May 9, 2017

 
 

 By: /s/ REGINA M. PAOLILLO
  Regina M. Paolillo
  Chief Financial Officer
  (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

The undersigned, the Chief Executive Officer of TeleTech Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certifies that, to his knowledge on the date hereof:
 

(a) the Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarter ended March 31, 2017 filed on the date hereof with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”) fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934; and

 
(b) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

 
 By: /s/ KENNETH D. TUCHMAN
  Kenneth D. Tuchman
  Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
 
Date: May 9, 2017
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CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 
The undersigned, the Chief Financial Officer of TeleTech Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certifies that, to her knowledge on the date hereof:
 

(a) the Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarter ended March 31, 2017 filed on the date hereof with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”) fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934; and

 
(b) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

 
  

 By: /s/ Regina M. Paolillo
  Regina M. Paolillo
  Chief Financial Officer
 
Date: May 9, 2017
 


